Committee:

JOINT SELECT COMMITTEE ON
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

Senator Powell, Alternating Chair
Representative Stone, Alternating Chair

Meeting Packet
Materials Submitted by:
Department of Management Services

Friday, January 12, 2018
8:00—10:00 a.m.
Pat Thomas Committee Room, 412 Knott Building



Cover Letter



Bomanaeeme nt Office of the General Counsel
s ] 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160
M S E RVI C ES Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950

‘We serve those who serve Florida Tel: 850-487-1082 | Fax; 850-922-6312

Rick Scolt, Governor ) Erin Rock, Secretary

January 8, 2018

The Florida Legislature

Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
525 Knott Building

404 South Monroe Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1100

Re: Impasse of Collective Bargaining Negotiations for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 between the State of
Florida and Bargaining Agents Representing State Employees

Dear Committee Members:

We have enclosed the materials requested by the Joint Committee on Collective Bargaining in its
January 2, 2018, notice of a public hearing scheduled for January 12, 2018. The materials include an
overview of the 13 collective bargaining units comprised of State Personnel System employees and
represented by six bargaining agents, the state’s notice of impasse to the Florida Legislature, status
sheets detailing those contract articles currently at impasse, the most recent state and union proposals
for each contract article at impasse, and the state’s costing of the union proposals.

Thank you for the opportunity to present this information to the Committee. If you have questions or
concerns, please contact me at (850) 561-3503, or Jim Parry, Assistant General Counsel for the
Department of Management Services, at (850) 414-7646.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Mattimore
Chief Labor Negotiator

MM/jlp
Enclosures

cc: Meredith Sasso, Deputy General Counsel, Executive Office of the Governor
Renee Tondee, Deputy Director, Office of Policy and Budget
Michael Milnes, Deputy Coordinator, General Government Unit, Executive Office of the Govemor
Erin Rock, Secretary, Department of Management Services
Drew Atkinson, General Counsel, Department of Management Services
Sharon Larson, Director, Human Resource Management, Department of Management Services
Meredith Stanfield, Director of Legislative Affairs, Department of Management Services
Collective Bargaining Agent Representatives



Overview



OVERVIEW OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNITS
(Statistics for Represented Employees and Dues-Paying Members as of December 26, 2017)

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)

The Master Contract covers four bargaining units:

Administrative and Clerical Unit — Includes Career Service employees whose work involves
the keeping or examination of records and accounts, or general office work. All state agencies
employ members of this unit.

Operational Services Unit — Includes Career Service laborers and artisans, as well as
technicians, mechanics, operators, and service workers. All state agencies except the Agency
for Health Care Administration, the Florida Commission on Offender Review, the Public
Service Commission, and the Departments of Legal Affairs, and Elder Affairs employ
members of this unit.

Human Services Unit — Includes Career Service employees involved in human or institutional
services. The Departments of Corrections, Children and Families, Economic Opportunity,
Education, Health, Juvenile Justice, Military Affairs, Veterans’ Affairs, the Agency for
Persons with Disabilities, and the School for the Deaf and Blind employ members of this unit.

Professional Unit — Includes non-health care Career Service professional employees whose
work requires the consistent exercise of discretion and judgment in its performance. Work is
predominately intellectual and varied in character, and requires knowledge of an advanced type
in a field of science or learning customarily acquired by a prolonged course of specialized
intellectual instruction and study. All state agencies employ members of this unit.

Includes 47,869 represented employees; 1,549 dues-paying members.

Federation of Physicians and Dentists — SES Physicians Unit

Includes 131 physicians and senior physicians in the Selected Exempt Service; 15 dues-
paying members. The Agency for Persons with Disabilities, and the Departments of
Corrections, Children and Families, Education, Health, and Juvenile Justice employ members
of this unit.

Federation of Physicians and Dentists — SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit

Includes 1,156 non-professional supervisory employees in the Selected Exempt Service; 11
dues-paying members. All state agencies except the Florida Commission on Offender Review
employ members of this unit.

December 26, 2017



OVERVIEW OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNITS
(Statistics for Represented Employees and Dues-Paying Members as of December 26, 2017)

State Employees Attorneys Guild — SES Attorneys Unit

Includes 741 attorneys and senior attorneys in the Selected Exempt Service who are not
supervisory, or designated confidential or managerial, and are required as a condition of
employment to be members of the Florida Bar; 7 dues-paying members. All agencies except
the Departments of Citrus, Legal Affairs, Veterans’ Affairs, and the School for the Deaf and
Blind employ members of this unit.

Florida Nurses Association — Professional Health Care Unit

Includes 2,848 professional Career Service employees engaged in direct health care activities;
202 dues-paying members. The Agency for Health Care Administration, the Agency for
Persons with Disabilities, and the Departments of Business and Professional Regulation,
Corrections, Children and Families, Elder Affairs, Financial Services, Health, Juvenile Justice,
Military Affairs, Veterans’ Affairs, and the School for the Deaf and Blind employ members of
this unit.

Florida State Fire Service Association — Fire Service Unit

Includes 580 Career Service uniformed firefighters and supervisors whose primary duties
include fire prevention, fire suppression, and fire training and instruction; 176 dues-paying
members. The Agency for Health Care Administration and the Departments of Agriculture
and Consumer Services, Children and Families, Financial Services, and Military Affairs
employ members of this unit.

Police Benevolent Association — Law Enforcement Unit

Includes 1,197 Career Service sworn law enforcement officers and supervisors of law
enforcement officers, except those members of the Department of Highway Safety and Motor
Vehicles; 451 dues-paying members. The Departments of Agriculture and Consumer Services,
Business and Professional Regulation, Financial Services, Law Enforcement, Legal Affairs,
the School for the Deaf and Blind, and the Fish & Wildlife Conservation Commission employ
members in this unit.

Police Benevolent Association — Florida Highway Patrol Unit

Includes 1,628 Career Service sworn law enforcement officers of the Department of Highway
Safety and Motor Vehicles; 818 dues-paying members.

December 26, 2017



OVERVIEW OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNITS
(Statistics for Represented Employees and Dues-Paying Members as of December 26, 2017)

Police Benevolent Association — Special Agent Unit

Includes 292 Career Service professional, sworn law enforcement investigators in the Florida
Department of Law Enforcement, whose primary duties involve conducting criminal
investigations of suspected law violations primarily connected with organized crime, and/or
providing other specialized law enforcement services, including the investigation of other law
enforcement officers; 175 dues-paying members.

Police Benevolent Association — Security Services Unit

Includes 17,562 Career Service employees whose primary duties involve the direct care,
custody, and control of persons involuntarily confined in state institutions; or the supervised
custody, surveillance, and control of assigned probationers and parolees; 3,811 dues-paying
members (The Public Employees Relations Commission certified the Police Benevolent
Association to represent the Security Services Unit on December 16, 2016; it was previously
represented by Teamsters Local Union No. 2011.). The Department of Corrections, the
Department of Children and Families, and the Agency for Persons with Disabilities employ
members of this bargaining unit.

December 26, 2017



Declaration of
Statutory Impasse



>, FLORIDA DEPARTMENT of
== % m a n a e m e nt Office of the General Counsel
gl ) 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160
B S E RVI C ES Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950

We serve those who serve Florida Tel: 850-487-1082 | Fay: 850-922-6312

Rick Scolt, Governor Erin Rock, Secretary

January 8, 2018

The Honorable Joe Negron, President
The Florida Senate

409, The Capitol

404 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1100

The Honorable Richard Corcoran, Speaker
Florida House of Representatives

420, The Capitol

402 South Monroe Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300

Re: Notification of Collective Bargaining Impasse
Dear President Negron and Speaker Corcoran:

As indicated in our letter of November 14, 2017, an impasse occurred in the collective bargaining
negotiations between the Governor and the five employee associations representing 13 bargaining units
of state employees, pursuant to section 216.163(6), Florida Statutes.

In accordance with section 447.403(5), Florida Statutes, we are today providing you and the Joint Select
Committee on Collective Bargaining with information regarding those articles of the collective bargaining
contracts on which the state and the bargaining agents representing bargaining units of state employees
have not reached agreement as of the date of this letter. We are continuing negotiations and will inform
you of agreements reached on any currently unresolved articles.

If you have guestions or concems, please contact me at (850) 561-3503, or Jim Parry, Assistant General
Counsel for the Department of Management Services, at (850) 414-7646.

Sincerely,
Michael Mattimore

Chief Labor Negotiator

Enclosures



CC:

The Honorable Joe Negron, President

The Honorable Richard Corcoran, Speaker
January 8, 2018
Page Two

Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
Meredith Sasso, Deputy General Counsel, Executive Office of the Governor

Renee Tondee, Deputy Director, Office of Policy and Budget
Christopher Bailey, Deputy Coordinator, General Government Unit, Executive Office of the Governor

Michael Milnes, Deputy Coordinator, General Government Unit, Executive Office of the Governor
Erin Rock, Secretary, Department of Management Services

Drew Atkinson, General Counsel, Department of Management Services

Sharon Larson, Director, Human Resource Management, Department of Management Services
Meredith Stanfield, Director of Legislative Affairs, Department of Management Services
Collective Bargaining Agent Representatives



Ltr. to Sen. Pres./Hse.
Spkr. Re: Impasse



B\ Mmanagement
g Office of the General Cpunsel
y SERVICES O alahassee, FL 573990950

We serve those who serve Florida Tel: 850-487-1082 | Fax: 850-922-6312

Rick Scoftt, Governor Erin Rock, Secretary

November 14, 2017

The Honorable Joe Negron, President
The Florida Senate

409, The Capitol

404 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1100

The Honorable Richard Corcoran, Speaker
Florida House of Representatives

420, The Capitol

402 South Monroe Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300

Re: Notification of Collective Bargaining Impasse
Dear President Negron and Speaker Corcoran:

An impasse has occurred in the collective bargaining negotiations between the Governor and the five employee
associations representing 13 bargaining units of state employees, pursuant to section 216.163(6), Florida
Statutes. We will continue to negotiate in the coming weeks in an effort to reach agreement on as many
unresolved issues as possible and will submit information regarding those we cannot resolve no later than
January 8, 2018, pursuant to section 447.403(5), Florida Statutes.

If you have questions or concerns, please contact me at 561-3503, or Jim Parry, Assistant General Counsel for
the Department of Management Services, at 414-7646.

Sincerely,

Michael Mattimore
Chief Labor Negotiator

MM/mec

cC! Donna M. Poole, Chair, Public Employees Relations Commission
Meredith Sasso, Deputy General Counsel, Executive Office of Governor Rick Scott
Renee Tondee, Deputy Director, Office of Policy and Budget
Michael Milnes, Deputy Coordinator, General Government Unit, Executive Office of the Governor
Erin Rock, Secretary, Department of Management Services
Drew Atkinson, General Counsel, Department of Management Services
Sharon Larson, Director, Human Resource Management, Department of Management Services
Meredith Stanfield, Director of Legislative Affairs, Department of Management Services
Collective Bargaining Agent Representatives



AFSCME



Wd 6¥:t ‘8T0Z/9/T

7401 '3d
"SOOTAIOS "22401do 01
apiao1d 0} Jun 104 oY} JO| S[qe[IEAR JABS] [ENUUE JO A10jesuadwos [eroads
Ajiqe ay) uo paseq ‘woisuadsns| JUSIOLINS JOU ST AISY) JI PAIONPAP 9q ABW 9ARI]
© JAI3S UBLj) JOUJeI Pajonpap| OIS ‘OS[y "uoisuadsns [ons Jo NI Ul pajonpsp
9ABY[ 2aBY 0} ST 92A0[dWd| 2aeo| aARY IO UOIsUAdsnS ATBUT[dIOSIp B 9AISS 0]
UE USYM SUTULISIOP O} AJLIOYine| IoyIoym SUIULINIp [[eys ‘Aousde oy} uey) Joyjel
oY) urejar ysnw Aouode Y I,|‘@vk0durs o)) jBtj) J00[FeI 03 (F)9 UOTIOS SISIAL "potrad uotsuadsns 2y Junmp yIom
‘lesodoid sa3e15 0} 19130 IOWUNOO B SY 1L 1/5/7T| 01 paxmbar st sakojdwe oy 1 Ked Jnoyyim
*9JRUIULID)OPU] dARI[,, S pasn uoisuadsns e Jo uonzod
"PaIR[OAp sardoUIFIoW Aue 3uiaey Jo uondo oY) SOAOWAI ([N UL
Jo K1119A9s pue JoquInu oY) uorsuadsns a3 9a10s 03 92K0[dwd a3 asrmbax
uodn paseq AIeA P[nom saInso[d Io potrad uorsuadsns sy Jo Jopurewial
901JO SULIp PIUILD AR a1y} Tenbo 03 9Ae9] [eNUUE Jonpep Aew Kouade
woJy sinoy pred Jo Joquinu oY J, L2102 ‘1 AInr o) ‘pourad uorsuadsns oImu2 91} I9A00 0}
"€69°18Y$|  I1o)e 10 UO PIuIES SHPSIO 9ARI] AT0jesuadwoo| 2aea] “dwod [eroads JUSIOIIJNS SABY 10U S0P
Jo AyI[Iqer]  pajewn)ss (SISO [eroads pasnun jo ynoked e ayewr Aewr KousFe|oakordws ot J1 ety sapraoid ‘suoneUIMLISIOp
901JJO 03 NP SINOY 09T | ONL, ¥ey} sa3els Yoty ‘($)(D)9 Uondag saaoway|  [ons SUDyet U UonaIdsIp [0S Sy} sausge
"L1-910T "0aKordwa oy 0) pred aq [[eys ‘paiIpaId| sopiaoId ‘PajonpPIp SAES[ SARY J0 UOIsUdsns
Ul pajIalIo] [06°LL9$ JO ANTIQRI]| ST 9ABO] oY) YoIyMm UT poriad Iom 91} Spaaodns oY) 2AI0S 0} 9oua1afaId s,pakordwa
Pajew}ss 1/ [-91 Qg Ul PaNaJIo] AJ21e1patuut Jey) [ ¢ 12q0300) 1o O¢ [HIdy 9} JO UOTIRIIPISUOD SIIOUSTE S2A0WY
oAeo[ AepI[OY JO SINOY (‘|  Aq JBaK Yoro pasn 10 aIe YoIym ‘T[0T ‘1 A[nf| 0o L10)esuadwio]) [e10ads - (F)9 UOTIO0S QABY]
:[esodoi1{ s,uoru) 0] 9)eWSH| IO IO UO PIUIES SIIPaId aAed] dwo)) [eroadg (811 Aungesiq “pom Jo sinoy
3unsoD gdO “L10T/€/11} 16U} 103jo1 0 (1)(D)9 uon0ag SasIASY :L1/9/11|-L10T W pajenodau [esodoxd swes) :£1/9/[[|  ‘eouesqy jo sorea] - g7
SINHWINOD TVSOdOdd NOINN TVS0dOdd ALVLS ATOILAV

SI[ONIY PIA[OSAIU)
JUDWAAIBY J0SSIING ()7-L10T 183X [BISL]
8107 ‘y Arenuep :Jo se suoneno3daN sururedieg dANII[0)) JO SNJB}S
020 ‘0¢ dung saadxy JudmRI3Y JuarIn)
WAISAS [PUUO0SIdJ 3)¢e)S
SHU() [BILIF]D PUE JANBNSIUTWPY PUB SIIAIRG [euUoDeIddQ ‘[RUO0ISSIJoI] ‘SIINAIIG UBMWIN :SIU[)
6L TPUNO)) eplIof] - (HIADSAV) sddioidury [edmuniy pue A1uno)) ‘9)e)s Jo UoneIdPd,] ULILIWY



Wd 61 ‘8T02/9/1

zj0t78d
‘uonisod s,pakodws 21 Jo Aousfeamnbs oumy L80PES
~[I1g 5Y3 uo paseq pajes-oid aq [[eys jusumsnlpe 0} (996€) 1901JO UOHEBQOI] S[IUSAN[ “J§ ,
Ked aATiadwoos oy} BT} Seje)s Iany Iy 8LTTES
"A[9ATIOROIII JOU Inq S]qISI[S $OW000q 93K0[dwo 01 (§96¢) I199JO UOnLBqOI S[TUIANS ,
S} 1ep 3] UO 3A1I91J2 9 [[eys aseaIour ‘S61°67$ 01 (T1LS)
ue ‘9[qISId aw0oaq seakordus oqrdrpour 11 1901JJ (O TOTIUIO(J TS [TULANS 4
oy Jey) salels pue saxkojdure | 21qidiour, pue SLT0°8TS 01
WOTQI31[3,, SSULSP YoIM ()T U012 mou SPPY | (T1£S) T 1990 UOHUSIS(T o1SN( [IUIANY
:sse[o ay) Jo Aed jo ojel aseq
"04€ JO Jusunsnfpe Aed wnwiur 21 sisnlpe pue Aed jo oje1 oseq
aannadwos [enuue ue 2AT009I [[eys saakopdwa 8T/0£/9 119y UI 9SBIIOUI %, B papraoid
N 1°0§$ :(¥)Z uonoag S[QIBH2 W [[NJ ‘§TOT ‘T 29000 SIS 2q T[eYS $SSE[O FUIMO[[0] o) UT uOT)sOd
‘[esodo1d s,uorun) IoJ SILNSH 1By} S9)BIS YOTYM (V)T UONOS MAu sppY| & Sulj[ij s20Ko[dws Juarmd ‘g/ /L SATIOSI
3unso) 440 :L107/¢/11 (€)% (V)T uonoag sorowey :£1-9-11 'VVD ‘g uonoag 1od L1/p1/11 SageM - ST
SINANWINOD "TVSOdOdd NOINN TVS0dOdd ALV.LS ATIOLLAV

SOOIV PIA[OSAIU[}
JUIWIIITY J0SSIING (7-LT(0T 18X IS
8107 ‘v Arenuep :jo se suonenodaN sururedieg 3ANdI[0)) JO SNIBIS
0207 ‘0¢ dung saardxy JuduIdRISy Jua.rin))
WI)SAS [PUU0SIdJ I)BIS
SU() [BILId]) PUB JADCHSIUIWPY PUE SNIAIIS [BUONRIIA() TRUOISSIOIJ ‘SIINAIIG UBWIN :SHU()
6L [PUN0) epLiofy - (FINDSAV) ssafordury edprungy pue A)juno)) ‘a)elg Jo UONBIIPI] URILIDWY



Wd €S:£ ‘8T0Z/9/1

‘[esodoid s,21e18 Y3 03 saaIde
AToAneus) uoran oy, :L1/S1/11

"610T ‘1 ATenuef 9ATIo0)3d

‘ue[d YIeaH S[quonpn YISy oY) 10 asnods
yoeo 10J yiuow 1od G1°7E$ pue ue[d YiesH
pIepue)lg sy 10] asnods yoes J0J yiuour

15d (6$ 01 9FueYDd [[IM UR[J SouBINSU YIESR]
dnoury saakorduy 2ye)g ayy ur Funedonred
asnods yoes 10] yyuowr 12d 1§ Jo swnrmaid
Joj Burpraoxd urexdoig ssnodg a1 Jo
uoneoyrpowr e sasodoxd a1e1§ oYL, :L1/ST/11

souernsuy yjjesay - L

SINHIWINOD

'TVSOdO¥dd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

ATOLLAV

"suonedtfduur [edsey J1 0) anp papnpu st ‘sanaed oy Aq 03 pavaSe APANEIUL) dPIIY Surmorpoj oy I,
JUIWIAIZY J0SSIINS (7-LT0T 18X [BISL]

8107 ‘¢ Arenuep :jo se suoneno3s\ SurureSieg 2And9[[0) JO SMIBIS

0Z0Z ‘0€ 2ung sdardxg Judwadady jua.rin))
WASAQ [PUUOSId] d)e)S

$HU() [EILIB]D) PUE JANBISIUNUPY PUR SIIAIIS [BUON LI TEUOISSIFOI ‘SIIAIIS UBMIN] :SIIU()

6L 1ouno) epLIofy - (AINDSAV) sedsojdury [edpiuniy pue £yuno)) ‘9)e)g JO UONEIIPI,] UBILIDUTY

TJ0T3d



AFSCME

State Proposal - Article 18
Fiscal Year 2017-18
November 6, 2017

Page 1 of 5

Article 18
LEAVES OF ABSENCE, HOURS OF WORK, DISABILITY LEAVE

SECTION 1 — Leaves

Employees shall be granted leaves of absence as provided in Rule 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code.

SECTION 2 - Hours of Work and Overtime
(A)  The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours.

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will
make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide the employees with consecutive hours in
the workday and consecutive days in the workweek.

(C)  Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with the
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D) Management retains the right to approve or disapprove time off for its employees.
However, the state will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use
compensatory leave credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee’s
specific request shall not be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this Contract.

(E)  The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of
favoritism. In any case, where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned
on the basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the Grievance Procedure under
Article 6 herein, to Step 2.

SECTION 3 — Work Schedules

(A)  Where work schedules are rotated, employees’ normal work schedules, showing
each employee’s shift, workdays and hours, will be posted no less than ten calendar days in
advance, and will reflect at least a two workweek schedule; however, the state will make a good
faith effort to reflect a one month schedule. With prior written notification of at least three
workdays to the employee’s immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or

For the State For AFSCME
Michael Mattimore Hector R. Ramos
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Coordinator, Region 2

Date Date



AFSCME

State Proposal - Article 18
Fiscal Year 2017-18
November 6, 2017

Page 2 of 5

shifts on a temporary basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or
shifts, the employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved.

(B)  Where work schedules are rotated, the state will make a good faith effort to equalize
scheduled weekend work among employees in the same functional unit whenever this can be
accomplished without interfering with efficient operations.

(C)  When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee’s regular
shift assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a
minimum of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the
new shift assignment.

(D)  When an employee works two consecutive shifts, the state will make a good faith
effort to allow the employee a minimum of 16 consecutive hours off prior to returning to work.

SECTION 4 — Rest Periods

(A)  No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during
each four hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle
of the work shift. However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty assignment
that requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which would not permit the employee to actually
leave his post. In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can “rest” while the employee
physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post.

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be
authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or early departure from duty.

SECTION 5 - Disability Leave

(A)  An employee who sustains a job-related disability and is eligible for disability
leave with pay under the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, shall be carried
in full-pay status for up to 40 work hours immediately following the onset of the injury without
being required to use accrued leave.

For the State For AFSCME
Michael Mattimore Hector R. Ramos
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Coordinator, Region 2

Date Date



AFSCME

State Proposal - Article 18
Fiscal Year 2017-18
November 6, 2017

Page 3 of 5

(B)  If an employee is unable to return to work at the end of the 40 work hour period,
the employee may supplement the Workers’ Compensation benefits with accrued leave in an
amount necessary to remain in full-pay status.

(C)  After an employee has used a total of 100 hours of accrued sick, annual, or
compensatory leave, or leave without pay, the agency may request permission from the
Department of Management Services to continue the employee in full-pay status for a subsequent
period of not more than 26 weeks from the date requested by the agency. This request is to include
the information described in Rule 60L-34.0061(1)(b)2. The Department will approve such
requests which, in its judgment, are in the best interest of the state. Upon approval of the request
by the Department, the agency will provide the employee with administrative leave (Leave Code
0056, Admin - Authorized Other) in an amount necessary to supplement the employee’s Workers’
Compensation benefits so that the employee may be in full-pay status.

¢} An agency may request permission from the Department of Management
Services to continue an employee in full-pay status on administrative leave, as described in (C),
above, who sustains a job-connected disability resulting from an act of violence inflicted by
another person while engaged in work duties or from an assault under riot conditions and has
exhausted all the employee’s accrued leave when such leave usage amounts to fewer than 100
hours.

SECTION 6 — Special Compensatory Leave

(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave
credits may be earned only in the following instances:

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the employee’s
assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor
or any other disaster or emergency condition.

(B)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012. An employee may be
required to reduce special compensatory leave credit balances.

For the State For AFSCME
Michael Mattimore Hector R. Ramos
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Coordinator, Region 2

Date Date



AFSCME

State Proposal - Article 18
Fiscal Year 2017-18
November 6, 2017

Page 4 of 5

(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012.

1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(A)(1), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs eatlier,
shall be forfeited.

2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(AX2), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited.

3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, if scheduling such leave within
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed
to ensure public safety, the Agency Head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 and
2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days. Extensions will not be allowed for any other reason.

“) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave credits
earned on or after July 1, 2012.

(D)  General Provisions for Using Special Compensatory Leave Credits in Accordance
with Rule 60L-34.0044, F.A.C.

(1) Employee Leave Requests. An employee shall be required to use available
special compensatory leave credits prior to the agency approving the following leave types:

(a) Regular compensatory leave credits.

(b) Annual leave credits, unless such annual leave credits are being
substituted for an employee’s unpaid individual medical leave granted in accordance with the
federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or parental leave granted
in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.

For the State For AFSCME
Michael Mattimore Hector R. Ramos
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Coordinator, Region 2

Date Date



AFSCME

State Proposal - Article 18
Fiscal Year 2017-18
November 6, 2017

Page 5 of 5

(E) An-The agency may have-deduct special compensatory leave from an employee’s

leave balance equal to the length of a disciplinary suspension deducted-from-an-employee’sleave

balanee-in lieu of the employee serving the suspens1on The agency has sole dlscretlon in makm,q
such determination. : ; § t o §

does not have sufficient special compensatory leave to cover the entlre suspension perlod the agency

may deduct annual leave to cover the remaining portions of the suspension or require the employee to
serve the suspension in full.; am&al%eayeﬂm%be—dedaeted—}t;ﬂ&efe—ts—ﬁet—saﬁﬁe}eﬂt—spee}a%

c ; ut-pay—Employees
from Whorn leave is deducted will contlnue to report for duty and remain in pay status. The
employee’s personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the employee
serves the suspension or has leave deducted.

For the State For AFSCME
Michael Mattimore Hector R. Ramos
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Coordinator, Region 2

Date Date



Union Proposal
December 5, 2017

Article 18
LEAVES OF ABSENCE, HOURS OF WORK, DISABILITY LEAVE

SECTION 1 — Leaves

Employees shall be granted leaves of absence as provided in Rule 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code.

SECTION 2 - Hours of Work and Overtime
(A)  The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours.

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will
make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide the employees with consecutive hours in
the workday and consecutive days in the workweek.

(C)  Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with the
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D)  Managemeni retains the right to approve or disapprove time off for its employees.
However, the state will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use
compensatory leave credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee’s
specific request shall not be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this Contract.

(E)  The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of
favoritism. In any case, where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned
on the basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the Grievance Procedure under

Article 6 herein, to Step 2.
SECTION 3 - Work Schedules

(A)  Where work schedules are rotated, employees” normal work schedules, showing
each employee’s shift, workdays and hours, will be posted no less than ten calendar days in
advance, and will reflect at least a two workweek schedule; however, the state will make a good
faith effort to reflect a one month schedule. With prior written notification of at least three
workdays to the employee’s immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or
shifts on a temporary basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or
shifts, the employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved.

(B)  Where work schedules are rotated, the state will make a good faith effort to equalize
scheduled weekend work among employees in the same functional unit whenever this can be
accomplished without interfering with efficient operations.

(C)  When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee’s regular
shift assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a



Union Proposal
December 5, 2017

minimum of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the
new shift assignment.

(D)  When an employee works two consecutive shifts, the state will make a good faith
effort to allow the employee a minimum of 16 consecutive hours off prior to returning to work.

SECTION 4 — Rest Periods

(A)  No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during
each four hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle
of the work shift. However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty assignment
that requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which would not permit the employee to actually
leave his post. In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can “rest” while the employee

physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post.

(B)  An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be
authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or early departure from duty.

SECTION 5 - Disability Leave

(A)  Anemployee who sustains a job-related disability and is eligible for disability leave
with pay under the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, shall be carried in
full-pay status for up to 40 work hours immediately following the onset of the injury without being

required to use accrued leave.

(B)  If an employee is unable to return to work at the end of the 40 work hour period,
the employee may supplement the Workers® Compensation benefits with accrued leave in an
amount necessary to remain in full-pay status.

(C)  After an employee has used a total of 100 hours of accrued sick, annual, or
compensatory leave, or leave without pay, the agency may request permission from the
Department of Management Services to continue the employee in full-pay status for a subsequent
period of not more than 26 weeks from the date requested by the agency. This request is to include
the information described in Rule 60L-34.0061(1)(b)2. The Department will approve such
requests which, in its judgment, are in the best interest of the state. Upon approval of the request
by the Department, the agency will provide the employee with administrative leave (Leave Code
0056, Admin - Authorized Other) in an amount necessary to supplement the employee’s Workers’
Compensation benefits so that the employee may be in full-pay status.

(1)  An agency may request permission from the Department of Management
Services to continue an employee in full-pay status on administrative leave, as described in (C),
above, who sustains a job-connected disability resulting from an act of violence inflicted by
another person while engaged in work duties or from an assault under riot conditions and has
exhausted all the employee’s accrued leave when such leave usage amounts to fewer than 100

hours:



Union Proposal
December 5, 2017

SECTION 6 — Special Compensatory Leave

(A)  Earing of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave
credits may be earned only in the following instances:

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the employee’s
assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor

or any other disaster or emergency condition.

(B)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012. An employee may be
required to reduce special compensatory leave credit balances.

(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012.

) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(A)( 1), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs earlier,

shall be-ferfeited paid to the employee.

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(AX2), op or after July 1, 2012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited paid to the emplovyee.

(3)  Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, if scheduling such leave within
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed
to ensure public safety, the Agency Head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 and
2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days. Extensions will not be allowed for any other reason.

(D)  General Provisions for Using Special Compensatory Leave Credits in Accordance
with Rule 60L-34.0044, F.A.C.

(1)  Employee Leave Requests. An employee shall be required to use available
special compensatory leave credits prior to the agency approving the following leave types:

(@ Regular compensatory leave credits.



Union Proposal
December 5, 2017

(b)  Annual leave credits, unless such annual leave credits are being
substituted for an employee’s impaid individual medical leave granted in accordance with the
federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or parental leave granted
in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.

(E)  An The agency may have deduct special compensatory leave equal to the length
of a disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee’s leave balance in lieu of the employee
serving the suspension. In making such determination, each agency shall take into consideration
the preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted, and the

agency shall abide by such preference. If the employee does not have sufficient special

compensatory leave, annual leave, or sick leave may be deducted. If there is not sufficient special
compensatory, of annual leave, or sick leave, the remainder of the period will be leave without
pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty and remain in pay
status. The employee’s personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether
the employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted.



AFSCME

State Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 14, 2017

Page 1 of 2
Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions — General

Pay, including increases to base rate of pay and salary additives, shall be in accordance
with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 - Increase to Minimum Salaries — Department of Juvenile Justice

In accordance with the authority provided in the Governor’s recommendations for Section
8 of the General Appropriations Act, the minimum base rate of pay for the classifications listed
below shall be adjusted to the indicated amount effective July 1, 2018. Current employees filling
a position in these classifications shall be provided a ten percent increase in their June 30, 2018,
base rate of pay effective July 1, 2018.

Juvenile Justice Detention Officer I (5711) - to $28.027
Juvenile Justice Detention Officer II (5712) —to $29.195
Juvenile Probation Officer (5965) —to 32,278

Senior Juvenile Probation Officer (5966) - $34,087

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 — Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance
with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

For the State For AFSCME
Michael Mattimore Hector R. Ramos
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Coordinator, Region 2

Date Date



AFSCME

State Proposal - Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 14, 2017

Page 2 of 2

SECTION 5 - Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,

Florida Administrative Code.
SECTION 6 - Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For AFSCME
Michael Mattimore Hector R. Ramos
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Coordinator, Region 2

Date Date



Union Proposal
November 6, 2017

Article 25 2017 Legislative Impasse Resolution
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions — General

Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 20472018 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 - Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with Senate Bill 7022, a competitive pay adjustment shall be provided to
eligible full-time and part-time employees who meet their required performance standards.

(A) Effective October 1. 2018, full-time eligible employees shall receive an annual
competitive pay adjustment of 3 %.

(B) References to “eligible” employees refer to employees who are, at a minimum,
meeting the required performance standards, if applicable. If an ineligible employee achieves
performance standards subsequent to the salary increase implementation date but on or
before the end of the fiscal year, the employee may receive an increase:; however, such
increase shall be effective on the date the employee becomes eligible but not retroactively.
The competitive pay adjustment shall be pro-rated based on the full-time equivalency of the

employee’s position.

SECTION 3 — Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 — Cash Payout of Annual Leave



Union Proposal
November 6, 2017

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance
with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 6 — Agency Wage Increases, Bonuses, or other Increases

Whenever the Agency determines to provide a wage increase, bonus, or some other form of
incentive to the bargaining unit employees (other than those wage increases or bonuses
provided by the legislature), the Agency Head shall notify the AFSCME Council at the
Tallahassee office of its intent to provide such increase or bonus and shall provide the
following information:

(A) The total amount of the increase or bonus allotted for the bargaining unit employees;

(B) A list and individual amounts provided to each bargaining unit emplovee;

(C) The criteria used to select the employees which will receive the increase or bonus:

(D) The specific locations of the agency which will receive the increase or bonus, if it does
not involve an agency-wide increase;

(E) A list of all employees who may not have received the increase of bonus and the reasons
for their not receiving such.

The Union acknowledges that these amounts are not subject to collective bargaining

negotiations. The agency will not exercise its discretion in an arbitrary, capricious, or other
adverse manner in the distributing of such wage increase or bonus.




AFSCME Unit CBUs 01, 02, 03, and 05 Proposals with Fiscal Impact
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Union/lssue

Estimated Cost

Comments

Article 18, Section 6: Provides for unused
Special Compensatory leave credits shall be paid
to the employee instead of forfeited.

Varies (see
comments)

The Division of Human Resource Management determined that
there were 41,804 hours related to holiday leave forfeited in FY
2016-17 by employees in the AFSCME Collective Bargaining Unit
(CBU). These hours had an estimated liability of $677,901. In
addition to the holiday hours, AFSCME CBU employees forfeited
26,108 hours related to office closures, with an estimated liability of
$481,693. The number of office closure forfeitures could vary
significantly from year to year depending on the number and
severity of emergencies declared.

Article 25, Section 2(A). Provides effective
October 1, 2018, full-time eligible employees shall
receive a cost of living adjustment of 3%.

$50.1M

Calculation is based on a 3% increase, including benefits on 57,711
FTE for 9 months. PeopleFirst data as of 11/2 transferred into
LAS/PBS was the source for the calculation. NOTE: If only filied
positions are considered, the applicable FTE is decreased to
52,551 and the cost for 9 months is $46.3M.

Page

10of1




FNA - Professional
Hith. Care Unit



WV 8¥:TT ‘8T02/8/T

GJoT8d
"90UBASLIZ UONIR SSE[O 1]} JO
1d1e0a1 FUIMOT[OF SABD G UIYIM UOISIOSp
B 9)B2IUNUIIOD PUR ‘ss300Jd soueAslId
9 9)eUIPI00O ‘Adusge pajeorjdunr Lue pue
UoTu[) 93U} YAIM SOUBAILIT o1} SSNOSIP p[nom
S901AIDG JusuIdSeuelA JO Jusuniedo ]
oy, "asuodsar apim-osTIdIsius Jus)SISuoD
B QITSUD 0) $310Ua3e SNOLEA 0} A[ojeredas
UBY} 197 SOOIAIDS JuowaSeuey]
Jo yuowreda(g ag) 01 pojuasaxd
A[[enIur oIk S20UBASLIS YONS [[B 18y) S2INSUD *¢ deig 18 pareniul oq payestjduwn st
¢ d1g 1 LousFe ouo ueyy srow Suneorjdun AouBe QU0 UBL) 210 AISYM $80ULASLIS UOnOR
20UBRASLIS UOLIOR SSB[S © JO UONEBHIUL 31} sse[o Je) sasodoid ayeyg oy - (E)(F)S uondsg
103 Tesodoxd s@ie1g 24, - (ENG)S Uonoas
"(9anejuasardal pareusisep 10 peay ‘2oueA2US o)
Kouage '5'0) 90ouLALIT oy 2ATOSSI/ISOIpE 0} 9SLI SUIAIS JUIAS 3U]) SUIMOT[OJ SABD G UMM
o} Ajoyine o) PIM JuswsFeurw ainpadoid 9sueAslIsd oy} o | de)g ur yiIoy 108 se
JO TOA9] © Je pa[puRy ST 20UBAILIT uLioy aoueAslid e Summqns £q ‘erenidoidde se
a1} Jey) sansu2 7 da)§ Je TeSSISIp JO € 10 7 dolg Je pajentul oq (4, S[oTIY UI PIqLIdSIP
‘vonowap ‘uosuadsns ‘KemyIny £q soqmu SB) [BSSTWSIP 0 ‘Uonowsp ‘notsuadsns ‘Kemysiy
0§ I2A0 o Jaysuen Arejunjoaur ‘Aed oseq AQ Sa[TW ()G 190 JO Ioysuer} Arejunioaur ‘Aed
Ul HOHONPAI B U0 PISeq ST Jey) 90UBASLS ‘Tesodoid /£ 1/67/11 S2181S oY) 9SB( UI UONONPAI B U0 PIS] S20UBASLIS Je1])
€ JO uopenul oy, - (Z)(f)S Uon3S| 03 pasiSe A[oAneus) uorp) oYL :,1/6Z/11| sesodod syerg oy - {@)(@suonsss :L1/67/11 INPIN0IJ IIUBALIL) -
SINANINOD TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALV.LS AIDILAV

SIIILIY PIA[0SAIU[)
JUIWRIZY 190y 61-8107 183X [LISL 10] sSuonenosaN
LT0T "ST _QUIR( :jo se suonenosaN Suraredaeg 3ANII[[0)) JO snyu)§
0707 ‘0 duny saardxy Juomaa3y Jusain))
TWII)SAS [PUUOSIDJ I)B)S - JU() 3IB)) [I[RIH [BUOISSIJOI]
UON)RIIOSSY SISANN BPLIO[]




WV 81:TT ‘8T02/8/T

5j078d

‘aseyd sanednseaur

2y} SuLInp UONeSINOU UL S1Inbal
prnoa esodoxd suorup) oy -surpdiosip
UT J[0S9I BT SDAQT[oq A[qBUOoSesI
2ako1dwo sy yomym 1opnew v Surpreder
pouonsanb aq 0y st 2okordws ue yorgm
ur 3unsau B pueje Letu aAneIuasardal
Uon '/ )onpuodsiut Jo suonedeqe Aue
0} Jomsue 0} Ayungroddo ue uaArg oq [reys
saKopdwe ay) 1ey) pue wonoe Areurdiosip
Aue J0 9)ep 2A08e o 0} sAep oud

01 15B9] J& 9010U Uanlm ylim papraoxd
2q oa4ojdws e ety somnbai Apeaie
‘saIMeIS BpLIOL] ‘(8)(S)LZT 011 UoBoas
Yew soziseydwa 9)e)g oY, 1L107/81/T1

"30UaIaJu0d uoneurIaapaid

10 Suraeur a1 03 Joud surdiosip

oY} JO 2Imjeu 9Y) Jo SUNLIM UT PAWLIOJUT 8q
sakopdws a1 “(-o30 “sSunesur norednsasur
‘S90URIQJUO0Y UoNBUIILIN)apaId "3T)
s3unoaw Areurjdrosip seko[dwo Jo sases

ut ‘yeyy sasodoxd uorun) o1 - 10 :L1/62/11

onb smeig i/ 1/81/71

uonoy Axemdrosi( - L

"UOISIOap

SuIpuIq puE [eU B JOPUII PUE SOUBASLIS
91} ISPISUOD 0} I0JBIIqQIR 3T} JO] sKep
ssouIsnq § [euonIppe ue apraoid [m ¢ 0
UOISIOap ® SNSST 0} I0JB1IGIE UR 0) PIPIOLe
sAep ssauIsSng JO JOqUINU O1j) SBEAIIUL

01 [esodoid s,@1e1g 2U T, - [SHJ)E UONIBG

[esodo1d a1el§ pasiady :L1/81/Z1

‘Tesodoid
LT/8T/T1 PASIARI $2)8)S oY SUmaIaal
Apuasaxd st uotun) YT :L1/81/Z1

"191[ ST JOASYOIYM ‘SJALIq JO UOISSTUqNS
a1 10 Supresy) o) Jo Sursopo a1 Jo Mep

S WoJJ ‘sAep 77 U0 oY) UB) JoYjel ‘sAep
0€ UeL) I2JE] OU UOISIOdP B SnSSI [[Bys Jojenjigle

ue jet sasodoxd ae1g oy T, - TS)(J)E UOBI2S

[esodolq S)e1g PasIARY :L1/81/C1

(panuiuoo) 2INpPad0Id SOUBASLID) - §

SINIIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVIS

A IOLLAV

SOPPILIY PIA[OSAIU)
YUY 1UId0Y 6I-8T0T 183X [€ISI] 0] suonerjosaN

L

T0T "ST 13qUIdd3( :jo st suonenodoN sururedieg A0 JO SNIL)S
0707 ‘0¢ dunyp soardx7j JUAWAAITY Jud.LIN))
WI)SAS [PUHOSII 3)¥)S - JIU() IIB)) YI[BI] [CUOISSIJOL]
UOI}BII0SSY SISINN BPLIOLL




WV 8%:TT ‘8T0¢/8/T

Sj0¢°84

reUTWLINOPU] - stesodoxd
S.UoLuM JO JeWNSS SUNS00 gdO 1L1/0¢/11

"pojuRLIEA

Uaym ‘s[qe[reAe Apealje sI so1ousSIoud
pore[osp Juumnp uonesuaduwos [euonippe
Jo suoy IO “saakofdus 9sayy) Jo smeys
SWIIPAC VST o) 3uiSueyo 0} pasoddo
StarEls SYL - (NOILDIS MAN) / uondsg

LU/T/1T 309p39

300} pUeE }9BIUOI JUSLIND I} UT PIUIBIUOD
st uotstaoxd ey, ‘SARPIOY UO PUE SAINSO[D
901J0 JuLmnp FUD{IoM S[IyMm Pash J0U

1nq pawies aaes] dwos fervads Jo juswsed
10§ op1aoid 03 paside sented sy ‘osuodsal
uy Tesodod g1-7 [0 IO} SIOLIUL
Tesodoxd suorun) oy 1oy agenSue| oy,

- (NOILDHS MAN) § UondssS :£1/6Z/11

"I9)SBSTP 10 AouUsSIoUId pale[oop oy}

Jo uoneinp sy} 10 Bonesusdiiod SWINLISA0
Jo sasodind oy 10} seakojdwe  papnpour,,
Se PAIoPISU0 3q [[eys saaKo7dwo Jun a1eo
qifesy [euorssojord Yijesy jo jusunieds(]
AL (1) "AINO SHIAOTINA

HOA - (NOILDAS MAN) £ Tonsg

"pasofo
st A1[10ef 9Y) 1e1]) ABp [OBS PIYIOM SINOY
JO Joquunu 8y} J0J SIseq INOY-I0J-IN0Y UL Uo

2Ae9] A101BsUSdWOD [eroads 10§ 9[qISie aq
pInom ‘(sAepijoH '3'9) IopI() SANNOXH U
Aq Pa12A02 10U UONIPUOO 19710 AUe 0} Snp
peay Aousfe o1 10 $991AISG JuswaSeury
Jo yusuneds 2y Jo uonoaIIp oY) I9pun
P2SO[d Udq SBY AII[I08B] ) USYM JIOM 0)
pexmbar askodwe uy (1) - (1) 'posord
ST A1[roey oy powrad oty 10§ paIom sInoy
JO Ioquunu Sy I0J sIseq INOY-I0)-INOY ue
U0 Tonesuadwod I3)SeSIp 9A13091 “UOKIPPL
Ul ‘pue JI0Mm JO SINOY IM PINPLID 3q
[T2YS $201AISS Jenuassa Suipraoid ookorduma
uy (T)(V) "sAep1joy pue SuOnIpuoo
KoudGrows Suump pawnoprad yiom

Ioj uoryesuadwos [euonippe apracid o1
uonoas s 30 uoneald oy sesodoxd uorun

- (NOLLDAS MHAN) 9 U0U33S :£1/67/11

onb smers £1/81/Z1

owny,

K1o1esuaduo)AI0 M JO SINOY - €7

SINTIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVIS

T IDILAV

SIPNIY PIA[OSAIU[)
JUIWIIITY 1ouddody 6I-810T 183X [BISI] 10] suonenosaN

LT0T 8T WqURRq

0T "ST 1_3QUIID( :Jo se suonenodaN surureseg 3ARIN[O0)) JO SNYB)G
0202 ‘0€ dung sadxXy JUIWRISY JUI.LIN))
WA)SAG [PUUOSIIJ IS - JU[) I8 YBIH [BUOISSIJOIJ
UONRIIOSSY SasINN BPLIOLL




WV 8¥:TT ‘8T02/8/T

SJ0 ¥ 84

2P AIRSISATUTY

Iayy 1ayye porrad Aed 1811y o) 2A1031J0

eseardul (%, 1) JuooIad ouo € 9A100a1

[]144 SOTAISS JO 2I0W IO SIB3A (G) 2A1)

['s10edut ¥)[4AUSWISINSI SOPNIUL|  SABY OYM S[BUOISSJOL] 28] Yyesy [V »

TUNOUTy “Paje[nofed Sem SAOQER WO 94,¢ pue {)ep AIesioAruuy

Y} 12)Je Sem UOHR[NO[ED 9 JO SISkq JY1 nayy 1eyye powad Aed 1511y o)) 0ANOSIYS

Se pasn 9jer oseq Sy [, ‘(1A JmMUL UL I0J 95BIOUT (%7) Juad1ad om) B 9AT001

%1 21 sapnjour [e101 3} Y3noyy ‘61/¢/4 Uo [[14 OOTAJOS JO 9I0WL IO S1BIA () U9}

SIe3A ¢ yoeds pinom ASy) ‘¢ 1(0Z/¢/b JO 31ep| oARY oym S[eUOISSIJOI] 01R)) YIBSH [[V »

a1y & pey dako[dws ot} J1) 6107 ‘0¢ Sunf ‘o1ep ATRSIOATIUY

JO sB 2INUD) SY) SUIILISISP 0] S)e(] IDIAIDG Ioy) 1eyge porrad Aed 1811y o) 9ANOSIYS

STONUNUO) PAstt ‘BA0QR UOTIRINOTED ,¢ Y} 9seaI0UT (%) 1u00I1od Q0N B 9A10031

woy peo[umop Juis()] N7 7§ - 901AI9S JO|  [[Ia 9OIAISS JO IOUI JO SI1BAK (S1) uoayy

s1eak U0 paseq sas4ordws jiun Sururedieq| aaey oym S[RUOISSIJOIJ 238D YIBAH [[V »

10§ seseazout Aed 103 [esodoid suorun)|  :sesearour Aed sjep Aresaarumry sosodoid

ST Jo eummsa 3unsod §40 LI/OE/I1| VNI 9L - TNOILOTS MAN) 9 Uono55
['s1oedun oI pusmamar sapnjour
wunowry ‘g14 9°791°¢ 01 parjdde asearsuy
"810C ‘1 AInf 2Anooys suopisod jre 10§
aunsnlpe Aed 96 e paremore)] NET1$
- 8107 ‘T Anf oanoagge Aed jo 9jer aseq

Tioy) ur 946 Jo asearout Aed aannadwos| 107 Ay ut pourad Aed js1y oY) 5AN00TJR

B 9AT9001 jrun Sururedieg oy) ur saakopduwe (%) 1udo1ad 9AT JO asEAIOUT pIROq

21q13y5 [1e 1t yesodoud suoruny 31} SSOIDE UL JATIOAI [IM S[BUOISSAJOI ]

9y} JO drewmsa 3unsoo g0 L1/0¢/11 aIe]) WeaH [V - T UON9eS :L1/67/11 'S[243] Aed yuormod ureldy :L1/67/11 S98EM - ST
SINANWINOD TYSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd HLVILS AIDILIAV
SO PIA[OSIIU)

NRWRIZY U0y 61-§10T 1¥3X [EISL] 10J SUONENOSIN

L

10T "SI 12qUIdR( :jo st suoyenodaN Suruiedieg aAndI[[0)) Jo Snj¥)S
0702 ‘0€ dungp sdadxj Jusmraady Jua.LIN))
WI)SAS [PUUOSIdJ 938)§ - U[) 3a8)) YP[EIH [CUOISSYOI
UONIBIIOSSY SISINN BPLIOL]




NV 8V:1T ‘8T0Z/8/T

530584

[TeWI-2 BIA UOIU() 3y} 0) pepraoid
KouaSe Aq erep juowided [enuoIspp
Buws 3urresep podory i 1/81/C1

['s1ordun vH1Auswamas

SOpO[OUT JUNOWY "PUnOI I8k 1rys

swes oy syrom adAodur oy jeyyy souinsse
PUE J1ys 1431 Sy 10J SINOY 69 pue

YIS SuruaAs oY) 10 sInoy ¢69 Sunpom

9q 0) paumsse d1oM SIS SUTL)OI Funrom
seakordwry “(sIoy (g(z) punor reak

11ys 1ey) syrom aahorduwe ey Surunsse
pue Sunjiom AQuarms s1 s9kojdwe

ay1 ey} YIys Jo adAy o) uo paseq a1om
suonenore) "we)sAs 1sxg aydoad o woyy
e)ep uonisod Sursn paje[no[es sem Junowe
parewnss o 1] LeH*809¢ - sjesodoxd
§.Uoru Jo sreumsa Sunsod gdo :L1/0¢/11

‘TENULISIP YIS JOUSTY e 10]

ansmbaxaid e Suraq suonIpuod sanpeduwros
[e90] pue spuny jo A)I[Iqe[IeAE oy} O)
syeads je a3endue| 10e1U00 SOYLIS Os[e
[esodoxd s,uorun) oqy, ‘wre go:9 pue urd
00:$ U3am12q [[€J SINOY 3}Jom s sekodws
a1 yo KQyoleur & uoym popracid

ApUSLING ST [ENUDIONIP YIS V :L1/67/11

(1ow a1e 9A0qE (V) UT BLISILIO ST} UM
pted aq Aewr (anoy 1ad ('] § JO Junowe
uaLmd oy woky dpy) oy 1od 00'z$

uey) 13)8aI3 [RHUSISIIIP 1JIYS € ‘osudisop
JO $901AISG JUSUISFRURA] JO ATRI0108S o)
4q 1eaoxdde uodn pue pagmsnf usym - (g)

weQ(:9 pue wdQ:§ Jo simoy

3] ueaMmIaq [[e] PaxIom sinoy s, aako0jdue
ay} o Aytofew € a1aym JIUS € 0} pausisse
ST 30A0[dwd oY) UaYM PUE [EHUIISLFIP IS
Aed 0y uorssajoid oy ur sonoerd Surreasid
U3 5131 udyMm pred aq [[Im [ENUSISHIP

yrys moy 15d 0p'z$ oYy “Inoy 1od

00°'T$ Jo Junouwre JuaLmo oY) woy dn ‘moy
1ad ()(°7$ JO JUNOWE 5Y) UT [ENUSISIIIP

Jiys e sasodoxd worun oy (V) :L1/67/11

onb sme1g :/1/81/21

Aed [enuaiagI(q - 97

SINAWINOD

TVSO4dOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

TIOLLAV

SI[OILIY PIA[oSdIU[)
YPWIIZY Jouddody 61-810T 183X [€ISL] 10§ SUODEN0FIN

Ll

07 "8T 13qURR( :Jo st suonenosaN Sunmeseg 9A1RIIN[0)) JO SNIB)g
0207 ‘0¢ dunp saaidxy JuamAISY Jud.Lan))
WAYSAS [JUUOSIIJ d)u)S - JIU[) dI€)) [I[EIH [EUOISSIJOIJ
UONRBIOSSY SISINN BPLIOL]




Wd 9S:€ ‘8T0Z/9/T

T40T 84

‘Jesodoxd sape1g a1
0} $9013e AJoANEIUS) OTUN) SYL, :L1/67/11

'610C

‘I Arenuef 9An0oys ‘e[ WEAH S[qnonpaq
Y31H a1 10§ asnods yoea 10y gyuowr rod

S1°CES Pue UB]q Ml prepue)§ oy) 10§ asnods
1oea 10f yuowt 1od (6¢ 03 93ueyd Jjim vl
Souemsy] qiesH dnoin) seakorduryg syeg o

ur 3urjedronred ssnods yoes 10 uonr sod S1$
Jo swnruroxd 105 Surpraocid weroiq ssnodg o
Jo uoneoyipow e sesodod oye)g oY, :LT/L1/T1

SIJouaq 9OURINSU] - /7

SINAWINOD

'TVSOdO3d NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

H'IOLLAV

"suonedydunl [edsy 31 03 anp papnpur st ‘sanaed 3 £q 03 paaaSe ApAneu) Bp1IR Surmojoy oy,

YWY 10uddoay] 6T-8T0T I8dX [¥ISL] 10] SuonenogaN
LTOT "8T 12qUIdR( :Jo se suoneno3aN SurureSreq 2And9[o)) jo sme)g
8107 ‘0 duny saudxq Juomdasy JuaLIn))
WIYSAS [QUUOSIIJ 91¥)S - JIU[) dLB)) [I[BIF [euoIsSSajorg

HOTIEIIOSS Y

"IN epLofy




FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 1 0f 10

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and Association to encourage informal discussions between
supervisors and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view
to reaching an understanding, which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by

this Article.
SECTION 1 — Definitions
As used in this Article:

(A)  “Grievance” shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of the Agreement.

(B)  “Grievant” shall mean an employee or group of employees having the same
grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one employee shall be designated by the group to
act as spokesperson and be responsible for processing the grievance.

(C)  “Days” shall mean business days. “Business days” refers to the ordinary business
hours, i.e., 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the
recipient is located. Furthermore, “business days” do not include any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list
furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a
suspension of grievance processing as agreed in writing by the parties. “Business days” also do
not include a day(s) on which the offices of DMS or any agency employing bargaining unit
members are closed under an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency
condition or disaster under the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(e).

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A)  Ifagrievant or the Association has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Public Employees Relations Commission, the
grievant or the Association shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and the election

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 2 of 10

shall be binding on the grievant or the Association. In the case of a duplicate filing, the action first
filed will be the one processed.

(B) A grievant who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or
other initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether the grievant is
represented by the Association. When a grievant has elected Association representation, both the
grievant and the Association Representative shall be notified of Step 1 meetings. Further, written
communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both the grievant and the
Association Grievance Representative, and the decision agreed to by the state and the Association
shall be binding on the grievant. Where Association representation is authorized as provided in
this Agreement and is requested by a grievant, the grievant’s representative shall be selected from
the list of Association Grievance Representatives or Association Staff Representatives which has
been provided to the state in accordance with Article 5 of this Agreement.

1 If a grievant selects an Association Grievance Representative in a grievance
which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Association Grievance
Representative may be allowed a reasonable amount of time to investigate the grievance and to
represent the grievant at Step 1 meetings held during regular work hours. Hours spent by an
Association Grievance Representative to investigate the grievance and to represent the grievant
shall be deemed as time worked. Such time shall be subject to prior approval by the Association
Grievance Representative’s immediate supervisor; however, approval of time off will not be
withheld if the Association Grievance Representative can be allowed such time without interfering
with, or unduly hampering, the operations of the unit to which the Association Grievance
Representative is assigned. The Association Grievance Representative’s immediate supervisor will
notify the grievant’s supervisor prior to allowing the Association Grievance Representative time

off to investigate the grievance.

(2)  Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere with state
operations.

3) As indicated in Article 5 of this Agreement, the Association Grievance
Representative in the same work unit, or the work location closest to the grievant’s, shall be
selected to represent the employee. In no case shall an Association Grievance Representative be
allowed to travel more than 25 miles from their official work location in order to investigate a
grievance. (As an exception during the term of the 2017-2020 Agreement only, Grievance
Representatives may travel up to 50 miles from their official work location if necessary due to the
unavailability of a Representative closer to the grievant’s work location. This exception expires on

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 3 of 10

the termination date for the 2017-2020 Agreement unless continued by a subsequent ratified
agreement.) The Association will make a reasonable effort to ensure that it trains a sufficient
number of Association Grievance Representatives in order to minimize any such travel.

“4) An Association Grievance Representative selected to represent an employee
as provided in this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting.

(5) An employee who files a grievance in accordance with this Article, or the
designated spokesperson in a class action grievance, will be considered a required participant at
the Step 1 grievance meeting. Upon agreement by the agency and the Association, the grievant or
designated spokesperson may not be required to attend the meeting.

(C)  Ifthe grievant is not represented by the Association, an adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. Further, the Association shall be given
reasonable opportunity to be present at a meeting called for the resolution of such grievance. A
grievant using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure
established by the parties to the Agreement. The Association shall not be bound by the decision of
a grievance or arbitration in which the grievant was not represented by the Association.

SECTION 3 — Procedures

(A)  Grievances filed in accordance with this Article should be presented and handled
promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances. Nothing
in this procedure shall preclude an employee from presenting concerns through informal
discussions with management representative(s). Grievances may be filed and responded to by
facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery. If sent via electronic facsimile, the burden
shall be on the sending party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile number before
transmission. Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during regular business hours (8:00
am. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the recipient is located).
Documents received after business hours shall be considered received the next business day.

(B)  There shall be no reprisals against participants in the procedures contained herein
by reason of such participation.

(C)  The filing or pendency of a grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action complained
of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 4 of 10

(D)  The resolution of a grievance prior to arbitration shall not establish a precedent
binding on either the Association or the state in other cases.

(E) If a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbitration hearing is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the regular work hours of a grievant, a representative of the grievant,
or any required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at grievance
meetings, mediation, or arbitrations outside of a participant’s regular work hours shall not be
deemed time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of participants attending such meetings
on behalf of the Association.

(F)  Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

(1) Step 1

(a) In filing a grievance at Step 1, the grievant or her designated
representative shall submit to the Step 1 management representative within 15 days following the
occurrenece-ofthe-event giving rise to the grievance a grievance form as contained in Appendix B
of this Agreement, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based,
the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested.
The grievance form will be submitted together with any document(s) the grievant would like to
have considered at Step 1.

(b) The Step 1 management representative or designee shall meet to
discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant’s
representative, if any, within 10 days following the date of the meeting.

(2) Step2

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the grievant or the
grievant’s representative may submit the grievance in writing on a grievance form as contained in
Appendix B of this Agreement, to the Agency Head or designee within 10 days following receipt
of the decision at Step 1. The grievant must complete every section of the grievance form filed at
Step 2 as similarly completed for a grievance filed at Step 1 and file it together with all written
responses and documents in support of the grievance.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 5 of 10

(b)  The Agency Head or designee may meet with the grievant and/or
designated representative to discuss the grievance. The Agency Head or designee shall
communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant’s representative, if any, within
15 days following receipt of the written grievance.

A3) Step 3 — Contract Language Disputes

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay,
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the grievant or the grievant’s designated
representative may submit the grievance in writing on the appropriate form as contained in
Appendix B of this Agreement to the Office Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of the
Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida,
32399-0950 within 15 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include
a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all written responses and
documents in support of the grievance. The grievant must complete every section of the grievance
form filed at Step 3 as similarly completed for a grievance filed at Step 1 or 2.

(b) The Department of Management Services shall discuss the
grievance with the Association representative, or the grievant or representative if not represented
by the Association. The Secretary of the Department of Management Services shall communicate
a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant’s representative, if any, within 15 days
following receipt of the written grievance.

€)) Grievance Mediation

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be conducted
by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been submitted to
arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the
scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (5)(b) below may be extended by
mutual agreement beyond five months. Either party may withdraw from the mediation process
with written notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 6 of 10

3 Step 4 — Arbitration

(a) If a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base
pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal)
was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the Association Staff Representative may appeal
the grievance in writing to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration form as contained in Appendix
C of this Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract
language dispute as described in (3), above, is not resolved at Step 3, the Association may appeal
the grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this
Agreement together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. If, at
the initial written step, the Association declined to represent the grievant because she was not a
member of the Association, the grievant may appeal the grievance to arbitration.

(b) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related grievances
for hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible
but no more than five months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration Form. If the
arbitrator initially selected is not available to schedule within this period, the Arbitration
Coordinator shall contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who
can schedule within the prescribed period. A party may request of the arbitrator, with notice to the
other party and the Arbitration Coordinator, an extension of time/continuance based on
documented unusual and compelling circumstances.

(©) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of five arbitrators,
selected by the state and the Association to serve in rotation for any case or cases submitted. The
Department of Management Services® Arbitration Coordinator schedule the arbitration hearing
with the state and Association representatives and the arbitrator listed next on the panel in rotation
and shall coordinate the arbitration hearing time, date, and location.

(d) The Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule arbitration hearings at
times and locations agreed to by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence,
the location of witnesses, existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors; however
under normal circumstances, hearings will be held in Tallahassee.

(e) At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration
hearing, the parties shall file with the arbitrator, and provide to each other, a list of witnesses to be
called at the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, and a brief statement of the material facts or matters
relevant to the grievance about which each witness will testify. A party may file a written request
with the arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the other party, for an exception to the filing time

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 7 of 10

limits for good cause. If such exception is granted, the other party may request that the hearing be
rescheduled if necessary for the party to respond to the late filed witness information.

® Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted
to address only the arbitrability issue. In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the
panel of arbitrators, (see (5)(c) above) who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision
within 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose. The hearing on this issue
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five
business days of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of
the parties and the arbitrator. The fees and expenses of the expedited arbitration shall be shared
equally by the parties. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another arbitrator
shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with the provisions of
(5)(c) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s).

(g)  The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with their jurisdiction and authority under
this Agreement, the decision shall be final and binding on the state, the Association, the grievant(s),
and the employees. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following
provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue the decision not later than 2230
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, shall be
determined by applying a preponderance of the evidence standard, and shall set forth the
arbitrator’s opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issues, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not
essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

4, The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

5. The arbitrator is to consider the facts and circumstances
related to the act or omission on which a disciplinary action is based, as well as the period over

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 8 of 10

which any prior discipline of the employee has taken place, in determining the level of discipline
to be imposed.

6. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make
any decisions:

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to,
subtracting from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or
of applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers,
duties and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities
have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement.

7. The arbitrator’s award may include back pay to the
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards.

a. An award for back pay shall not exceed the amount
of pay the grievant would otherwise have earned at their regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by
the amount of wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance
benefits during the back pay period, shall not include punitive damages, and shall not be retroactive
to a date earlier than 15 days prior to the date the grievance was initially filed.

b. If the Association is granted a continuance to
reschedule an arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be
responsible for back pay for the period between the original hearing date or the end of the five
month period described in (5)(b), above, whichever is later, and the rescheduled date.

(h)  The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be equally shared by
the parties. Each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its own
representatives, attorneys and witnesses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee and expense statement
to the Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator’s contract including
state travel expense rules and policies.

(1) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the proceedings.

Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter. If either party orders a
transcript of the proceedings, the party shall pay for the cost of the transcript and provide a

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 9 of 10

photocopy to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript to the other
party upon written request and payment of copying expenses ($.15 per page).

) The Association will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to
which it was not a party.

SECTION 4 — Time Limits

(A)  Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits in Section 3 shall be
deemed a waiver of the grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to submit a grievance to
the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at
that step.

(B)  Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limit shall permit the grievant, or the Association where appropriate, to
proceed to the next step.

(C)  The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any step
of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance, as long as necessary,
provided there is an agreement by both sides.

(D)  Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 — Exceptions

(A)  Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit
the Association or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of any employee without their
consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, an appeal, an
administrative action before a governmental board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by an
individual employee or group of employees, or by the Association.

(B)  All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions:

(D If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the agency
Step 1 Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or Step 3, as

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 10 of 10

appropriate, by submitting a grievance form as setforthin-Step-J-{contained in Appendix B} within
15 days following the eeeurrenee-event giving rise to the grievance.

(2) If the grievance arises from an agency action listed in Article 7(C) of this

Agreement, a grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 by submitting a grievance form as contained in
Appendix B within 15 days following the event giving rise to the grievance.

3) The Association shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on
behalf of employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or
application of this Agreement. The grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against
an employee. The Association’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from
proceeding in another forum on the same issue. The class action grievance form shall identify the
specific group (i.e., employees’ job classification(s), work unit(s), institution(s), etc.) adversely
impacted by the dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement A class

action grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or, where more than one agency is implicated, Step 3
of this procedure-in-accordance-with-the-provisions-setforth-therein; by submitting a grievance

form as contained in Appendix B within 15 days ef the-eceurrence-offollowing the event giving
rise to the grievance.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal — Article 7 — Status Quo
Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 7
DISCIPLINARY ACTION

(A)  An employee who has attained permanent status in her current position may be
disciplined (reduction in base pay, suspension, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway,
demotion, or dismissal) only for just cause as provided in section 110.227, Florida Statutes, and
Rule 60L-36.005, F.A.C. Cause shall include, but is not limited to, poor performance, negligence,
inefficiency or inability to perform assigned duties, insubordination, violation of provisions of law
or agency rules, conduct unbecoming a public employee, misconduct, habitual drug abuse, or
conviction of any crime.

(B) A reduction in base pay that is required by the State Personnel System Rules shall
not be grievable. Oral reprimands shall not be grievable. Written reprimands shall be subject to
the grievance procedure in Article 6 if the employee has attained permanent status in her current
position; the decision is final and binding at Step 2.

(C)  An employee with permanent status in her current position may file, by personal
delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, an appeal of a reduction in base pay,
suspension, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion, or dismissal with the
Public Employees Relations Commission within 21 days following the date of receipt of notice of
such action from the agency, under the provisions of section 110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes.
In the alternative, such personnel actions may be grieved through the Arbitration Step, without
review at Step 3, in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6 of this Agreement.

(D) An agency may deduct special compensatory leave from an employee’s leave
balance equal to the length of a disciplinary suspension in lieu of the employee serving the
suspension. The agency has sole discretion in making such determination. If the employee does
not have sufficient special compensatory leave to cover the entire suspension period, the agency
shall deduct annual leave to cover the remaining portion of the suspension. Employees from whom
leave is deducted will continue to report for duty. The employee’s personnel file will reflect a
disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the employee serves the suspension or has leave

deducted.

(E)  An employee who has not attained permanent status in her current position shall
not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when disciplined.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal — Article 7 — Status Quo
Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 2 of 2

(F)  Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in their
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto.

(G)  The state will make a good faith effort to initiate disciplinary actions within 60 days
from the date of actual knowledge by the person having the authority to initiate discipline of the
event giving rise to the disciplinary action. If circumstances necessitate a longer period, except in
the case of a criminal investigation, disciplinary actions must be initiated within 120 days of the
event giving rise to the disciplinary action.

(H)  The state is to consider the facts and circumstances related to the act or omission
on which employee discipline is based, as well as the period over which any prior discipline of the
employee has taken place, in determining the level of discipline to be imposed.

(D An employee may request that an Association Staff Representative or Grievance
Representative be present during any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is
being questioned relative to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination
conference in which suspension or dismissal of the employee is being considered. The purpose of
the disciplinary investigation will be explained to the employee at the beginning of the meeting.

@) Except in extraordinary situations, an employee who has permanent status in her
current position shall be given notice of proposed suspension or dismissal in accordance with Rule
60L-36, Florida Administrative Code and section 110.227(5)(a), Florida Statutes. When the
employee requests a conference to explain or refute the charges made against the employee, the
conference shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Rule 60L-36, Florida
Administrative Code, and section 110.227(5)(a), Florida Statutes.

(K)  Each agency will make a good faith effort to have a review by an appropriate
health care professional, licensed health care risk manager, or an appropriate internal reviewing
body, prior to taking disciplinary action against an employee when the medical or professional
competence of the employee is questioned.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



The State of Florida
and

Florida Nurses Association, Office and Professional Employees
International Union, Local 713, AFL-CIO

Union Contract Proposals 2018

Article 7: Disciplinary Action

Add new sentence in (1)
(1). An employee may request that an Association Staff Representative or Grievance
Representative be present during any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the
employee is being questioned relative to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during
a predetermination conference in which suspension or dismissal of the employee is
being considered. When in the process of an employee being disciplined, he/she will
be informed in writing of the nature of the discipline prior to the meeting or the
predetermination conference.



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal — Article 23 — Status Quo
Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 1 of 4

Article 23
HOURS OF WORK / COMPENSATORY TIME

SECTION 1 - Workweek/Compensatory Time

(A)  The workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours unless the employee
is on an agency established extended work period.

(B) Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with Rule
60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(C)  Excluded employees who are required to work in excess of the hours of the regular
work period or an agency established extended work period will earn regular compensatory leave
credits on an hour-for-hour basis. In accordance with the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0043(5),
Florida Administrative Code, and an agency’s approved Regular Compensatory Leave Payment
Plan, excluded employees who are directed to work hours in excess of the regular work period or
an approved extended work period due to extraordinary circumstances may be paid for the excess
hours worked provided funds are available for such payment. The excess hours worked shall be
rounded to the nearest quarter hour based on the actual time the employee was required to work.

(D) The Association agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees.

(E) An agency may compensate employees in included positions for overtime as
follows: An employee who is filling an included position may waive payment for overtime and
elect to have the overtime hours credited to “FLSA compensatory leave.” Such election will apply
until changed again, and only to workdays starting on the day of the change and in which hours
worked in the work period exceed the contracted hours. Overtime hours that the employee elects
to have credited as “FLSA compensatory leave” will accrue at the rate of one and one-half hours
for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will be permitted to accumulate a maximum of
80 hours of “FLSA compensatory leave” credits which may be taken in any increments if agreed
to by the employee and the supervisor. If agreement is not reached, the supervisor may, with a
minimum of five workdays notice, require the employee to use such leave credits at any time in
increments of full work days. However, all unused “FLSA compensatory leave” credits at the close
of business on December 31 and June 30, or other dates approved by the Department of
Management Services, shall be paid for at the employee’s regular hourly rate in accordance with

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal — Article 23 — Status Quo
Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 2 of 4

Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code as amended. An employee who separates from Career
Service, moves to an excluded position, or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all
unused “FLSA compensatory leave” in accordance with the above.

SECTION 2 — Rest Periods

Whenever practicable, employees’ daily work schedules will provide for a 15 minute rest
period during each one-half work shift. The rest period shall be scheduled whenever possible at
the middle of such a one-half shift. The state, however, shall vary the scheduling of such period
when the demands of work so require. No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a rest
period as provided herein.

SECTION 3 - Flextime

A full-time employee may request approval of a variable work schedule under an agency’s
family support personnel policies. If the employee requests a regular schedule of more or less than
an eight hour workday, approval may be requested in accordance with the provisions of Rule 601L-
34, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 4 — Work Schedule

(A)  Except in emergency situations, normal work schedules showing the employees’
shifts, workdays, and hours will be posted on applicable bulletin boards no less than 10 calendar
days in advance and will reflect at least a one-month schedule. With the prior approval of the
supervisor(s) and provided there is no penalty to the state, employees may mutually agree to
exchange days or shifts on a temporary basis.

1) The state will make a good faith effort to equalize required shift rotation
and weekend work among employees in the same functional unit whenever this can be
accomplished without interfering with efficient operations.

(2) When an employee’s shift has been changed, the state will make a good
faith effort to schedule the employee to be off work for a minimum of two shifts.

3) Except in emergencies, employees will not be required to work more than
two different shifts in a workweek.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal — Article 23 — Status Quo
Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 3 of 4

4) The state will attempt to grant at least two weekends off per month.

SECTION 5 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A)  Eaming of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave
credits may be earned only in the following instances:

@) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

2) For work performed in the employee’s assigned office, facility, or region
which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor or any other disaster or emergency
condition in accordance with Rule 601.-34.0071, F.A.C.

(B)  General Provisions for Using Special Compensatory Leave Credits in Accordance
with Rule 601L-34.0044, F.A.C.

(N Employee Leave Requests. An employee shall be required to use available
special compensatory leave credits prior to the agency approving the following leave types:

(a) Regular compensatory leave credits.

b) Annual leave credits, unless such annual leave credits are being
substituted for an employee’s unpaid individual medical leave granted in accordance with the
federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or parental leave granted
in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.

(2) Compelled Use of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. An employee may
be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit balances.

(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After November 1, 2017.

(1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(A)(1), on or after November 1, 2017, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31
that immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs
earlier, shall be paid at the employee’s current regular hourly rate of pay.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal — Article 23 — Status Quo
Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 4 of 4

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(A)2), on or after November 1, 2017, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end
of the work period in which the leave is credited shall be paid at the employee’s current regular

hourly rate of pay.

3) Each agency shall schedule employees earing special compensatory leave
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after November 1, 2017, to be
used within the time limits specified in subsections (C)1 and (C)2. However, if scheduling such
leave within such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing
requirements needed to ensure public safety, the special compensatory leave remaining at the end
of each time limit shall be paid at the employee’s current regular hourly rate of pay.

(D)  Pay Provision for Special Compensatory Leave.

)] Upon separation from the Career Service, an employee shall be paid only
for the following unused special compensatory leave credits:

(a) Special compensatory leave credits earned prior to October 9, 2012
(Leave Type 0055);

(b) Special compensatory leave credits earned after November 1, 2017
that have not yet been paid pursuant to Section 6(C)(3) of this Article.

2) Such credits shall be paid at the employee’s current regular rate of pay.

3) Any special compensatory leave hours earned prior to November 1, 2017
that were forfeitable under the provisions of previous contracts or agreements remain forfeitable
upon expiration of the applicable time periods and are not eligible for payment.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



The State of Florida
and

Florida Nurses Association, Office and Professional Employees
International Union, Local 713, AFL-CIO

Union Contract Proposals 2018

Article 23: Hours of Work/Compensatory Time
New Section 6- Work During Emergency Conditions and Holidays

When, pursuant to the Personnel Rules, an employee is determined to be necessary for
providing essential services in those facilities which have been closed under Executive order for
emergency conditions or; is required to work on an observed holiday; or, is required to work
extra hours during a holiday work week or pay period, the employee shall be compensated as
described below. Compensation and any leave usage or credit shall be determined at the end of
the 40 hour work week for included employees and pay period for excluded employees on an
hour-for-hour basis.

(A) Work during declared emergency conditions by Executive Order:

(1) An employee providing essential services shall be credited with hours of work and,
in addition, receive disaster compensation on an hour-for-hour basis for the number
of hours worked for the period the facility is closed.

(2) When an employee is determined to not be necessary for providing essential
services in those facilities which have been closed under Executive Order, the
employee shall be eligible for administrative leave up to an amount equal to the
employee’s scheduled work hours for the period the facility is closed.

(3) At the end of the work week or pay period, as appropriate, employees shall be
compensated in the following order:

(a) Employees shall be credited with time actually worked. If the hours worked
exceed the normal pay for the work week or pay period, employees will be
compensated for all overtime earned;

(b) If the hours actually worked are still below the normal pay for the work
week/pay period, leave shall be used to bring the employee to the normal rate
of pay in the following order:



1. Any annual leave, sick leave, or regular compensatory leave had been
approved;

2. Any administrative leave for which the employee is eligible. Any unused
administrative leave eligibility that is not needed to bring the employee to
the normal pay shall be cancelled.

(c) In addition to the above, the employee providing essential services shall receive
disaster compensation to be paid at the employee’s current regular hourly rate
of pay for each hour worked while the facility is closed by order of the Governor,
regardless of whether overtime was earned or leave used during the work week
or pay period.

(B) Work in all other circumstances where facilities are closed; work on an observed
holiday; or extra hours worked during a holiday work week or pay period:

(1) An employee required to wok when the facility has been closed under the direction
of the Department of Management Services or the agency head due to any other
condition not covered by an Executive Order, would be eligible for special
compensatory leave on an hour-for-hour basis for the number of hours worked each
day that the facility is closed.

(2) An employee required to work on a holiday shall be eligible for special
compensatory leave equal to the time worked on the holiday, not to exceed the
number of hours in the employee’s established workday. However, if the holiday
falls on an established workday of less than 8 hours, the employee will be eligible for
an 8-hour holiday.

(3) An employee required to work extra hours during a holiday work week or pay period
shall be eligible for special compensatory leave equal to the number of extra hours
worked.

(4) At the end of the work week or pay period, as appropriate, the employee shall be
compensated in the following order:

(a) The employee shall first be credited with time actually worked;

(b) Eligible special compensatory hours during the work week/pay period will be
added to the hours of actual work to bring the hours worked up to the normal
hours for the work week/pay period. Any remaining eligible special
compensatory leave hours shall be converted to special compensatory leave
credits;

(c) If the employee is still below the normal pay for the work week/pay period,
leave shall be used to bring the employee to the normal rate of pay in the
following order:

1. Any annual leave, sick leave, or regular compensatory leave that had been
approved;



2. Any administrative leave for which the employee is eligible. Any unused
administrative leave eligibility that is not needed to bring the employee to
the normal pay shall be cancelled.

(C) Administrative leave shall not count as hours worked for overtime purposes.

(D) The representatives of the Association shall have the opportunity to consult with each
agency employing unit members on the Agency’s Emergency Comprehensive Plan with
regard to compensation and overtime pay during declared emergencies. Benefits
provided for in an agency’s Emergency Comprehensive Plan as a result of the
consultation may differ from the terms of this section.

New Section 7- Department of Health Employees and Emergency/Disaster Compensation

(A) The Florida Nurses Association {(herein the “FNA”) and the State of Florida desire to
recognize the sacrifices of those employees who serve in the capacity of health care
professionals during a declared emergency. The provisions of this section apply to this
Unit’s professional health care employees who are employees of the State of Florida
Department of Health.

(B} When health care professional employees in the Department of Health are deployed to
perform services during a declared emergency, but their regular work location is not
closed, the following compensation arrangement will be implemented:

(1) The Department of Health professional health care unit employees shall be
considered as “included” employees for the purposes of overtime compensation for
the duration of the declared emergency or disaster.

(2) The “included” status shall apply only during the work week(s) in which the
employee is deployed to the emergency or disaster area.

(3) This compensation is appropriate as deployed employees are required to provide a
wide variety of services to those in need of health care and assistance during the
emergency or disaster, involving an increase in “included” type duties.

(4) Employees who work at their home agency work location or whose home agency
work location is closed as a result of a declared emergency or disaster will not be
considered “included” but rather will continue to be compensated in accordance
with this agreement.

(5) The ability to provide this compensation is in furtherance of the existing policies on
connecting employees to included status on a temporary basis in these
circumstances.

(C) An alleged violation of the provisions of this section can be grieved in accordance with
the grievance and arbitration process included in Article 6, Grievance Procedure, of this

agreement.



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 29, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions — General

Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act
and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 3 — Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance
with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 4 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 5 - Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



The State of Florida
and

Florida Nurses Association, Office and Professional Employees
International Union, Local 713, AFL-CIO

Union Contract Proposals 2018

Article 25: Wages

Section 1- All Health Care Professionals will receive an across the board increase of five percent
(5%) effective the first pay period in July 2018.

New Section 6- Anniversary Date

All Health Care Professionals will receive a three percent (3%) increase effective the first pay
period after their Anniversary date for those who have fifteen (15) years or more of service.

All Health Care Professionals will receive a two percent (2%) increase effective the first pay
period after their Anniversary date for those who have ten (10) years or more of service.

All Health Care Professionals will receive a one percent (1%) increase effective the first pay
period after their Anniversary date for those who have five (5) years or more of service.



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal — Article 26 — Status Quo
Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 18, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 26
DIFFERENTIAL PAY

(A) A shift differential in the amount of $1.00 per hour will be paid when it is the
prevailing practice in the profession to pay shift differential and when the employee is assigned to
a shift where a majority of the employee’s hours worked fall between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and

6:00 a.m.

(B)  When justified and upon approval by the Secretary of Management Services or
designee, subject to the availability of funds, a shift differential greater than $1.00 per hour may
be paid when the criteria in (A) above are met and where the local competitive conditions justify
a higher shift differential.

For the State For the FNA
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

Date Date



The State of Florida
and

Florida Nurses Association, Office and Professional Employees
International Union, Local 713, AFL-CIO

Union Contract Proposals 2018

Article 26: Differential Pay

(A) A shift differential in the amount of $2.00 per hour will be paid when it is the prevailing
practice in the profession to pay shift differential and when the employee is assigned to
a shift where a majority of the employee’s hours worked fall between the hours of
5:00pm and 6:00am.

(B) When justified and upon approval by the Secretary of Management Services or
designee, subject-to-the-availability-offunds; a shift differential greater than $2.00 per
hour may be paid when the criteria in (A) above are met and-where-the-loeal



FNA/Professional Health Care Unit
State Proposal Article 27

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 29, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

The employee share of premiums for the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Emplovees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the Hi gh
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019,

For the State - Eor-thec FNA ~

—= Za
ZV{W Z/ W {/ = gy
Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick -

State’s Chief Labor Negotiator

Dratnbec 29 20,7

Date

Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association

ey
/ 4

Date



State Health Care Professional Collective Bargaining Unit - FNA (04)
Fiscal Year 2018-19 Wage Proposals

Union/lssue

Estimated
Cost

Comments

Article 23, Sections 6: Work during emergency
conditions and holidays

indeterminate

Article 23, Section 7: Department of Health
Employees and Emergency/Disaster Compensation

indeterminate

Article 25, Section 1: Across the board pay
increase of 5% effective the first pay period in July
2018.

$11.3m

Downloaded all positions for CBU 04 that were transferred into
LAS/PBS from PeopleFirst on 11/27/17. Caiculated a 5% pay
adjustment for all positions effective July 1, 2018. Increase
applied to 3,162.6 FTE. Amount includes retirement/FICA
impacts.

Article 25, Section 6: Pay increase based on
tenure: 15 years or more to receive a 3% increase;
10 years or more to receive a 2% increase; 5 years
or more to receive a 1% increase

$2.2m

Using download from the 5% calculation above, used Continuous
Service Date to determine the tenure as of June 30, 2019 (if the
employee had a hire date of 4/3/2014, they would reach 5 years
on 4/3/19, though the total includes the 1% for an entire year).
The base rate used as the basis of the calculation was after the
5% from above was calculated. Amount includes
retirement/FICA impacts.

Article 26: $1 increase in the hourly pay
employee’s working an evening or night shift.

$608,437

The estimated amount was calculated using position data from
the People First System. Calculations were based on the type of
shift that the employee is currently working and assuming that
employee works that shift year round (2,080 hours). Employees
working rotating shifts were assumed to be working 693 hours for
the evening shift and 693 hours for the night shift and assumes
that the employee works the same shift year round. Amount
includes retirement/FICA impacts.

Page 1 of 1




FPD - SEAG -
SES Attorneys



WV £Z:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T €401 '8d

(4.0]2q panunuoo)

. S90TATOg
Juaws3eurAl Jo 1da(T oy jo
Kieyoroag oy £q poaoidde j1 pueq
Aed o) JO UIMUITUTII 1) MO[Oq
P2[[Y 2q Aew uonisod jueoea v,
:a5en3ue] sppy -Aouaixa [eosy
€ JO 35ULISUI O} UT SUOTIRIII|
198pnq 01 anp pueq Aed paugisse

"SUOTIR)II] oY} JO WMULTUIL ST} UL} SS9
103pnq £q pajueLiem J1 papasu st afenSue| pred aq Aews sokopdwe uy :soes
s1y3 apnyour 03 [esodoxd ss1e1g 2y I - () Uon09g ye) a3en3ue] SOSIAQI () UONSY

"SUBSUI JTUOI}OS[D
1o Adoo prey fuondirossp uonisod

"suotun atp Jurpnpour ‘orgnd s o3 papraosd §,2040[dwo 0} $8200€ UOTU() pPUL

9q p[nom pue aIme[sI3aT oy) Aq pezLoyne 9a40[dws 107 Burpraoid eFenSue|

0q 3snu satpmys Aed sarsuoyordno)) SN SPpe (§) UonIag 'SOLIB[ES J0}9S

3O yoreasar euonerado Ajrep o) uo juswaSurgur deand pue o1qnd Jo juaunredacg

su01s1A01d SIY) 0) anp SOUE|ES J0303s SjpaLd o) Aq pajonpuod suostedwod

pue o1pqnd yo suosLiedwos yym uoTun) oY} g uotup) oy opraoid oy
opraoxd 03 jusunreds(y s Surnnbor aSenJuel yuounreda(q sy Surinber ofenSue; ue[q
sreunIyd 0} sasodoid ayeyg 9y - (V) uonoag onQ) smeIS £1/91/11 SIAOWISI (V) Uono9S :£1/91/11| Aed pue uonesiyisser) - 1

" Jusugurodde TeurSuo,, ue st juswnmodde yoeg
"Po1IaJsuen) 10 PIUSISSEAl JOU 218 $32K01dwd

SHS "901A13G 10018]) 21 0} a[qeardde "INVOVA 9Jo1Iy Suniapusi IoysueI]
A[UO SUONOE JIe I9JSUEI) PUEB JUSWUSISSEaY onQ smelg :L1/97/1T| oSenSuey [re seaoway :£1/91/11 pue Juswu3Isseay - 6
*90TATRg 1391€)) "INVOVA 9[omry Sunepusi
o 0 2[qeorrdde Auo s1 jey 1doouos e st Joke] onQ) smei§ :L[/91/11| oFen3uel e seowoy :£1/971/I1 SUONONPYY 99IOFIOM - §
SINANWNOD TVS0dOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVLS A IOILLYV
SIOIMIY PIAJOSAIUN)

JUIWNIZY 108SIIING GT-8(T JLIX [BISL] 10] SUONBNOSIN
LTO0T ‘p 13quuada( :jo st suonenosoN Sunuredaeg 2A13d9[[0)) Jo snje)g
810¢ ‘0€ sung saardxy Juamadidy jus.an))

UWI)SAS [UUOSIIJ )B)S - JU[) SAWIONY SAS
(OVAS) PNy shouaony saviojduy 9je)s



WV LT:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

Tesodoxd ON :L1/91/11

‘sonsst Sulgye)s 18I0 10
‘sonmnbauy Aed ‘wonuaier ssarppe
0} sjuaunsn(pe Aed A1euoroIosip

pue Aed j1eur 103 sopraoid - yyvo
‘g UONDAG “198pNq PIPUSUILIOIST
SJI0WRA0D) 10d (LT/PI/11

sadem - 81

"2IMB[SIZS] Sy} AQ POZLIOYINE SB SUOp
2q AJuo ued pue Aouade ot} Jo UONIISIP I
1e ore syueunsnipe Aed renpraipuj - () uonosg

W Siusunsn(pe gons Jo Sunrm

Ul pegnou oq Jjeys uowpn ay .
*srendordde ore syusunsn(pe usym
ueld Aed pue voneoyisse[d oy ur
pueq £ed e jsnlpe Kew jusunredsq
9y L, ‘SUIMO[[O] S SOPN[IUL 0S|y

‘sjuaunsnipe

ATe[es [eNpIATPUT JO UOTH() O}
Anou 0y Judunrede( oy SuLnnbas
s8enZue| seaowsy () uonOag

(aa0qe woy 3,u00)

ue[d
Aed pue UONBOLISSE]) - (]

SINIIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVIS

A IOLLAV

SI[ONIY PIA[OSAIU[)

JIIWIIZY 10S5990NG 6T~ (T ALK [BISI] 10} suonenodoN
LT0T ‘P 12quadd( :jo se suoneno3aN SurureSieg 9And9[[0)) JO SME)g

8107 ‘0¢ dunp saxidxy ymomadudy juaain)
WIJSAS [PUUOSIdJ 3)B)S - JU[) SAIUIOPY SHS
(OVAS) pino sfourony salojduy s)eyg

€J07 84



WV £Z°TT ‘810Z/8/T

(s1gsuaq 10 swnnwaid
ur a8ueyo ou) ond) sWeIS £L1/91/11

‘610C

‘1 Arenuef 29Anoaye ‘sjuedionied
901ATAG IaaI1e)) sk surnruraid
90URINSUI )Ly sures o) Aed

[Teys ue[q 2oueInsu] yijesy dnoin
ayy ut syuedionaed SS Sppe ‘os[y

"Ue[d YBSH S[qUonpa YSiH

o) 10§ sn0ds YoBs 10] ‘oG] ZES
pue ,Ug[{ qieal plepuels,

S 10J "ow/6$ 03 “ouwy/G 1§ woly
ue[d ‘suf yyjeay dnoin seakopduryg
9y} oy ut Sunedionaed

asnods yoea 103 swmrwaid
SOSBAIOUL ‘G 1/1/] SANOAYD ~ YV O
‘g UONYAG 123pnQq POPUSWIUIOIST
SJOWRA0T) Jad LT/ET/T1

S)ijound adueInsuy - 61

SINIWINOD

"TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

ATOILAV

SIPILIY PIA[OSdIU[)

JUDIUIRIZY A0SSIIINS 61-§1(T 183X [ISI] 10] suonenoSaN
LTOT ‘v 1oquadd( :jo st suonenosaN Sururesieq 9ANII[[0)) Jo Snyv)g

8107 ‘0€ dung soxydx7 JuamaaISy JmaLm)

WRJSAS [SUUO0SId] 3)B)S - JIU() SAIWIONY SHS

(OVAS) pino skewiony saakordury syeyg

€jo¢€8d



FPD / SES Attorneys Unit
State Proposal — Article 8
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Article 8
VACANT

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Attorneys Unit
State Proposal - Article 9
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 9
VACANT

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Attorneys Unit
State Proposal - Article 9
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 2 of 2

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Attorneys Unit
State Proposal - Article 10
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 10
CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN

(A)  The Department of Management Services shall continue to maintain a classification
and pay plan applicable to all positions in this unit, designed to attract and retain qualified
personnel consistent with applicable law, rules, and regulations.

(B)  The employing agency shall continue to maintain a position description for each
position on a current basis. Each employee and the Union shall be provided a—eepy—of-the

employee s positiondeseriptionaccess to current position descriptions. Upon request, an employee

shall be provided a copy of his position description, either by hard copv or electronic means.

(C)  The Department shall assign each position to its appropriate broadband level
according to the position description.

(D)  The classification and pay plan includes:

(1)  All approved pay bands;

(2) The-allocation-of each position-to-a-pay-breadbandJevel All approved Job

Families, Occupational Group Characteristics, and Occupation Profiles:; ands,

(3) Provisions governing the administration of the plan.

(E)  Upon making an original or any subsequent appointment to a Selected Exempt
Service position in this unit, the employing agency shall set the salary at an amount within the
assigned pay rangeband. Based-onthe-employee’sinitial-or subsequent-appraisaltThe Agency
Head may give an employee an increase in salary provided the total salary is within the assigned
pay band, funds are available for such increase, and suchthe increase is not specifically prohibited
by act of the Legislature. An employee may be paid less than the minimum of the assigned pay
band enly-due to budget limitations in the instance of a fiscal exigencyteircumstaneces._ A vacant
position may be filled below the minimum of the pay band if approved by the Secretary of the
Department of Management Services.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Attorneys Unit
State Proposal - Article 10
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 2 of 2

(F) Any salary adjustment-—shall-be—consistent—with—statetavw—The Union shall be
notified—in—writing—ofany-salaryincreases.The Department may adjust a pay band in the

classification and pay plan when adjustments are appropriate. The Union shall be notified in

writing of such adjustments.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For the FPD

Mark Neimeiser
Interim Executive Director

Date



FPD / SES Attorneys Unit
State Proposal — Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 14, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 18
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions — General

Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act
and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 - Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 3 - Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Attorneys Unit
State Proposal - Article 19
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 19
INSURANCE BENEFITS

The employee share of premiums for the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-19 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019,

Selected Exempt Service participants in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan
shall pay the same health insurance premiums as Career Service participants, effective January 1,

2019.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD - SES Physicians



NV ¥€:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T €401 3d

(mo072q "1, u09)

o SOOTATAG JUSWUDTRUBIA

Jo 1da(q oy Jo A1eje100g

sy Aq pasoidde Ji pueq Ked

Y} JO WnTUITE o) MO[aq PI[IL 99
Aew uonisod yueoea v, :afendueg|
SPPY "Adusdixo [BISY € JO 0uBISUI
o) UI SuOLBIII] 303pnq 0} onp
pueq Aed paugisse 913 JO WINTITUILL

"SUOT eI oYy uey) ss9] pred oq Aewr sakofdurs

108pnq £q pajueiem J1 papasu st oSenSue] Uy :sa1e)s Jey) 28en3ue] SOSIALT

st} spnjour o) [esodoxd s21e1§ oY T, - () UON09g (F) uonosg “sueawl SIUONII[I

: 10 Adoo piey ‘uonduosap uonisod

‘suotun atf) Surpnjour ‘orpqnd sy 03 papraoxd s,99401dwo 0] s89008 UOTU() puUE

9q p[nom pue aIMe[si3a] ) Aq pazuoyne doko1dws 10y Furpraoid oSenSue|

9q 1snu so1pmys Aed sarsusyardwo)) SN sppe (¢) uonoeg "soLI[eS 101038

Jo yoeasar euonesado Afrep o) uo juswaSuLIuL ayeand pue orpqnd Jo jusunieda(g

s,uo1sta01d S1y) 0) anp saLIefes 10399 jeaud o Aq pajonpuod suostredwod

pue 21[qnd Jo suosLeduions YHIM UOTUN) Sy} s uotup) ot opraoxd 0y
opraoad 03 Jusunieda(g o) Surnnbor oSenSue| Jusuneda(y a3 Suumbar o3enSuef ue[d
ojeurwir[s 03 sasodoxd 11§ 9T, - (V) UOn0es ond) smels :L1/91/11 SOAOWAI (V) UOT0AS (L 1/9T/11| Aed pue UOHBOWISSE) - O]

" Jusunurodde em3uo,, ue st jusunurodde yoey
‘paLIgjsue) 10 paudisseal jou aie seakorduro

SAS "991AIag I931E)) ) 0) d[qeorjdde "INVOVA 9[onry Surropusal I9Jsuer],
AJUO SUONOR AIB IQJSURI) pUR JUSUUIISSBOY onQ sme1g :L1/91/11| 9FendSuef [je soaowsy :£1/971/11 pue JuSwuSIsse] - §
"92TAIRG J20IR)) "INVIOVA 9[onIy Surlapual
ay 03 a[qeorjdde Auo st jey) 1daouos e st JJoke onQ) smerg :L1/91/11| oSenSue[ [ seacwoy :L1/91/11 SUOIIONPaY ADIOPIOM - §
SINTIWINOD TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVLS T TOLLAV
SNV PIAJOSIIU()

JUSWANITY A0SSIING G- 07 18I X [BISL] 0] SUOLN)0SIN
LT0T ‘v 1quuddd(q :Jo se suonenosaN sSururesieg 9AnI9[[0)) JO SNe)S
8107 ‘0€ sunp saadxy Juamaai8y Juarin)

WA)SAG [QUUO0SIdJ IS - JU() SUBISAYJ SHS
(@da) SIS pue sUBLISAYJ JO UOHRIIPI |



WY vETT ‘8T0Z/8/T

Tesodo1d ON :£1/91/11

"SaNsST Sugggels 1o 10
‘sanmbaur Aed ‘uonus)eI ssaIppe
01 sjuoumsnipe Aed Areuororosip

pue Aed juow 103 sap1aoId - Yo
‘g uoNoKag “198png popUSTIUIOISI
SAOUIAOD) I8 LT/FT/T1

sagem - 81

"IMEBSIZS] 9} Aq POZLIOTNe Se SUop
2q AJuo ueo pue AousSe sy} JO UOHAIOSIP oY1
1E 218 sjusunsnipe Aed [enprarpuy - () uonosg

o Stuaunsnipe gons jo Sunum

UL paynou 2q [jeys uorun) sy,
‘enrdordde a1e sjuounsnfpe uoym
ued Aed pue uonesHISSE[O ) UL
pueq Aed e snfpe Aew juouniedsg
oY I, :SUlMO[[0] SU) SOPNJOUT OS[Y

‘sjustmsnipe

ATe[es [enPIATPUT JO UOTU[) 9}
Anou o1 yueunreds(T oy Sulimbai
a3en3ue] soaoway () UONOAg

(oA0qe woIy 3,uo0o)

ue[d
Aed pue UOTIBOTJISSE)) - ()]

SINHIWINOD

"TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVIS

TIOILAV

SOOIV PAA[osaIU()

JUIWIIATY A085900NG G[-81(T 18X [€ISI] 10} suonenoSaN
LI0T ‘v 12quIdda( :yo se suonenosaN surmreSaeq 3AnIIY[0)) JO sMIB)g

8107 ‘0¢ dunp soxdx7y JuamISY Jud.LIN)
WI)SAS [PUUOSIdJ 9)E]S - JU() SULINSAYJ STAS
(@) ssnus( pue sueISAYJ Jo UONEIIPI]

€Joz 34



WV YE€:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

(s1gouaq 10 stnmuoxd ur s3ueyd ou)
onQ smelg :L1/91/11

‘610¢

‘1 Arenue[ aanoaye ‘sjuedroned
90IAJRG Jaa1e)) st swnruoxd
soueINSUL [I[BY Sures aiy) Aed

[Ieys ue[q osueInsuj yeaf dnoin
o ur syuedronted SHS :sppe ‘ospy

“ue[d WIeSH S[qnonpa ySH

9y} 10§ 9sn0ds Yo 10J OU/S 1 7ES
pue uejd yiesH piepuelg,

S} J0J "OwW/(6$ 03 "our/C1§ WOy
ue|q ‘suJ yiesH dnoir) seakojdury
Jeyg oy ur Sunedronied

asnods yoes 107 stunruroid
S3SBAIOUL ‘61/T/] 2ATIOSYJ0

- VVD ‘g UOB0I§ 1og L1/ET/T1

S)JUSE SOUBINSU] - 6]

SLNIHIOD

"TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALV.LS

CHISINR A4

S[ONIY PaA[osatu()

JUIWIAIABY A0SSIIING GT-8T(0T 18I X [BISI] 0] SUONIEN0SIN
LT0T ‘p 1qudda( :jo se suonenosa) suraredieg IANI[[0)) JO sSNu)S

8107 ‘0€ dunp saxidxy JuUAISY JUILIN)

UWIA)SAQ [AUU0SIDJ 8IS - JU() SUBIISAYJ SHS
(AdA) SIS pue SUBDISAYJ JO UORIIPI

€4o¢ 84



For the State

Article 8
VACANT

Michael Mattimore
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

FPD / SES Physicians Unit
State Proposal — Article 8
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 1 of 1

For the FPD

Mark Neimeiser
Executive Director

Date



FPD / SES Physicians Unit
State Proposal - Article 9
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 9
VACANT

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Physicians Unit
State Proposal - Article 9
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 2 of 2

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Physicians Unit
State Proposal - Article 10
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 10
CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN

(A)  The Department of Management Services shall continue to maintain a classification
and pay plan applicable to all positions in this Unit, designed to attract and retain qualified

personnel consrstent with am)hcable law rules, and regulat1ons %eﬂ——the—Departmeﬂt—ef

(B) The employing agency shall continue to maintain a position description for each
position on a current basis._ Each employee and the Union shall be provided access to current

position descriptions. Upon request, an emplovee shall be provided a copy of his position
description, either by hard copy or electronic means.

(C)  The Department shall assign each position to its appropriate broadband level
according to the position description.

(D)  The classification and pay plan includes:

(1) All approved pay bands,

(2) The-alecation—ofeachposition—to—a—paybandAll approved jJob Families,

Occupational Group Characteristics, and Occupation Profiles;; and

(3) Provisions governing the administration of the plan.

(E)  Upon making an original or any subsequent appointment to a Selected Exempt
Service position in this unit, the employmg agency shall set the salary at an amount within the
assigned pay band. Based-en ;
may give an employee an increase in salary pr0v1ded the total salary is w1th1n the assigned pay
band, funds are available for thesueh increase, and suehthe increase is not specifically prohibited
by act of the Legislature. An employee may be paid less than the minimum of the assigned pay
band enby-due to budget limitations in the instance of a fiscal exigency. A vacant position may be
filled below the minimum of the pay band if approved bv the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services.H-approv : S, : = ,

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Physicians Unit
State Proposal - Article 10
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 16, 2017

Page 2 of 2

£\ - — - a

to-the-Union-The Union shall be notified in writing of such adjustments.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Physicians Unit
State Proposal — Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 14, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 18
WAGES

SECTION 1 — Pay Provisions — General

Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act
and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 3 - Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Physicians Unit
State Proposal - Article 19
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 19
INSURANCE BENEFITS

The employee share of premiums for the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-19 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019.

Selected Exempt Service participants in the State Emplovees Group Health Insurance Plan
shall pay the same health insurance premiums as Career Service participants, effective January 1,

2019.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD - SES Supervisors



WV ¥¥:TT ‘8T02/8/T 70T '8d

4 Siudumsn(pe

gons Jo Sunum Ul pelynou aq [[eys
uotun) sy -aeudordde sre sjuaumsnipe
uaym ued Aed pue uonesISSE[O

ay) wt pueq Ked e isnfpe Aewr justmeda(q
a1, :BUIMO[[0] S} SOPN]OUT OS[Y

‘syusunsnipe Arefes [enprarput

Jo uorun) a1 AInou o] Jusunieda( oy
Burnnbox oFenJue] sarowal () uondsg
' S90IAISG JuatupTeurIA JO 1da(T

ay yo A1e3a109g o1y £q pasocidde 1 pueq
Aed 91) JO WINIIIUTW 9} MO[Oq P[]}

9q Aew uonisod jueoea y,, :a8enJuey
SPPY "AouaBIx2 TesST B JO 0ue)sul
“SuoTRII| Qy) ur suoneywI] 128pnq 0} anp pueq

393pnq £q pajueLiem J1 pepeau st afenSue] sup Ked pauSisse oU) JO WNWITUIW SY) UL}
spnpour o] esodoid s2eIg SY T - (7) UonO9g ss9] pred 9q Aewr sofodurs uy :s9)B)S
1e1)) aFen3ue] Sas1AQ1 () UONOSS 'SUEBSW
‘suorun o) Swpnpour ‘orjqnd sy 0} papraoxd D1U01199[3 10 Ados piey ‘uondurosep
9q pInom pue SIMe[sI3a] oyl Aq pezuoyne uonisod spakordurs 0) $8900€ UOTU[)
aq Jsnu satprys Aed oarsuayardwo)) ST JO pue saLojdws 107 Surpraoid aenSue|
yoreasal [euonerado A[rep oy uo juswoagurgur sppe (g) uonoag "soLIe[es 101098
suorstA0d siyy 0} anp sore[es J0109s ojearid oreand pue s1pqnd o justmpeda(q o)
pue orqnd Jo suosLrediios s uot) oY) £q pajonpuod suosedwos Y worn
apraod 03 Jusunieds(y oy Surnnbar sFenSue| a1 apraoxd o) Juswedo oy Surunbax ueld
ojeunuis 0 sesodoid a1e1g oY - (V) UOTI0OS ond) smels :L1/91/11| 9Fen3ue] saaowal () UoN29S :L1/9T/11 Ard pue UONBOLJISSE[D) - T

SINAININOD TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVLS T IOLLYV

SNy PIA[osdIU[)

JUDWIITY J0SSIIING -1 (T 183 A [8ISL] 10] suonenofan
LT0T ‘p 19quIddad(q :Jo st suonenosaN suraiesieq dA1)99[j0)) JO SNJe)S
8107 ‘0¢ duny sdaidxy JuamaI3y Jua.LIn))

WISAS [PUUOSIdJ 3)¥)S - JIU[) [BUOISSIJOIJ-UON] SA0SIAIddNg SHS
(ada) s1snuaq pue suepIsAyq jo uopeIdpaf



WV 71T ‘8T0Z/8/T

7J0z8d

Jesodoxd oN :L1/91/11

"sonsst Julze)s oo Jo ‘sonmbaour

Aed ‘wonuslal ssaIppe 0) sjusumsnipe
Aed Areuonorosip pue Aed jurew

Jog sapraoid - Yo ‘g uonoag “‘jedpng
PSPUSTIUIODT S JOWIA0D 18 L1/¢1/11

sadem - ¢C

(s1yausq 10 sumrurexd ur aSueyo ou)
ong smeyg L1/91/11

'610T ‘1 Arenuey

aAnRays ‘syuedionred 9o1AI9g 19018
se swnruaid asueInsur Y)jesy swes o)
Aed [reys uelq aoueinsu] yieag dnoin

o w syuedionted g :sppe ‘os[y

el

qiesH s[quonpa( YySIH oY) 10§ asnods
o2 10} "our/C1 7eg pue ,uejd YiesH
PIEpuelS,, o) 103 "OUur/)6$ 01 “ouy/Cg
woy uejd suf ey dnoin seakordurg
ae)g o ur Sunedronaed ssnods

[oed 10J sumnuaid sosearout ‘61/1/1
9A1I08JJ0 - VYD ‘g U0N23ag 128pnq
PAPUSUIIOIAT $IOWISAOD) 13J :£T/€1/11

S)IJouaq oURINSU] - €7

SINTININOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

TIOLLAV

SNV paAjosaaup)
JUSUINRITY 10852000 6T-8T 0T 183X [€ISL] 10} suonenosaN
LT0T ‘P 13quIada(q :jo sk suonenodaN Suruiedieg aAnd9[{0)) Jo snje)g

8107 ‘0€ dung sdaidxy JmaurdaIsy JuaLmn)

WI)SAQ [PUUOSIDJ 3)8)S - JIU[) [BUOISSAJOIJ-UON stosiasadng SS

(Add) $1spua( pue suenIsAyJ Jo uoneIopa g



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit
State Proposal — Article 11

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 16, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 11
CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN

(A)  The Department of Management Services shall continue to maintain a classification
and pay plan, applicable to all positions in this unit, designed to attract and retain qualified
personnel consistent with applicable law, rules, and regulations. WhentheDepartment—of

ava¥a )
>, - v v, v,

(B)  The employing agency shall continue to maintain a position description for each
position on a current basis. Each employee and the Union shall be provided access to current
position descriptions. Upon request an employee shall be provided a copy of his position
description either by hard copy or electronic means.

(C)  The Department shall assign each position to its appropriate broadband level
according to the current position description.

(D)  The classification and pay plan includes:

(D All approved pay bands,

(2)  TFhe-alocation—of-eachposition—to—abroadband levelAll approved Job

Families, Occupational Group Characteristics, and Occupation Profiles:; and

3) Provisions governing the administration of the plan.

(E)  Upon making an original or subsequent appointment to a Selected Exempt Service
position in this unit, the employing agency shall set the salary at an amount within the assigned
pay band. The Agency Head may give an employee an increase in salary provided the total salary
is within the assigned pay band, funds are available for the increase, and the increase is not
specifically prohibited by act of the Legislature. An employee may be paid less than the minimum
of the assigned pay band due to budget limitations in the instances of a fiscal exigency. A vacant
position may be filled below the minimum of the pay band if approved by the Secretary of the
Department of Management Services.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit
State Proposal — Article 11

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 16, 2017

Page 2 of 2

(F) The Department ef Management—Services—may adjust a pay band in the
classification and pay plan when adjustments are appropriate. A—salary—adjustment—shall-be

consistent-with-state-law—The Union shall be notified; in writing; of individual-salary-inereases

such adjustments.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit
State Proposal — Article 23

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 23
INSURANCE BENEFITS

The employee share of premiums for the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-19 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019.

Selected Exempt Service participants in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan
shall pay the same health insurance premiums as Career Service participants, effective January 1,
2019.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit

State Proposal — Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 14 2017

Page 1 of 1
Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 — Pay Provisions — General

Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act
and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 3 — Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the FPD
Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director

Date Date



FSFSA - Fire
Fighters Unit



Wd 6%:C ‘8T0Z/9/T

JURUWARIZY Jduddody I-8T0T 183X [BISL] J0] suonenoSaN
LT0T ‘7T 12QUII( :J0 st suonenodaN suiuresdivg A0 JO SNJE)S
0707 ‘0€ 2unp saardxq U213y JudLIN,)
WI)SAS [PUUO0SIdJ €IS - JIU() INAIIS I
UONBIIOSSY INAIIG L] I)BIS BPLIOL]

€407 °3d
(mofeq panunjuos)
"OWRIAUIN S[qUOSEal © UIIm
2040[dwo ppajoaye oy} 0} Juas aq [[im Josiazadns
a1} Aq suonok parelsp Jo uoneue[dxs uspyLIm
© “199ysowm 18I o[doad oy) 0jul SALNUS oI} UMO
Joty 1s0d 03 9940]dwro Ue IO S[qISES] JOU ST JI SISYM
SOMSST PIYIWI] a1 U] (D) ‘pue H2aysown) Y} ayo[dwod
"$1809| 01 9[qeun 9340]duIS UR JO J[eYaq uo 3Sod IO SUOT)ISLI0D
Surunuesdoder ysa ojdoad Jueoryuds [re1us oyjeur s10s1a19dns 219UM SIseO payiw] ur 1deoxa
pInom pasjoaur sakofdus )¢ Aparewnrxordde| ‘woisAs yeoysewn) isimj ajdoad syp ojur Anus vIEp UMO
Jo so[npayos enbrun oy Sunepowrwiosoy | et J1of a[qisuodsar aq [ sToquIsW Jrun Sururedieq
IV :(d) ‘smMOy ownIoAo June[nofed pue ‘pasn/pauied
"Surpuny/s)oenuod|  SIPaIO 9ARI] SUDjORI) “pONIOM SINOY SUNUSWINOOP I0§
[e1opaj Aq paxmbar s[npayos pue Aepsjiom onbrun| weisks apimasiels isig o[dosd Syi SZIun LM SIGQUIS
0} anp WISAS dawa[/ouIm s 2[doad osn 0} 9[qe jun SutureSieq [[v () Sun[oel] saes/euir], AWN.IPAQ
Apuerno jou st saregy ArejiA jo yueunteds| isi g ojdoad - 9 uonoag pasodoxd mou sppy :£1/9Z/01 onQ) smelS :£1/97/01| pusB Yo\ Jo sInOY - €7
Ueld qiesH [qnonpa(q
Y31y a1 10§ asnods oea Jo] yiuout
1od $1'TES PUE UR[d YI[ESH piepuels,
o JoJ Yiuow Jad (6§ 01 Yuou
Iad ¢1¢ woiy uerq ‘suf Presy dnoin
ssokordurg ers o wr Sunedronaed
asnods yoes 10y swnmwaid saseasur
0702 ‘0€ Sunf rNUOD Y} JO PUL ) Y3SnoIy) ‘61/1/1 2An099 ‘vvD pasodoxd
paduerduUn UrewsI 0} ue[ 2duRInSU] YesH :.1/92/01 $,I0WISA0N) JO § UONOAS 194 L T1/8/1 1| 31BIdA\ PUE I[BIY - €1
SINAIWINOD 'TYSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVLS ATOLLAV
SI[ONEY PIA[OSAIU[)



Wd 617 ‘8T02/9/1

€4028d

4 9%e[d ur sampaosoid 10 SEOTASP [eOTURYDSW

Jo aano9t0xd Aq pajeias[e A[arenbape jou s1 pue
SSISIP 10 LOJWOOSIP [eo1sAyd suranxe asnes pynoo
Inq ‘snopiezey 3q Jjasu ul jou Aewr jey) Anp st digsprey
[eotsAyd e Surajoaur Aing -yieap 1o Amfur snoues
"pouBLIEM | UL J[NSSI P[NOO YOTYM SOOUBISUNOND Jopun pauiojiad

uaym sorousde Aq osn 10] s|qereAr ApesIfe Anp,, :se Anp snopiezey saurjep :(g) ‘sdiyspiey
ST ‘saie)g epuolg ‘(£)(e)(L)SE0T 011 uonoas| [eorsAyd 10 suonenys snopiezey ur wuopsd SIOQUIS
ur paurap se ‘oAnippe Ked Lnp snopiezey v yun Sururedieq JSU-[eIoods-UoU 9SO} USyM INOY

Iad o181 95Bq ALINOY JO 9%(] UBL) SS9 OU JO Jusumsnlpe
6L0°€8€ES (V)L uonoag :Tesodoig Aed Aoy [euonippe ue sppe (V) - SANPPY Aed
s,uotu() Joj oyewnsy 3unso) 440 :L1/€1/01| Amq dysprep] [esrsAy/pIezey - / UONOSS MOU SPPY

(ea0Qe wogy panunuod)
- €7 3PNIY

SINHININOD TVS0OdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVLS

HIDILAV

SI[IILIY PIA[OSAIU)
JIRWIITY J13uddody I-8T0T 182X [BISI] J0] suonenofaN
LT0T ‘7T 12QUIddd( :Jo se suonenosaN surmegieq IA1II[0)) JO SNJe)S
0707 ‘0€ sung saardxq U213V JWILIN))
WIISAS [PUUO0SIdJ 18IS - JIU[) MIAIIG AL
UONRIDOSSY IINAIIG AL 9)¥)S BPLIOL]



INd 6t:Z ‘8102/9/T

JUIWARITY J9udd0dy 61-81(0T 183X [€ISI] 0] SUONIRIJOSIN
LT0T ‘7T 1_quIdd( :30 se suonenosaN SurureSieg 2An[0)) JO SNYEIS
0207 ‘o€ dunp soadxy JTama2I3 Y Jua.aan))
WI)SAG [PUUOSIdJ )B)S - JU() IIAIIS AL ]
UONBIOSSY IAIIS 1] )8)S BpLIO[]

£40¢€ 34
soueuuoptad Aeduisxs
s,00401dwo 9y} wo peseq sasearour Led oW szLOYNE
TTeys AousSe yoes jey) a1e)s 0) PasIAcyY ¢ UONOSS
(119 3poD) 10y31]
€6Y°TTTS 111+9 PUC Z1+9 ‘TOET POET| oM pue (719 9poD) Jostaradng 10yysry oxig {(z9¢€1
‘09€1 “99€1 ‘1088 $9p0D) sse) UryA savko[dwa| 9poDy) 010nnsu] 9357100 SILT (H9€ T 9po)) Iostazadng
12 103 Aed Jo a1e1 aseq §1/0£/9 o 03 aseazour| Jojonnsuy aBofo) a1 (09T 9pop) ‘doy patd {(99€]
%S 91} JO uonIppe ot 103 [esodold L1/2Z/CT| 9poD) Jostazadng “doy pIarg {1088 9poD) IsHervadg
s,uoruf) 10y sjeumsy 3unsod 940 81/S/1 UonIS1014 1L :SOSSE[O FuIMO[[0] o) Ul saakordws
oy 03 pajuess oq [[eys (%¢) Wweorad a1y Jo sjusunsnipe
Aed aAnnedwos ‘g1/1// AN9SJS UOHIPPE U]
"L1/8/11 Jo Tesodoxd
S,91B]S UI PIISI] SISSB[O SAL oY) JO ouo w uonisod e
Suryy seskorduws e Jo a1e1 aseq §1/0£/9 9P 0 Jusored (LLS9 2poD)
31 Jo sjuaumsnfpe Aed aannadwoos yueid [[eys eprol] 1071 JeIoI010y IYSIRIT] 4
JO SIBIS 33 3B J09[J01 0) PISIARL T UONIDS :L1/CT/T1 {0L59 9poD) a1g - 10[14 Ye1d
-I1y [eoo1diooy smdug-o[Surg
'61-810T Ad 01 ¢ pue ¢ suondag sayepdn (8959 2p0D) axrg - 1014 JBIO
-1y [e001d1oay] swSug-uInyA] 4
‘uonrsod jiun SutureSIeq e U 901ATIS JO SIBIA ¢ AIoAD HOLTA
I0J 81/1/L 2A100J39 ‘Aed JO 11 aseq IS} UT aSBaIOuL apo)) JaBury 152I10,] IO 4
%S’ 1 € SAIRSI [ STH VSASA [TV - (D)7 uonosg (609L 9poD) 1o3uey 152104 4
"8$T/1/L 2A109%2 ‘Aed Jo 9yl 958 ISY) UL ASBAIOUT 0/,C 1S90IAISG IOWNSUO)) pUe AIMNOUTY
Jo wnunuIw g 9A1031 [[B4S VOHY PUt VINQ IDd Jo jusunaedacg sy 1 suonisod
‘S4a 4q pokordwo sz VSASA IV - (4)Z uonoag|  Suimoroy o jo ouo ury seakordurs
LT0VOLS (D) uonoeg "81/1/L 9Am03y2 ITe 103 Aed jo s1er aseq 81/0¢/9
8€£°7ZTS () uonoag| ‘Aed o s1e1 oseq ST Yo 03 ASBIIOUT I 01§ B2aA12031] a3 03 (%01) 1us01ed U2) Jo syusunsnfpy
N 8°9% :(V)z uonoag [Teys sgd 291AIag ANsa104 T [[V - (V)7 Uonoag Aed 2annadwo)) 103 sepraoxd
‘Tesodoiq (61-8107) “81/1/L An0aJ9 “vyD pasodoxd
s,uotun) 10y syewmnsy unso) 40 :L1/€1/01 JeaA Teosty Juomo 0} [ uonoag sarepdn :£1/9Z/01 S, JOUIDA0N) JO g UONDAS Jod £ 1/8/11 safem - ST
SINIIWINOD TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOUd ALVLS TIDLLAV
SI[INIY PIA[OSIIU()



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
State Proposal — Article 13

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 5

Article 13
HEALTH AND WELFARE

SECTION 1 - Insurance Benefits

The emplovee share of premiums for the State Emplovees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-19 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019.

SECTION 2 — Employee Assistance Program

(A)  Where a state agency has adopted an employee assistance program pursuant to
section 110.1091, Florida Statutes, the state will make psychological and substance abuse
counseling services available.

(B)  Any complaint or claim by an employee concerning this section shall not be subject
to the grievance procedure of this Agreement.

SECTION 3 - Death In-Line-Of Duty Benefits
(A)  Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in section 112.191, Florida Statutes.
(B)  Education benefits will be as provided in section 112.191, Florida Statutes.
(C)  Health insurance benefits will be as provided in section 110.123, Florida Statutes.

(D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee concerning this Article shall not be subject
to the grievance procedure of this Agreement.

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
State Proposal — Article 13

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 2 of 5

SECTION 3 - Florida Forest Service Fire Fighter Health and Physical Fitness Standards
Program

The Florida Forest Service (FFS) and FSFSA agree to a fire fighter health and physical
fitness standards program, which shall include appropriate screening and vaccination of all
bargaining unit members.

(A)  The FFS shall provide Fitness Technician(s) in each Field Unit.
1 Fitness Technicians must maintain a current AED CPR card or higher.

2) Fitness technicians will provide fitness, health, nutrition, and wellness
information to all bargaining unit employees, and the Fitness Technicians will be given
opportunities to receive information and training in such areas as nutrition, exercise physiology,
etc.

(B)  Employees will be permitted to exercise a maximum of three times per week for 30
minutes per session.

(1) This is an employee optional activity and may be permitted if fire
conditions, emergency activities or other priority work projects, (that have been approved by the
Field Unit Manager), do not preclude such activities.

(2) Individual aerobic and/or strength exercises are authorized.
3) Team sports are prohibited.

4) If it is not possible for the employee to conduct aerobic exercises at the work
site, then the employee must start and finish his exercise session from their work site and be able
to respond back to the site within 15 minutes of notification.

(5)  The acquisition of all exercise equipment is a local decision. However, state
funds may not be used to purchase this equipment.

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
State Proposal — Article 13

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 3 of 5

6) The FFS will not provide reduced memberships with any gyms or health
clubs. This is a personal decision on the part of employees.

(C)  FFS Employee Health Exam & Fitness Test

1) The FFS employee Health Exam & Fitness Test is required for Special Risk
employees hired or rehired after January 1, 1993, and includes the Initial or Annual Medical
Examination and the Fitness Test. The Initial Medical Exam shall be in accordance with the FFS
approved edition of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA 1582) Medical Requirements
for Firefighters. The Initial and Annual Medical Exams standards for the pulmonary function test
and the resting blood pressure limits are established by FFS. The Annual Medical Examination
consists of specific components of the Initial Medical Examination, (Pulmonary Function Test &
Resting Blood Pressure). For the Annual Medical Exam, employees are required to utilize the FFS
Annual Medical Exam standard. The employee has the option of utilizing the FFS facility for the
Annual Medical Exam, or obtaining certification to take the Annual Fitness Test, utilizing the FFS
Annual Medical Exam standard, from their personal physician (at personal cost). The Fitness Test
currently is the United States Forestry Service (USFS) Work Capacity Test (WCT), also called the
Pack Test. The employee must successfully complete the Medical Examination within 12 months
prior to taking the Fitness Test.

2 Employees who fail the Annual Fitness Test due to fitness reasons will not
be allowed to perform wildfire suppression duties until they retake and pass the Annual Fitness
Test. The employee will be mandated to perform physical fitness training as described in (B) and
will be permitted up to 12 months and a miniinum of four attempts, at three month intervals or
less, to retake the Annual Fitness Test.

(3) Employees who fail the Annual Medical Exam will be placed on sick leave
until they provide a personal physician’s statement allowing them to work in a modified duty
capacity. If the employee provides a personal physician’s statement releasing him to full duty
status and successfully completes the Annual Medical Exam at a FFS medical examination facility,
or is certified to take the Annual Fitness Test utilizing the FFS Annual Medical Exam standard, by
his personal physician (at personal cost), he will be required to take the Annual Fitness Test within

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
State Proposal — Article 13

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 4 of 5

30 days of medical release to full duty status. Should the employee fail the Annual Fitness Test
after release to full duty status, he will be provided the opportunity to take the Annual Fitness Test
in accordance with paragraph (C)(2) above.

4) Employees who have exhausted all attempts to pass the Annual Medical
Exam and/or Fitness Test, may be offered a vacant position that does not include firefighting duties
in the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services. If another position cannot be identified
and agreed upon, termination may result.

(5) The FFS employee Annual Fitness Test and the “National Fitness Test” will
be conducted during the months of November, December and January. These two tests may be
combined and taken as one test, with the National Fitness Test (three mile walk with 45 pound
pack in 45 minutes) substituting for the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test (two mile walk with
25 pound pack in 30 minutes).

(6) If a candidate for hire is required to take the FFS Initial Fitness Test, or an
employee is currently scheduled to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test after January 31
and before September 1, the candidate or employee will take these tests as scheduled, and will
take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test the upcoming November, December or January (this
means two tests in 12 months). When the test is completed in November, December or January,
the employee will be synchronized for future November, December or January testing.

N If a candidate for hire is required to take the FFS Initial Fitness Test, after
August 31% and before November 1%, the candidate will take the test as scheduled, and be required
to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test in November, December or January of the following
year (this means more than 12 months between tests). (Example: candidate takes the FFS Initial
Fitness Test on October 15, 2006, and will be required to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness
Test in November or December of 2007 or January of 2008.) When the test is completed in
November, December or January, the employee will be synchronized for future November,
December or January testing.

(8) If an employee is scheduled to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test
after August 31% and before November 1%, the employee will wait until November, December or

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
State Proposal — Article 13

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 5 of 5

January to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test (this means more than 12 months between
tests). When the test is completed in November, December or January, the employee will be
synchronized for future November, December or January testing.

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
Union Proposal — Article 13

Fiscal Year 2018-19

October 26, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 13
HEALTH AND WELFARE

SECTION 1 - Insurance Benefits

The benefits and the employee share of premiums for the State Employees Group Health
Self-Insurance Plan shall remain unchanged ferFiseal-¥ear 26472018 through the end of contract

June 30, 2020.

SECTIONS 3-4 — F'SFSA proposes Status Quo

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
STATE - Article 23: STATUS QUO

Fiscal Year 2018-19

October 26, 2017

Page 1 of 4

Article 23
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

SECTION 1 - Hours of Work and Overtime

(A)  The normal work period for full-time employees, except as noted below, shall be
40 hours consisting of five eight hour days, or four ten- hour days, or a 28-day, 160-hour period.
The normal work period for Department of Children and Families” employees shall be a 28-day,
192-hour period, consisting of 24 hours on-duty and 48 hours off-duty. The normal work period
for Department of Military Affairs’ employees shall be a 28-day, 212-hour period.

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will
make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the
workday and consecutive days in the workweek.

(©) Work beyond the normal workweek shall be administered in accordance with the
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D)  Management retains the right to approve time off for its employees. However, the
state will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use accrued leave
credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee’s specific request shall not
be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this Agreement.

(E)  The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of
favoritism. Where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned on the basis
of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the grievance procedure under Article 6 up to
Step 2 of the procedure.

SECTION 2 — Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules

(A)  When regular work schedules are changed, employees’ normal work schedules,
showing each employee’s shift, workdays, and hours, will be posted no less than 14 calendar days
in advance, and will reflect at least a two workweek schedule; however, the state will make a good
faith effort to reflect a one month schedule. In the event an employee’s shift, workdays, or hours
are changed while the employee is on approved leave, the agency will notify the employee of the
change at his home. With prior written notification of at least three workdays to the employee’s
immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or shifts on a temporary basis. If
the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or shifts, the employee initiating
the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved.

(B) Where practical, shifts, shift transfers, and regular days off shall be scheduled with
due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and employee preference. The state and the
FSFSA understand that there may be times when the needs of the agency will not permit such



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
STATE - Article 23: STATUS QUO

Fiscal Year 2018-19

October 26, 2017

Page 2 of 4

scheduling; however, when an employee’s shift and/or regular days off are changed, the agency
will make a good faith effort to keep the employee on the new shift or regular days off for a
minimum of 12 months unless otherwise requested by the employee.

© When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee’s regular
shift assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a
minimum of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the
new shift assignment.

(D)  Where practical, vacation and holiday leave shall be scheduled in advance of such
leave. Time off for vacations and holidays, when the holiday is a regularly scheduled workday for
the employee, will be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and
employee preference. In implementing this provision, nothing shall preclude an agency from
making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as determined by the agency,
or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during the holidays.

(E) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at
each agency and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are
established. Scheduling structures shall mean the normal work period as set forth in Section 1(A)
of this article.

SECTION 3 — Rest Periods

(A)  No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during
each four hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle
of the work shift. However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty assignment
that requires coverage for a full eight hour shift, which would not permit the employee to actually
leave his post. In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can “rest” while the employee
physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post.

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be
authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or early departure from duty.

SECTION 4 — Work Day — Work Period

(A)  The state will make a good faith effort not to require an employee to split a workday
into two or more segments without the agreement of the employee and the employer. The state
will also make a good faith effort to schedule the work of an employee in a manner to minimize
the extension of the employee’s workday beyond its scheduled hours, recognizing that such
extensions may be necessary to address emergencies or to conserve staffing or other resources, as

determined by the state.



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
STATE - Article 23: STATUS QUO

Fiscal Year 2018-19

October 26, 2017

Page 3 of 4

(B)  Where employees are required to work extra hours during an approved extended
work period, the state will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight hour
increments, provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period.

SECTION 5 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A) Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave
credits may be earned only in the following instances:

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the employee’s
assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor
or any other disaster or emergency condition.

(B)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012

An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit
balances.

(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012

(1) Special compensatory leave credits eamed, as described in subsection
(A)(1), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs earlier,

shall be forfeited.

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(A)(2), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited.

3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, if scheduling such leave within
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 and
2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days. Extensions will not be allowed for any other reason.

(49)  Noagency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave credits
earned on or after July 1, 2012.



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
STATE - Article 23: STATUS QUO

Fiscal Year 2018-19

October 26, 2017

Page 4 of 4

(D)  General Provisions for Using Special Compensatory Leave Credits in Accordance
with Rule 60L-34.0044, F.A.C.

(1) Employee Leave Requests. An employee shall be required to use available
special compensatory leave credits prior to the agency approving the following leave types:

(a) Regular compensatory leave credits.

(b) Annual leave credits, unless such annual leave credits are being
substituted for an employee’s unpaid individual medical leave granted in accordance with the
federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or parental leave granted
in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
Union Proposal — Article 23

Fiscal Year 2018-19

October 26, 2017

Page 10f 1

Article 23
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

SECTION 1 - § FSFSA proposes Status Quo

SECTION 6 — People First Time/Leave Tracking

(A) All bargaining unit members will utilize the People's First statewide system for
documenting hours worked, tracking leave credits earned used, and calculating overtime.

(B) All bargaining unit members will be responsible for their own data entrv into the
People's First timesheet system. except in limited cases where supervisors make corrections or post
on behalf of an employee unable to complete the timesheet.

(C) In the limited issues where it is not feasible for an employee to post their own time
entries into the People's First timesheet a written explanation of detailed actions by the supervisor
will be sent to the affected employee within a reasonable timeframe.

SECTION 7 — Hazard/Physical Hardship Duty Pay Additive

(A) When hazardous situations or physical hardships exist, non-high risk bargaining
unit members will receive an additional hourly pay adjustment of no less than 10% of hourly base
rate per hour when performing such duties.

(B) Hazardous duty is defined as duty performed under circumstances which could
result in serious injury or death. Duty involving a physical hardship is duty that may not in itself
be hazardous, but could cause extreme physical discomfort or distress and is not adequately
alleviated by protective or mechanical devices or procedures in place.

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
State Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions — General

Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 20178-20189 General Appropriations Act
and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 — Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Governor’s recommendations for
Section 8 of the General Appropriations Act, Eeffective July 1. 2018, the Department of
Agriculture and Consumer Services shall grant competitive pay adjustments of ten percent to the
June 30, 2018 base rate of pay of all employees filling a position in the following classes:

1. Forest Ranger (Code 7609),

2. Senior Forest Ranger (Code 7610),

3. Multi-Engine Reciprocal Aircraft Pilot - Fire (Code 6568)

4. Single-Engine Reciprocal Aircraft Pilot - Fire (Code6570), and
5. Firefighter Rotorcraft Pilot (Code 6577)

SECTION 2-3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20178-20189 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 3-4 — Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
State Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 2 of 2

with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 4-5 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20178-20189 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,

Florida Administrative Code.
SECTION 5-6— Competitive Area Differential

The Department of Management Services shall review Competitive Area Differential
salary additive requests by agencies and determine appropriate differentials in accordance with
Section 110.2035(7)(c), Florida Statutes and Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 6-7 — Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20472018-20189 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
FSFSA Counter Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 22, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions — General
Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act

and other provisions of state law.
SECTION 2 — Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Governor’s recommendations for
Section 8 of the General Appropriations Act, effective July 1, 2018, the Department—eof

Agrienlture and Consumer-ServicesState of Florida shall grant competitive pay adjustments of
ten percent to the June 30, 2018 base rate of pay of all employees filling a position in the following

classes:

1. Forest Ranger (Code 7609),

2. Senior Forest Ranger (Code 7610),

3. Multi-Engine Reciprocal Aircraft Pilot - Fire (Code 6568),

4. Single-Engine Reciprocal Aircraft Pilot - Fire (Code6570), and
5. Firefighter Rotorcraft Pilot (Code 6577).

Effective Julv 1, 2018, the State of Florida shall grant competitive pay adjustments of five
percent to the June 30, 2018 base rate of pay of all employees filling a position in the
following classes:

Fire Protection Specialist (Code 8804)

Field Representative Supervisor (Code 1366)
Field Representative (Codel360)

Fire College Instructor Supervisor (Code 1364)
Fire College Instructor (Code 1362)

Fire Fighter Supervisor (Code 6412)

Fire Fighter (Code 6411)

Al A R Bl el I b

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
FSFSA Counter Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 22, 2017

Page 2 of 2

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance
with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is-shall authorized to-grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,

Florida Administrative Code.

The following base rate of pay increase shall be given:

3% for score of 4.5 -5

2.5% for score 4 - 4.4

2% for score 3.5-3.9

1.5% for score3—3.4

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For the FSFSA

Michael T. Brennan
President and Chief Negotiator

Date



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit
FSFSA Counter Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 22, 2017

Page 3 of 2

SECTION 6- Competitive Area Differential

The Department of Management Services shall review Competitive Area Differential
salary additive requests by agencies and determine appropriate differentials in accordance with
Section 110.2035(7)(c), Florida Statutes and Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 7 — Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the FSFSA
Michael Mattimore Michael T. Brennan
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



1 Jo | abed

"sjoedw| JUsWaeI Sapnjouy
Junowe ay) "314 G6 40} sies Alejes ay) 0} aseasoul %s e payddy ‘gL0z ‘v Alenuer jo se sOpoD
sse|Q pajoedwl syj pue || NgD 40} wajsAs Jsn14s)doad sy woy papeojumop suoljisod pazinn

£6v'zzes

‘Aed Jo 8121 9SB] 81,07 ‘OF SUNP JIdY)

0] 8sealoul %G e 8A18dal | |LF9 pue ‘gLy9 ‘2eg)
‘Y9E1L ‘09€1 ‘99€1 ‘¥088 SaPOD SSEID ‘BLOT ‘1
Ainp aAnoays jey) sesodold :z uonosg ‘¢z ETRTIT

"pabueyo Jou ejem 8sou) pue (4 8pod Juswaiel) JOXA Ul suonisod € atem aJaly] 10N
‘SOUBIBHIP 1500 3L} PEleNdeD PUe 9% /Z°ET 0} g6'2 WOy abejusdied Juaweune. ay) pabueyn
"L1/B/ 1) 40 Se wayshs Jsa1de|doad sy} Woly papEROJUMOP (88 SPOO SSEjo Ul Suoisod pazinn

(314 02) ¥€€L$ - VHOV
(314 2)AN1L$ - gsa4
(314 1€) M691$ - s4a

‘sueld juswisunel ysiy |eioadg
0} (7088 8p0D sse|D) sisieioads uoRoejoIq
8114 Buibueyo Jo gas4 pue S 'S4q 0} 150D

"sjoeduw) Juewiainal Sapnjou JUNoWE sy} pue

(sieeA G uey) ssa| pakojdwia o Juedea Jayyie aiem Japuleluss ayy) papnjoul a1em 3| 4 OLE 4O [B10) Y
%6 = S1e9A pE-0E PUB %G/ = S1eeh 6Z-GZ ‘%9 = SIBBA $Z-0Z ‘%Gt = SIEOA B1-G|. ‘%e = SIeak 12!
-0} "%S’| = s1eak g-G :pasn atam sebejusoiad Buimojioy ay) (g)z pue (y)z uonoag Ul sesealoul
o) Joye 1l ay) 0) s1eah g Aiaas Jo) asealou| %6 | e palddy ‘(2010498 Ul YeRIg B INOYIM

uomsod Je|nBa. e ui pakojdwe Ajsnonunuoo usaq sey sakojdwa au) ajep ay) si sIy)) 1sii4ejdoay

Ul 8jeQ SOIAIBS SNORURUOD ay) pue 8LOZ ‘| AINf Usemiag sieak Jo Jaguinu au) pajejnojen

‘2102 "Z) 180100 Jo se || NGO 10} walsAs Jsu4ejdoad oy} wouy papeojumop suoinsod pazijiin

L10%0.$

‘uoiysod Buurebieq oA

B Ul 80In8s Jo siedA G Aiaas 1oy ‘810z ‘| AInp
SAI0DYS ‘9SBDIOUI %G"| B BAIBDI ||IM SIaquisw
Hunjey; sesodold :(D)z uonoes ‘sz soRIy

“Sjoedill JuBWLIIS) SOPNIOUI JUNOWE 8] T 14 /6 10} djel
Auejes sy} o} esea.oul 96 e paliddy "YHOV Pue ‘vING ‘400 ‘S4a Ul suosod asouy AlUO pale(os]
'L102 '2) 19900 jo sk || NGO 10} WalsAs 1sii4a]doad 8y} woy pepeojumop suoysod pazijn

8£e'zees

‘810Z 'L AINr @ANOaY e 95B2I0UI %G WNWIUIW

€ BAI9031 |[eys UOHBJISIUILIPY SIBD) Y)jesH

Joy AousBy ay) pue ‘siieyy Ay 1o Juswpeds(g
‘saljiwe pue uaipiyo Jo Wawypedaq 'seoiaeg
[e1ouBUL] JO Juswiedaq sy Aq pakojdwe siaquiow
uun jey sesodold :(g)z uonds ‘gz 9oy

"Sjoedwl JuswR. SBPNIoUL JUNOWE By ") 4 $Z§ |8

lo; ajel Aeles sy} 0) sseasoui 9o'0L S & pelddy (0001 L 2P) S90IAI9S JBWNSUOY pue ainynouby
j0 wswedaq sy uiyim Anua Jo6png soinleg 189104 eplo|4 8y} Ul suonisod asoy) Ajuo paje|os|
‘2102 ‘21 12qO100 Jo se || NGO 0} walsAs 1si149|doad sy wioly papeojumop suohisod pazijin

N8'9$

‘8102 'L AInr 91088 9sealoUl 000°0 1$ e anmoal
a0IAI9S A1jS8104 BPLIO|4 U} LILYIM S1aqIBL
nun jey) sasodoid :(v)z uonoss ‘sz sjoy

"sjoedw JUsWISINel Sepnjoul Junowe ayj 314 Z/ o} paijdde sem asealou)

SYL 'swn 8y} o %00 pawlouad aie Aoy Jey) paLnsse si 1 S sdiyspiey [eaisAyd o suonenys
Snoplezey aiaym sainp wiopad siequiswu Jun Ajusnbaly moy suiwielap o) |gissod jou sl

¥ 9snedsy ‘paje|noled siem Gz 9oIMYy Woly sesealoul Aed sy} Jsye a1kl Alejes ay) o} asealou) %01
e payidde pue (§2/8N ‘Td ‘ad ‘TH ‘GH) SePod Juswaas ¥sk Yy yum suoysod Aue papn|ox3
"210Z ') 1290100 Jo se || NgD Joy we)sAs isu149|dosy sY) Wol; papeojumop suonisod pazinn

6.0'c8€$

'sapnp
yons Buiwopad uaym anoy sad sjes eseq Aunoy
30 %01 uey} ssa| ou Jo Juswisnipe Aed Aunoy ue

BAI80al ||IM sJaqusw yun Buiulebieq ysu ybiy-uou
Isixe sdiyspiey |eaisAyd Jo suonenyis snopiezey
uaym jey} sasodold :2 UOIIAG ‘CZ dIDIMY

9jeulLIBIepU|

‘paxIOM
SINOY JUBWINOOP 0] )SI148|d0Bd 8ZI 1IN [jIM SISQLISW
. Jun jey) sesodold 19 uondeg ‘gz BdIUY

SjuswWiWo)

1509 pajewnsy

anss| uojun

6102-810Z teaA |eas|d

sjesodoud aBem L1 NGO - UOPEIO0SSY 39JAISG 8114 9)eIS BPLIO|S YL




PBA - FL Highway
Patrol Unit



WV 8t:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

L30T 8d

"90UBASLIS UON)O® SSBO 21y} JO 1d10001
SwMoroy sAep ¢ UTIM UOISIOSD

B QJEOIUNUINIIO) pue ‘ss9001d a0uLASLIS
oY} 9yeuIpI00D ‘Aouse pajeotjdun

Aue pue UOTU() Y} (1M SOUBASLIS

91} SSNOSIP PINOM SIOIAISG JUsHaFeuR A
Jo jusunreda(] oy, ‘asuodsar apim
os1IdI97US JUQISISTIOD © 9INSUD 0] sarouage
snoLea 0) Ajareredas uey) oyjex
8901AJTDG Juawageur]A Jo Juswredacy
oy} 0} pajussald A[jeniul a1e saourvASLIS
yous [[e jey) samsua ¢ dojg je Louase
ouo uey) axour Funeordun souvAsLId
UONOE SSB[O € JO UONBHIUI 27) I0]
[esodoid s,a1e18 oy, - (NS vonIdg

‘(oAneuasardar pajeusisap

Io peay AouaGe 8-9) souesold

oy} aAJosa1/snlpe 0 Ayuoyne o)
TIIA JUSWSSRUB JO [9AQ] B J& PI[puULy
SI 95URASLIS oY) Je1 sernsus ¢ daig

1B [eSSTISIP JO ‘uorjowap ‘uorsuadsns
‘Aemyduy £q SO[TW ()¢ JOAO JO ISJSuEI)
Areyunjoaur ‘Aed aseq ur uononpal

B UO paseq ST Bt} 90UBASLIST © JO
vonenui oY, - (TNG)S WondeS :£1/9/11

‘Tesodoid s 81815 o) Sumaraal
Apuasaid st uotun oy :L1/9/11

¢ daig
e pajenIul oq Aousie auo uel) 210w
Suneorjdun saouASTIS UOT)OR SSEO JRY)

sasodoid aye1g oy, - (E)(g)S Uonoag

"20UBASLI

3y} 01 as11 SulALS JuaAe o) Surmorjoy
sAep ¢T WM ampaoo1d aoueaolIs ot
Jo [ do1§ ur )10] 108 Sk WIOJ 90UBAILIS B
Sumnnqns £q ‘syeudoidde se ¢ 10 7 daig
Te PIJENIUL 3q (O] S[OIIV U PaqLIOSap
Se) [essTsIp Jo ‘uonowsp ‘uorsuadsns
‘Kemy3ny Aq SI[TUI () I2AO JO IJSUBT)
AreyunjoAur ‘Aed aseq uI UonoNpax

© U0 paseq saoueadLId jey sesodoad
183§ AU - (T F)S WoNddg :L1/9/11

9INPID0IJ SOUBASIIL) -

SINIIWINOD

'TVSOdOdd NOINAN

'TVSOdOdd HLVIS

HITOLLAV

SI[ONIVY PIA[OSAIU()
WRIBY Jouddody 6I-8T(T 183X [EISL] J0] SUOI)EI0SIN

L

TOT ‘I 19qUdI3( :Jo st suonenosdN SurureSieq 3A1I9[[0)) JO SNIE)S
0207 ‘o€ sunp saadxy w213y Jud.ain)
WIA)SAS [PUHOSIag 33¥)S - () [oned AeMySIH epLIof]
UONRIDOSSY JUI[0AUIY DI[0J



WV 81:1T ‘8T0Z/8/T

£3J0T7 3d

"[essTsIp

I0 ‘monowsp ‘uorsuadsns ‘Kemygny

Aq S9[IW ()¢ I9A0 JO JOJSUET) ATRIUNJOATIT
‘Aed osBQ U1 UOHINPAT B 10§ SISEq S}

Se SAAIIS 31 J1 ATuo 9[qeAsLIS Apjuarmo
SIe SUONBN[BAD SOUBULIONS] £ 1/9/]]

“PALINIJ0 SBY J[J1MIE ST} JO g UONIIG
IO T UOTOAS JO UOTB[OlA ® JRT)) Padofe
ST 11 J1 9[qeAslIs oq [reys (s[qeidesoeun
o suonEI0adxs MOTaq) 21098 MBIADX
soueuLIo)rad [[e1oA0 s,00K01dmo e

yey sasodoxd uotup) oy - (F) [ Uonoos

"MO[2q POQEIOSaP SB (H) UOTI09S Japun
a[qeasud suolstAold asoT) aEwWw pnom
UOIA “9p0)) SANENSTUNUPY BPLIOL]
‘GE-T109 SIMY SN SE [[oM SB PouaIafol
2q Asyjod uoyenfeas soueuLopad
S,ANSHA 2y 1ey) o8en3ue] sasodoid
uorun) oY - (V)T UON93S :L1/9/11

‘SUIOOY1I0] 9SUOSAT {MBTADI
Jopun st [esodoxd uorun :£1/9/11

MIIADY DURULIOLIDJ —~ ]

"UOISIOSP Burpuiq pue [euly

€ IOpUDI pUR 30UBAILIS SUf) JOPISUOD

0} J0)eIjIqIE 31} 10] SAEp SSUISN] §
JeuonIppe ue Spraoid [[IM (¢ O} UOISIOap
€ ONSST 0} JOJRIIQIR UR 0) POpPIOLEL

SABp $8oUISNq JO JOQUUI S} 3SLIIOUL

0} [esodoud s, @18 oy T, - (SHDH)E Uonzg

[esodoiq aye)g PasIASY :L1/11/Z1

"SUOISIASIL LT/TT/T1
Furpnpour ‘fesodord s21e15 213 SulMoIASS

Apuasaid st uorun oy, :L1/11/21

REIG
ST J2AQUOTYM ‘SJALIQ JO UOISSTWIGNS STf)
Jo Suwreay o Jo 3UIsO[d S JO SEP Y}
WOy ‘sAep SSAUISN] 77 JUOLIND O} UL}
Iayyer ‘sAep ssouisnq ()¢ ULy} Ioje] ou
UOISIOp © onsSI [[BYS I0jeNIqIe Ue Jey)
sasodoxd aye1g o1 - (ND)§ uonoag

Jesodorq aye)g PasIASY 1L1/11/Z1

(PANUIIUOD) QINPIV0IJ SOUBASLIL) - §

SINAIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdAd ALVIS

ATOLLIV

SIONIY PIA[OSIIU)
JUIWIRISY 19U 6-810T 183X [BISL J10] suoneroSan

L

T0T "TT B_qURR( :Jo st suonenosaN Sururedieg 9A19[[0)) JO SNIB)S
0202 ‘o€ ungp saadx7 juomdaasy Jusaan)
WIdISAS [QUUOSINJ 3)8)S - JIU() [o)ed AeMySIH epLio[y
WO RIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY N[OJ



WV 8%:TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

£30€3d

010 “Aed Jo el oseq s,aako[dwe ayp
‘SHIPaID SABI sy sakofdius o1} JOPayMm
‘sa3e] J1 SINOY AUBTU MOY ‘SINO00

SIJ} U9JO MOY Jo1paxd 0y Arjiqeur o)

01 onp syeuruLIspu] - sjesodoad s, uorun
J0 Srewmss 3unsoo gdo ‘L1/9/11

'sIseq 9580-£q-2580 € U0 Aouse
oY1 Aq pa1episuod oq [[eys juswied
[ons I0J 81sonbal ‘I10AMOT ‘padIom

pey oy Jt se pred aq Aewr sokojdurs

1) ‘SIIPAId SABI[ PAUIL? JO OB © 0} Snp
sme)s Aed-uou e w paoefd st sokordwo
oyl J] 'P210ISaI 9q [[BYS UOHRUIWEXD
[edIpaur 3} JO S)NSaI ) 03 Jord
sakorduwus o1y £q pasn aq 0y paxmnbas
dABI[ paures Aue ‘sernp poudisse

oy urofrad 0 s[qe st sakoydwo a1y

JB} SULIJUOD UOT)RUNIEXS [ROIPIW Iy}
JI "DV ‘pE-109 91Ny Jo suotsiaoxd oty
[} S0UBPIODOR UT 9q [[BYS SUONBUIIEXD
[BOIpalI PAISPIO AOUSSY "UOT)RUTIIEXS
[e21paWE patopIo-Aoudfe ur JO S}Nsax Ay}
pue saunp pausisse uuojrad o) s[qeun

2q Aewi 3040[dWIS 3T 1B VOT)BUILLISIOP
s AousaFe o) usamiaq porrad oy JSA0D 03
SHPAID SABI] POUIES 9sn 0) sako[dud ue
axnbai Aewr ANSHQ W e} sasodoad
uorun) syg, - TT UON%a§ MAN :L1/9/11

ANTIqesI( Pa1osto)
-(Of PUR 9ABYT HOM JO SINOH — 8

SINAWINOD

"TVSOdO¥dd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

TTOLLAV

STV PIAJOSIIUN)
JuWRIZY 12uddody 6T-810Z 48X [BISL] 10) SUONIEI}0SIN
LIOT "IT 12qUIdN( :jo se suonenodaN sururedieg 2ANII[I0)) Jo snje)g
0207 ‘0€ dunp soxdx7] Juawd2I3y Jud.LIN))
WIA)SAS [QUUOSIdJ J)e)S - Ju() [0ped AeMySIH epLio]
WO BIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY III[0J




WV 8¥:TT ‘ST0Z/8/T

L3101 3d

"uorsiaoxd o £q

paxmbai spotiad sj1om papusixs poysnlpe
o1} JO )nsax ¢ sk saakojdurs [enyoe

uo joedwr aane3susanisod paxmu oty
PUE 9JBIIO3LJS 0} USPING IANRISTUIIPE
a1} 0} anp uoIsIACId ST} JO [BAOWIDI

o Suisodoud st aje)g oy “ndun £ousSe
uodn paseg - ()5 TON3S :L1/11/C1

"A1oye) orqderSosd

pajorduut 313 0) pouSisse aIe “IOWIDA0N)
oY} Aq paIe[oap SI ASUDFIoWS Uk usym
‘oym saakofdws 10y ‘porrad yrom Inoy
091 30 (g Ue UBY) ISYILI ‘UOTIB[NOTED
QWIISAO0 JO 9sodind oy} 10] YaompIom
oy (o e 10§ sapraoid yomym ofenSue|
10enU0 Jo uoneurwIe oy sesodoxd

amg oyJ, - {4)S uondag :L1/11/z1

(panumuoo) Ayjiqesiq pajosuuo)
-qOf pue 9ARYT ‘JIOM JO SINOH — 8]

SINIIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd HLVIS

ATOILAV

SA[IN)IY PIAJOSAIUN)

JUIWIAIZY 1PUd03Y 6I-81(0T 1¢dX [EISL] 10] SUONEN0TIN
LTOT T1 _qUI3I3( :jo se suonenodaN SurureSieg aandsqo)) jo snye)g

0202 ‘0€ dunp saardxy W WIIIBY Judaun))
WRJSAS [PUN0SIJ d)e)S - JU() [0 g AemySiH] epLIOL]
UOKRID0SSY JUIOAIUIG I[0J



NV 8¥:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

£30S3d

vdd ep
i suefd gons jo suire) o Sunenodou
‘uerd wonuojal 19)e uerd UONULIAI PUE JUSUIINIOAI
PUE JUSTINIOAL B JIUQNS JOU [[IM ‘Aue pazijenpiarpul ue juowe[dun p[noys
J1 ‘sorousse yorym jotpaxd o) Lyiqeur sy ANSHA 24} 181} ‘SUOHepUSIIIonal
0] anp srewiuLIRiepy] - sjesodoid s.uotun|  198pnq 61-8107 A SJOUISAOD 31 UO
Jo Srewmsa 3unsoo 4O (LI/11/Z1| Poseq ‘sesodoxd worup) oyl :L1/11/Z1

10y suonendoiddy [e1ousn) 6107

-810¢ 93 Aq paxmbai se uoneiuaWNOOp

Surpoddns ajqeytrea apnjour [[eys uejd

oy ] ‘sjusunsnipe ofem Aue Jo Surmmy

9} pUe BLISILIO ‘S3SSE[0 A[qISI[e JIIM

3Uuo[E UONUSIRI PUe JUSWIILIOST SSAIPPE

0} $3133)R1)S WO UOTJBULIOUT PA[IEIap

apnyout [1is uepd yoeq -sookoydue

JUSWS0IOJUS ME] JO UOIIU)AI pue

jusunInIoar oy} Suroueyus Jo ssodind

oY) yim Asuage yoes 10y padojaasp

uepd e ySnony parelsmurmipe oq

[[14 spuny uonesusduwroo o[qe[IeA. ay T,

*31818 YY) JO SME[ AU} JO JUSWIAOIOFUD

a1} JO SWILID JO UOT}OJISP pue UonuaAaid

"siseq oly1oads-£oucge o} st Ayrjiqisuodsar Areurad osoym

ue uo pafpuey ‘AjpAneusjfe ‘10 satousFe| pue Aouode aels e Aq o) [[ny pakordwo

dess [re 107 [esodoid oSem [esroAmun,, SISOIJJO JUSWIIIOTUS ME] paljienb

B BIA PO[pPURY 9q [[IM suonenoSau UIejal pue JInId31 0) uonesuaduios

oFem JI ourIdlep 0) SUOISSNOSIp|  10] opiaold suonepuswnoday jSpng

sasodoxd worun) oYL :£1/9/11| SJOWdAOD SY] - TWONORS LT/LT/IT safem — 6T
SINAIWINOD 'TVSOJOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVIS ATOILAV
SO[ILIY PIA[OSAIU()

JIWRIZY J10uddody] 6I-81(7 1€dX [€ISL] 10] suonper}osaN

L

TOT "TT QI :jo se suonenosaN summresieg sA193[[0)) JO snye)§
0707 ‘0 dunp sdardxy JuomaRa8y JuaaIn)
WAISAQ [QUUOSIdJ I)BIS - JU() [01)ed AeMySIH epLIo[]
UOT)BIDOSSY JUI[0AIUIG N[0 g



WV 8t:TT ‘8102/8/T

£309°3d

(syoedun

VOIIAUSUIDINAI $3PN[OUL JUNOWe)
UOLIOID 81834 () oU) Sunesuwt 414 b3
10J UOI[[IX ¢"[§ - 10U SI PIEPUE)S 9OIAISS
Jo sreak oy s1ep oY) U0 10 §1/1/01
QAI}OR]JS 9 0) 9OIAIIS JO SIBIA SIOW

10 0T s sasko[dws yrun SurureSieq
10y (% POUONUSWAIO)E ) 0} UOLNPPE
ur) yusunsnipe Arejes oseq %¢ v (q)

(s10edwn yO1.uswoInal

SOPNIOUT JUNOWE) FI 4 6L T 10§ WOKu
L$ - 81/1/L ©A103132 39 03 L1/0€/9 JO

se pakojduro saakordwe yun Sururesieq
1oy jusunsnipe Arejes oseq %/ v (®)

:ue[d UONUL)AT PUR JUSUIILIOAS

© asodoxd 1ou so0p AINSHA 241

JU 61-810T A 103 aste1 Aed oaneuro)e
ue yo resodoxd suomun) yo Sunsoo gJo

“J[0S31 AeT YOIgM

sonsst uorssa1durod 3urynsal ssaIppe

0} ISPIO UI PIpPN]oul o4 [jeys jusunsnipe
uorssa1dod o3em € ‘UONEOIISSE[O

© Jo Aed Sunres wnwrunu sy

10y yusumsnipe Aed e 10 st uejd ANSHA
o 31 yeyy sasodoxd worun) oy ¢

"JOW SI PIBpUR)S 9OIAISS
JO SIB3A o) 298P 21} U0 10 §T/1/01
QAI}O3JJ9 9 0] SDIAIIS JO SIBIK QIOW
10 QT gy s394Kodws jrun FurmeSieq
10¥ (% PSUOTIUSWIAIONE SV} O} UOTIPPE
ur) jusunsnipe A1efes aseq % ¢ v ()

81/1/L 3AN0e 89 01 L1/0€/9 JO
se pakopdws ssakordwe jrun Fururedieq

Ioj yusunsnipe Arefes aseq o, v {€)

:sapapour yoigm ued uonus)al
pue jusunnIoal © 9sodoid jou saop

AWSHA 23 31 61-810C A J0J asiel
Ked sypwame ue sesodoxd uotun) oy ‘7

SI/LT/1 welp 1oje] ou Y J Sy pue
SINQ ‘IouiaAon) o1y 03 ueld v jussoxd
Isnwr AINSHA 9Y1 1ey) sesodoxd uonun
oy} ‘sueld UOHUSIAL pUR JUSUIINIOST
9} JO JUSIIOD ) FuruLIo)ep uj ‘|

(panuuoo) saSem — Gz

SINHIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd A1LVIS

ATOLLAV

SI[IN)IY PIA[OSITUN)
JUIWIAIZY 19uwdodY GI-81(0T 183X [BISL] 10J suonenosaN

L

10T T1 I3qUdI_( :Jo st suonenogaN Suraresieg SARII[[0) JO SNYB}S
0707 ‘0€ dunp soardxj JUAWRISY Jud.LIn))
WI)SAS [PUUOSIDJ d)e)S - JIu() [o)eJ AeMySIY epLIoL]
UONBIIOSSY JUI[0AITWIY dI[0og



NV 8¥:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

£30 /84

61-810C Ad
10} paFueloun UIBWIAI [JeyS SUONNQLIUOD

9ako1dwo pue $)IFaULq SOUBINSUY
yiresy jeq sasodoxd wotun) oyl :L1/9/11

"610T ‘1 Atenuef

SAIOSYS ‘URld WBSH S[quonpa( Yy
a1 10§ asnods yoes 10§ Yuow 12d G1°7¢$
pue Ue[d Y[ESH pIepue)§ o) IoJ ‘esnods
[oea 10] puow 1ad ()6$ 03 9Furyod [Im
ue[q aoueInsu] Yijesy dnoiny saefordwyg
aje1s oy wi Bunediopred esnods yoes
Ioy yiuowr xod ¢ 1§ Jo swnrwaid JusLnD
wredo1g 9snodg o1 JO UonESIpOw

e sasodoxd ;11§ 9T, LT/LT/IT

SIJOUDE SOURINSUL - /7

SLNAIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

"TVSOdOdd H1LV1S

HIDILAV

SAIILIY PIA[OSIIUN)
JTIWIDIFY 19uadoay 6T-810T 183X [€ISI] 0] Suonenogan

LI0T “TT QU™ :jo se suonenosaN sSururesieq 341990 Jo sn)e)S

0207 ‘0¢ dunp saxdxj JuawdI3y Juaain))
WIYSAS [PUUO0SIdJ J)E)S - () [o0)eJ AeMYSIF] BpLIO]
UOI)RIIOSSY JUI[0AITWIG N[O



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal - Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 1 of 11

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and the PBA to encourage informal discussions of complaints
between management and employees as well as between supervisors and employees. Such
discussions should be held with a view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter
in a manner satisfactory to the employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal
grievance procedure prescribed by this Article.

SECTION 1 — Definitions
As used in this Article:

(A)  “Grievance” shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement.

(B)  “Grievant” shall mean a Florida Highway Patrol employee or a group of Florida
Highway Patrol employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one
shall be designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the
grievance.

(C)  “Days” shall mean business days. “Business days” refers to the ordinary business
hours, i.e., 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the
recipient is located. Furthermore, “business days” do not include any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list
furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a
suspension of grievance processing as agreed in writing by the parities. “Business days” also do
not include a day(s) on which the offices of DMS or any agency employing bargaining unit
members are closed under an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency
condition or disaster under the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(¢).

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 2 of 11

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) Ifagrievant or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this Article
and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, the
grievant or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and such election shall
be binding on the grievant or the PBA. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will
be the one processed.

(B) A grievant who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or
other initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be
represented by the PBA. When the grievant has elected PBA representation, the grievant and the
PBA Grievance Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting. Written communication
concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to the grievant and the PBA Grievance
Representative, and the decision agreed to by the state and the PBA shall be binding on the
grievant.

© If the grievant is not represented by the PBA, any adjustment of the grievance shall
be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The PBA shall be given reasonable opportunity to
be present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance. A grievant using this procedure
in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure established by the Parties to this
Agreement. The PBA shall not be bound by the decision of a grievance or arbitration in which the
grievant was not represented by the PBA.

SECTION 3 — Procedures

(A)  Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and
handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the grievances.
Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail (including e-mail),
courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic facsimile, the burden shall be on the sending
Party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile number before transmission. Documents shall be
deemed filed upon receipt during regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Documents
received after business hours shall be considered received the next business day.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 3 of 11

(B)  There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(C)  The filing or pendency of a grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action complained
of, subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

(D)  After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised unless the
Parties agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues, or upon a party’s
showing of good cause for the consideration of such new issue, but in no event later than the filing
of a contract language grievance at Step 3, or the filing of a disciplinary grievance at Step 2. When
an issue is unchanged, but it is determined that an article, section or paragraph of the Agreement
has been cited imprecisely or erroneously by the grievant, the grievant shall have the right to amend
that part of his grievance.

(E)  The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing to Arbitration shall
not establish a precedent binding on either the PBA or the state in other cases.

(F) If a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbitration hearing is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the regular work hours of the grievant, a representative of the
grievant, or any required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at
grievance meetings, mediation, or arbitration hearings outside of a participant’s regular work hours
shall not be deemed time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of participants attending
such meetings on behalf of the union. All grievance meetings shall be held at times and locations
agreed to by the parties except that, unless agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held within 50
miles of the grievant’s place of work.

(G)  Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

1) Step 1.

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 15 days following the
date on which the employee knew or should have known of the event giving rise to the grievance,

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 4 of 11

submit a grievance at Step 1. In filing a grievance at Step 1, the grievant or his designated
representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance form as
contained in Appendix B of this Agreement setting forth specifically the complete facts on which
the grievance is based, the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated,
and the relief requested. In discipline cases, it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that the
discipline was without cause, and requests the grievant to be made whole.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designee shall
communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and to the PBA Grievance Representative, if
any, within 10 days following receipt of the written grievance. If the Management Representative
fails to respond within the time limit, it shall be deemed a denial.

2) Step 2.

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the grievant or designated
representative may submit the grievance in writing on a grievance form as contained in Appendix
B of this Agreement, to the Agency Head or designated representative within 10 days following
receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance form must contain the same information as the
grievance filed at Step 1. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at
Step 1, together with the written response and documents in support of the grievance.

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a
decision in writing to the grievant and the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within 15 days
following receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head fails to respond within the time
limits, it shall be deemed a denial.

3) Step 3 — Contract Language Disputes

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay,
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the grievant or designated representative may submit
it in writing on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement, to the Office

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 5 of 11

Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of the Department of Management Services, 4050
Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-0950 within 15 days following receipt of
the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps
1 and 2, together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. When the
grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance form must contain the same information
as a grievance filed at Step 1.

(b)  The Department of Management Services shall discuss the
grievance with the PBA Grievance Representative, or grievant or his representative if not
represented by the PBA. The DMS shall communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and to
the designated representative within 15 days following receipt of the written grievance.

@) Grievance Mediation

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to
be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been
submitted to arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a
grievance, the scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (5)(d) below may be
extended by mutual agreement beyond five months. Either party may withdraw from the
mediation process with written notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation.

Q) Arbitration

(a) If a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base
pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal)
was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the PBA representative may appeal the
grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this
Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language dispute
as described in (3), above, is not resolved at Step 3, the PBA representative may appeal the
grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this
Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial written step,
the PBA declined to represent the grievant because he was not a member of the PBA, the grievant
may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The appeal to arbitration shall be filed with the Department
of Management Services on the form contained in Appendix C of this Agreement and shall include

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 6 of 11

a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1, 2, and 3 (if applicable) together with all written
responses and documents in support of the grievance.

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of at least six
arbitrators selected by the Parties. The Department of Management Services’ Arbitration
Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration hearing with the state and PBA representatives and the
arbitrator listed next on the panel in rotation and shall coordinate the arbitration hearing time, date,

and location.

(c) At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration
hearing, the parties shall file with the arbitrator, and provide to each other, a list of witnesses to be
called at the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, and a brief statement of the material facts or matters
relevant to the grievance about which each witness will testify. A party may file a written request
with the arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the other party, for an exception to the filing time
limits for good cause. If such exception is granted, the other party may request that the hearing be
rescheduled if necessary for the party to respond to the late filed witness information.

(d) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related grievances
for hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible
but not more than five months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration Form. If the
arbitrator initially selected is not available to schedule within this period, the Arbitration
Coordinator shall contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who
can schedule within the prescribed period. A party may request of the arbitrator, with notice to
the other party and the Arbitration Coordinator, an extension of time/continuance based on
documented unusual and compelling circumstances. The parties may agree to schedule a hearing
beyond the five-month deadline. The Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule arbitration hearings
at times and locations agreed to by the parties, taking into account the availability of evidence,
location of witnesses and existence of appropriate facilities, as well as other relevant factors;
however, unless agreed otherwise, all hearings shall be held within 50 miles of the grievant(s)’

place of work.

(e) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted
to address only the arbitrability issue. In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the
panel of arbitrators (see (5)(b) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 7 of 11

within 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose. The hearing on this issue
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five
business days of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of
the parties and the arbitrator. The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and expenses
of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another
arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with the
provisions of (5)(b) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s).

3] The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this
Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the PBA, the grievant(s), and the employees in
the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be governed by the following

provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 22-30 days from
the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, shall be determined by
applying a preponderance of the evidence standard, and shall set forth the arbitrator’s opinion and
conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other issue,
and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the
determination of the issues submitted.

4. The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the application and
interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any
decisions that are:

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting from,
or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of applicable law
or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 8 of 11

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the power, duties and
responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and regulations having
the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities have been abridged,
delegated or modified by the express provisions of this Agreement.

6. The arbitrator’s award may include back pay, to the Grievant(s);
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:

a. An award of back pay shall not exceed the amount of pay the
grievant would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by the amount of
wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance benefits during
the back pay period, shall not include punitive damages, shall not be retroactive to a date earlier
than 15 days prior to the date the grievance was initially filed.

b. If the Association is granted a continuance to reschedule an
arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be responsible for back
pay for the period between the original hearing date or the end of the five month period described
in (5)(d), above, whichever is later, and the rescheduled date.

(g) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the
parties; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its
own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee and expense
statement to the Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator’s contract.

(h) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the proceedings.
Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter. If either party orders a
transcript of the proceedings, the party shall pay for the cost of the transcript and provide a
photocopy to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript to the other
party upon written request and payment of copying expenses ($.15 per page).

(1) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which
it was not a Party.
For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 9 of 11

SECTION 4 — Time Limits

(A)  Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant, or the PBA, where appropriate, to proceed
to the next step. The state will make a good faith effort to timely communicate decisions at each

step.

(B)  The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any step
of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by written agreement.

(C)  Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 — Exceptions

(A)  Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit
the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee without his consent,
or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, appeal, administrative action
before a government board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by the PBA.

(B)  All grievances will be presented at the—initial-step-Step 1 with the following
exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by

submitting a grievance form as setforth-in—Step—t—contained in Appendix B within 15 days
following the date on which the employee knew or should have known of the event aetual

knewledge-ofthe-oceurrence-giving rise to the grievance.

(2) If the grievance arises from an agency action listed in Article 10(F) of this
Agreement, a grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 by submitting a grievance form as contained in
Appendix B within 15 days following the date on which the employee knew or should have known
of the event giving rise to the grievance.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 10 of 11

(23) The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of
employees in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of this
Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against an employee. The
PBA’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding in another forum
on the same issue. The class action grievance form shall identify the specific group (i.e.,
employees’ job classification(s), work unit(s), etc.) adversely impacted by the dispute relating to
the interpretation or application of the Agreement. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or,
where more than once agency is implicated, Step 3 of this procedurein—aeccordance—with-the
provisions-set-forth-herein; by submitting a grievance form as contained in Appendix B, within 15

days effollowing the knowledge-orreasonable knowledge-date on which the grievant knew or

should have known of the eecurrence-of the-event giving rise to the grievance.

(C)  An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position may
only file non-discipline grievances to Step 3, unless the processing of such grievances is further
limited by specific provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 6 — Expedited Arbitration

(A) The parties recognize that certain grievances may be amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly, at any point in the grievance procedure, the PBA may
request expedited arbitration of a grievance. Requests for expedited arbitration shall be granted in
cases involving arbitrable disciplinary action less than discharge. In all other cases, expedited
arbitration will be used upon agreement of the parties.

(B)  Expedited Arbitration Rules:

(1) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all remaining
steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the grievance is submitted directly to the
expedited arbitrator.

2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of four permanent

arbitrators.

For the State For the PBA

Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson

State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 6

Fiscal Year 2018 - 19

December 11, 2017

Page 11 of 11

3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than six hours in duration,
with each party limited to three hours. There shall be no post-hearing briefs, although either party
may submit a written statement of position to the arbitrator during the hearing. The Arbitrator
shall issue a short (no longer than three pages) decision within seven days of the hearing. With
the exception of the foregoing, all provisions of section 3(G)(5) of this procedure shall be

applicable.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Recpener Proposals

‘. Contract Year 2018-2019
Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

The following collective bargaining provisions are opened for discussion purposes.
A comprehensive proposal regarding these provisions will be made at a later date.
These proposals are drawn to the pending 2017-2020 collective bargaining

agreement.

Article 14 — Performance Review

The Florida PBA proposes the revisions attached as Exhibit 1



PERFORMANC REVIEW
November 6, 2017
Version 1

Article 14
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

SECTION 1 - Performance Reviews

(A)  Performance reviews of employees shall be conducted in accordance with Rule
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code, Performance Evaluation System_and the terms of each

agency’s performance evaluation policy.

(B) Employees’ performance shall be reviewed by their immediate supervisors or
designated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance review to higher management for

approval.

(C)  Numerical arrest, citation or violation quotas will not be used as the-prirtary_a
factor in reviewing employees’ performance.

(D)  The state will continue to maintain and will make a good faith effort to train
supervisors in performance review techniques.

(E)  Anoverall performance evaluation of below expectations or unacceptable shall be
grievable if it is alleged of the evaluation violates Section 1 or Section 2 of the article.
Otherwise, Performanee—performance evaluations are pot grievable under Article 6 of this
Agreement; however, a performance evaluation may be contested if it serves, in whole or in part,
as the basis for a reduction in base pay, involuntary transfer over 50 miles by highway,

suspension, demotion, or dismissal.

SECTION 2 — Agency Performance Reviews

The state agrees that each agency’s performance review system for employees shall
adhere to the following standards.

(A)  Performance reviews shall be based on an employee’s actual job performance and
shall not conform to preconceived percentage distributions. When a numerical scoring formula is

to be utilized by any agency, the evaluation form shall contain the formula with blanks for
insertion of the actual scores that will be used in reaching the overall evaluation.

(B)  Whenever practicable, an employee’s performance shall be reviewed by a sworn
law enforcement officer.

SECTION 3 - Recruit Evaluation

Employees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon completion of recruit
school. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to their supervisor.

EXHIBIT
E-1




PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 18

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 11, 2017

Page 1 of 6

Article 18
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY

The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in Rule
60L-34 of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage and payment of sick and
annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment, shall apply to all employees. The
state shall not compel an employee to involuntarily use annual leave in circumstances where the
employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave. This provision shall not apply in instances of
qualified family medical leave.

SECTION 1 — Workday, Work Period

(A) The DHSMYV shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B)  Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule, the state has
the ability to adjust the employee’s schedule as long as it occurs within the same work period and
provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to the commencement of the
employee’s adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period, or 24 hours’ notice for a 80-hour work period
or 36 hours’ notice for a 160-hour work period. The state will make a good faith effort to offset

such extra hours in eight hour increments.

(C)  The work period for employees shall be 40, 80 or 160 hours, as determined by the
Executive Director of the DHSMV.

SECTION 2 — Non-Required Work Time

Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state. If records of voluntary time
are kept by the state or the DHSMYV, they shall not be used to adversely affect performance reviews
or promotions.

SECTION 3 — Work Schedule

(A)  Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts
will be posted no less than 14 calendar days in advance and will reflect at least a two workweek
schedule; however, the state will make a good faith effort to reflect a one month schedule.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 18

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 11, 2017

Page 2 of 6

(B) Inthe event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section may be
void.

(C)  The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at the
DHSMYV and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are established.

SECTION 4 — Rest Periods

(A) A supervisor shall not unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period
during any four contiguous hours of work. It is recognized that staffing and work priorities may
prevent such a rest period during a given workday. Additionally, many positions have a post of
duty assignment that requires coverage for a full shift and does not permit the employee to leave
his post. In those cases, the employee may be able to “rest” while the employee physically remains
in the geographic location of his duty post. The employee is to remain responsive to calls during a
rest period.

(B)  Rest periods are not authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or
early departure from duty, and are not to be used contiguously with a meal break.

(C) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Agency Head or designee shall
be final and binding on all parties.

SECTION 5 - Overtime

(A)  The work period for each full-time employee shall be 40, 80 or 160 hours, as
determined by the agency.

(B) Work beyond the employee’s regular work period shall be recognized in
accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Coderprovided—however,—that-when-an

of overtime to-employees-inthe situation-describedherein. The state shall make a reasonable effort

to equalize distribution of overtime opportunities.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 18

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 11, 2017

Page 3 of 6

(C)  The PBA agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative
Code that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards
Act as it is applied to public employees, which the state agrees to comply with.

SECTION 6 — FLSA Compensatory Leave

(A)  Ifthe DHSMYV has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as described

below:

(B)  An employee who is filling an included position may waive payment for overtime
and elect to have the overtime hours credited to “FLSA compensatory leave.” Such election will
apply until changed again, and only to workdays starting on the day of the change and in which
hours worked in the work period exceed the contracted hours. Overtime hours that the employee
elects to have credited as “FLSA compensatory leave” will accrue at the rate of one and one-half
hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will only be permitted to accumulate a
maximum of 80 hours of “FLSA compensatory leave” credits which may be taken in any
increments at the employee’s discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June
30 or December 31 of each year. The employee’s request to utilize FLSA compensatory leave
shall be granted so long as granting the request would not result in “undue disruption.” If the
FLSA compensatory leave is not utilized by the employee by June 30 or December 31 of each
year, all unused “FLSA compensatory leave” credits at the close of business on December 31 and
June 30 shall be paid for at the employee’s straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with
Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, as amended. An employee who separates from the
Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all unused “FLSA compensatory
leave” in accordance with the above.

(C)  The parties agree that all Florida Highway Patrol recruits shall be treated in the
manner described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave:

(1) Florida Highway Patrol recruits undergoing training to attain Law
Enforcement Certification, or agency-specific orientation, will be exempt from the 80 hour cap on
the earning of FLSA compensatory leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31
payment requirements during the time they attend an academy or education institution.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 18

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 11, 2017

Page 4 of 6

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation from
the academy or educational institution for the purpose of relocating to their new assignment. Such
leave must be authorized by the recruit’s agency. Recruits must use the accrued FLSA
compensatory leave credits before using regular annual leave.

(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within the
next six-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as presently provided for in Rule 60L-
34, Florida Administrative Code, and Article 18, Section 5(B) of the Agreement.

SECTION 7 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A)  Special Compensatory Leave is defined as leave that is earned as provided in Rule
60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, for hours worked on a holiday, extra hours worked during
an established work week which contains a holiday, or extra hours worked when the employee’s
assigned office, facility, or region is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor or any
other disaster or emergency condition.

(B)  Use of Special Compensatory Leave:

(1) When an employee earns special compensatory leave credits, the employee
shall have 60 calendar days in which to use the earned special compensatory leave time.

(2) If the employee fails to use the earned special compensatory leave during
the 60 day period, the supervisor shall schedule the employee to use the leave.

(3) An employee who has a leave balance in excess of 240 hours shall be
required to use a minimum of 120 hours of the employee’s earned special compensatory leave
each calendar year or the amount necessary to bring the employee’s special compensatory leave
balance to 240 hours, whichever is less, prior to using any annual leave credits, unless such annual
leave credits are being substituted for an employee’s unpaid individual medical leave granted in
accordance with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or
parental leave granted in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.

(4) An employee who begins employment after July 1, 2013 shall only be
permitted to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave credits,
notwithstanding any additional hours worked on a holiday, during the established work week

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 18

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 11, 2017

Page 5 of 6

containing a holiday, or during the closure of the employee’s assigned office, facility, or region
pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition.

SECTION 8 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

The DHSMYV shall set up and administer a sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan for
employees if there is sufficient employee participation to render the pool and sick leave transfer
plan administratively feasible. Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full access
to the benefits, of the DHSMV’s existing sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan.

SECTION 9 - Disability Leave with Pay

(A) Anemployee who sustains a job-related disability and is eligible for disability leave
with pay under the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, shall be carried in
full-pay status for up to 40 work hours immediately following the onset of the injury without being
required to use accrued leave.

(B) If an employee is unable to return to work at the end of the 40 work hour period,
the employee may supplement the Workers’ Compensation benefits with accrued leave in an
amount necessary to remain in full-pay status.

(1) An employee who is maliciously or intentionally injured and thereby
sustains a job-connected disability compensable under Chapter 440, F.S., shall be carried in full-
pay status on administrative leave during the duration of the disability rather than being required

to use accrued leave.

(C) After an employee has used a total of 100 hours of accrued sick, annual, or
compensatory leave, or leave without pay, the agency may request permission from the
Department of Management Services to continue the employee in full-pay status for a subsequent
period of not more than 26 weeks from the date requested by the agency. This request is to include
the information described in Rule 60L-34.0061(1)(b)2, Florida Administrative Code. The
Department shall approve such requests which, in its judgment, are in the best interest of the state.
Upon approval of the request by the Department, the agency will provide the employee with
administrative leave (Leave Code 0056, Admin - Authorized Other) in an amount necessary to
supplement the employee’s Workers’ Compensation benefits so that the employee may be in full-

pay status.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 18

Fiscal Year 2018-19

December 11, 2017

Page 6 of 6

(D) Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be subject
to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

SECTION 10 — Alternate Duty

(A)  Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the State
Personnel System as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily unable to perform
his normal work duties, the Agency Head or designee shall give due consideration to any request
by the employee to be temporarily assigned substitute duties within the employee’s medical
restrictions. This shall have no effect on the agency’s ability to make a different assignment based
upon current medical opinion.

(B) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Agency Head or designee shall
be final and binding on all parties.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Article 18 — Hours of Work and Overtime

The Florida PBA proposes inclusion of the new Section 11, attached as Exhibit 2.



DISABILITY LEAVE
November 6, 2017
Version 1

*New Section 11 — Compulsory Disability Leave

An agency may require an employee to use earned leave credits to cover the
period between the agency’s determination that the employee may be unable to
perform assigned duties and the results of an agency-ordered medical examination.
The medical examination shall be in accordance with the provisions of Rule 60-34,
Florida Administrative Code. If the medical examination confirms that the
employee is able to perform the assigned duties, any earned leave required to be
used by the employee prior to the results of the medical examination shall be
restored. If the employee is placed in a non-pay status due to a lack of earned
leave credits, the employee may be paid as if he had worked; however, requests for

such payment shall be considered by the agency on a case-by-case basis.

E-2




PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 17, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - General Pay Provisions

Pay, including increases to base rate of pay and salary additives, shall be in accordance
with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 — Recruitment and Retention

The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for compensation to recruit and retain

qualified law enforcement officers employed full time by a state agency and whose primary
responsibility is the prevention and detection of crime or the enforcement of the laws of the state.
The available compensation funds will be administered through a plan developed for each agency
with the purpose of enhancing the recruitment and retention of law enforcement employees. Each
plan will include detailed information on strategies to address recruitment and retention along with
eligible classes, criteria and the timing of any wage adjustments. The plan shall include verifiable
supporting documentation as required by the 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act.

SECTION 3 — Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 — Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Career Service employees who have permanent status in their current position may be
given the option of receiving up to 24 hours of unused annual leave each December, in the form
of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal Article 25

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 17, 2017

Page 2 of 2

each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,

Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 6 - Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

. . . ¢
lorida Highway Patrol Bargaining Uni
Hor s November 6, 2017

Article 25 - Wages

This proposal is drafted in consideration of Governor Scott’s Fiscal Year 2018-
2019 Recommended General Appropriations Act and specifically that section
denominated as Section 8(2) of Employee Compensation and Benefits, Special Pay
issues.

The Florida PBA agrees that the State’s law enforcement agencies should
implement an individualized Recruitment and Retention Plan after negotiation of
the terms of such plans with the PBA.

1. In determining the content of R&R plans, the Florida PBA proposes a
more aggressive timeline than that suggested by Governor Scott and
DMS. It is the PBA’s position agency draft recruitment and retention
plans should be presented to the Office of the Governor, DMS and the
Association, no later than January 17, 2018.

2. The PBA proposes a alternate pay raise for FY 2018-2019 which
includes the following components for agencies that do not propose an
approved R&R plan which includes:

The raise shall provide a base salary pay adjustment for bargaining
unit members of a minimum of seven percent (7%) for members
employed as of June 30, 2018 to be effective July 1, 2018.

The raise provide for a base salary pay adjustment of a minimum of
three percent (3%) for members with ten or more years of service,
such increase to be effective October 1, 2018, or on the date the years
of service standard is met.

3. If the agency plan or intent is to provide for an adjustment in the
minimum starting salary of a classification, it shall also provide a wage
adjustment for current bargaining unit members in order to address
compression issues which may result from the increase in the starting
salary. Both DMS and PBA recognize salary compression is a major
issue which needs to be fully addressed in the development of a R&R

plan.



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Article 25 - Wages

4. The PBA and DMS agree to set aside the time necessary to complete
negotiations in a fair and reasonable fashion. Once negotiations of an -
agency recruitment and retention plan is complete the Florida Legislature
shall be provided a copy of the plan for its consideration.




PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit
State Proposal — Article 27

Fiscal Year 2018-19

November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program

The employee share of premiums for the State Emplovees Group Health Insurance Plan
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019.

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits
(A)  Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in section 112.19, Florida Statutes.
(B)  Education benefits will be as provided in section 112.19, Florida Statutes.

(C)  State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee’s
surviving spouse and children will be as provided in section 110.123, Florida Statutes.

(D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall
not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Article 27 — Insurance

The Florida PBA proposes: Health insurance benefits and employee contributions
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.



Police Benevolent Association - CBU 12 Wage Proposals
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Union/issue

Estimated Cost

Comments

Article 25 - For agencies that do not propose a
Recruitment and Retention Plan, propose a base
salary pay adjustment for bargaining unit members
of 7% for members employed as of June 30, 2018
to be effective July 1, 2018.

$7.0 million

Itis not currently possible to determine which agencies will not
propose a Recruitment and Retention Plan, therefore the propsed
increase is calcuated for all unit positions. Downloaded all unit
positions, transferred from PeopleFirst into LAS/PBS as of
12/21/17. Calcuated a 7% increase for all positions (1,795 FTE).
Amount includes retirement/FICA impacts.

Article 25 - For agencies that do not propose a
Recruitment and Retention Plan, propose a base
salary pay adjustment for bargaining unit members
of 3% for members with 10 or more years of service,
such increase to be effective October 1, 2018, or on
the date the years of service standard is met.

$1.3 million

It is not currently possible to determine which agencies will not
propose a Recruitment and Retention Plan, therefore the propsed
increase is calcuated for all unit positions. From the download
above, after the 7% was applied, determined the positions that
will meet at least 10 years of service as of 6/30/19. For those
positions, calcuated a 3% increase. Applied 75% for a 10/1
effective date. Amount includes retirement/FICA impacts. 845
FTE met the 10 year criterion. Note that if a position met the 10
year threshold on April 1, 2019, their increase is included for the
full 9 month period.

Page 1

of 1




PBA - i.aw
Enforcement Unit



WV TS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

L30T 3d
"20UBASLIZ UONOR Sse[o 97} Jo 1d1e0a1
BuMO[[0g SAED ST UIYHIM TOISIOBp
€ 9]BOUNUIUIOD PUE ‘$59001d 9ouRASLIS
oyl ayemIpi000 ‘Asusge pajesrdun
Aue puE UOTU() oY) YIIM SOURAILIS
3} SSNOSIP PINOM $IIAING JUAWSTLURIA]
Jo juounaeds( oy I, asuodsar opim
oS I0)U JUNSISUOD B SINSUS 0} SarousFe ‘¢ daig
suoueA 0} Ajoreredes uer) Isyiel 1 pajeniur oq AousSe duo ueyy SI0W
S9OIAIRS JuSWaSRURA] JO JuatIRda(] Supeordun sa0uRASLIS UOTIOE SSE]D JBT)
o) 01 pajuasaxd A[pentur are soourAsLIS sosodoid a1e15 oY ] - (ENHJS UonodS
yons j[e jey} saunsue ¢ dog je Lousde
auo ueyy arouwr Juneorduwr 2ouLASLIS
UOTO. SSE[O € JO UOHBIIIUI 3T} I0]
Tesodoxd soye1g oy, - (E))S GONPaS
"20URASIZ
‘(9aneussardar pojeudisap 9 0) 9511 SurALS 1UIAS o) Suimop|oj
Io peay AouaSe 3'0) oouesansd sAep G urgim ampasold soueAsus oy
o} aajosaijsulpe 01 Ajogine oY) Jo 1 do1g uI YuI0] 198 SE U0} A0UBASLIS B
)i JUSWOTBUBW JO [9A3] B J& PO[pUEY Summuqns £q ‘senrdordde se ¢ 10 7 doig
ST soueAdLIg oy 1e)) sansus ¢ dojg Ye pojeniur aq (O S[OLIY UT PaqLIISIp
Je [BSSIWISIP IO ‘UOIIOWSP ‘Uorsuadsns SE) [BSSTUISIP IO ‘UoTIOWSp ‘uoisuadsns
‘Aemy3y Aq sa[ru ()6 1940 JO I9Jsuen ‘AeMy31y £q SO () JOAC JO IBJSUED
Areyunjoaur ‘Aed oseq ur uononpax Areyunjoaut ‘Aed aseq U1 uorjonpal
B U0 paseq ST Jey) 20ueAslI3 € Jo ‘[esodoid se1g o) Surmorass B U0 Paseq s20ueAstad jey) sesodoxd
uoneniw Y [ - (Z)(F)S Uon3aS :L1/9/11 Apuaserd stuown oy, :L1/9/11|  o1e1§ oYL - (ZNE)S WOMDSS :L1/9/11 2INPIV01J SOUBADLIL) - 9
SINAWINOD 'TVSOd0Odd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVIS AIDLLAV

SIII)IY PIA[OSAIT()
JIIWRITY 1ouadody G1-8T0T 18X [€ISI] 10§ SUOLENOSIN
LIOT 1T 3QUR( :Jo se suonyenosoN Surmred.ieg 3ARII[[0)) JO SNIE)G
0707 ‘o€ 2ung saadxy jusurdzasy juarin))
UI)SAS [PUUOSIJ 3)B)S - JIU[) JUIWIIIOJUT ME
UONBIIOSSY JUI[0AIUY 3I[OJ




NV TS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

L30T 3d

"[eSSTSEP

Io ‘vonowsp ‘worsuadsns ‘Kemydy

4q satur () J9A0 JO I9JSUET) AIRJUnjOAUT
‘Aed aseq ut vononpal e 10§ siseq o)

SB SOAIDS )1 J1 AJu0 S[qessti3 Apusiing
9Je SUOLIBN[EAS SOUBULIONIOJ £ [/9/11

"PALMOJ0 SBY S[ONIE SIY) JO 7 UOTIOAS
10 T uonoeg Jo uone[oIA B Jey) podaye
ST 31 31 9[qeAs1T aq TTeys (s[qeidssoeun
10 suoneoadxs M0[eq) 91008 MITADI
ooueULIOLISd [[RISAO §5,0940[duIa uR

1erp sesodoxd uoruny oy - () | UOnIdg

"M0T3q PIqLISIP S () uonoag Iapun
oqeAand suolstaoxd 2say) e pnom
YOIYA “3p0)) SANRSIUIWIPY BPLIO]]
‘S€-T109 Ay SN S [[oM SE PaduaIsfaI
aq Aorjod uonenjeas soueuniopad

S AINSHQ 2y 18y o8en3uef sasodoid
uotun) oy [, - (V)T WOU33S :£1/9/11

“Surmooyo] asuodsar ‘maraal
Iopun st resodoxd worun £ 1/9/11

MIIADY dULULIOLID] — 7]

“uorIsIdap Jurpuiq pue [eur

B JOPUDI pUE 90URASLIZ S1) JOPISUOD

01 I0jeNIqIR 9} JOJ SABp SSauIsnq §
[eUOnIppE Uk apraoid [[IM ()¢ 0) UOISIOAp
B ONSSI 0) JOJENIQIR UR 0) POPIOIJL

SAEp SSQUISNq JO IOqUINY Y]} SSESIOUT

0 [esodoxd s,a1e15 ST, - (S)(D)E BT

[esodolg oyerg pasAy :L1/T1/Z1

"SUOISTARI LT/TT/TT
Surpnjout ‘Tesodoid s2ye)§ o Summarasi

Apussaxd st uotun oYY :L1/11/Z1

1Y

ST IOASUDIYA ‘SJOLIq JO UOISSTIqNS YY)
Io SuLresy oy Jo Suisoyo oy Jo sjep o1
woyy ‘sAep ssauisng gz JUSLIND oY) ULy
Ioyjer ‘sAep ssauisng (¢ Uey) 1aje[ ou
UOISIOOP € anss! [[eys I0JenIqIe Ue jey)
sesodoxd age)g oy 1, - (SHD)¢ uonssg

[esodoid a1e)g pastasy :L1/11/Z1

(ponunuoo) 21npa201g FOUBASLIL) - §

SINTFIWINOD

'TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVIS

A TOILAV

SO[AN)IY pIA[osaau()
YIOWRIZY 1ousdody G1-810T 183X [ISL] 10§ SUONENOSIN

LTIOT'TT 13qUIddRQ :Jo st suonenosaN Sutures.req sAnda1[0) Jo sme)s

0207 ‘0¢ dung soxdx;y ymamaaiSy juarin))
WA)SAS [QUUOSIdJ 938)§ - () JUIWDIIOJUH MET
UOIJRIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIG N[O



WV TS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

£30€3d

030 “Aed Jo aye1 aseq s aekofduo a1
‘SipaIo 9Aea] sey sakodws oy Joyoym
‘say{e} 11 SIOY AUBUI MOY ‘SINO20

SIY} Uo1y0 Moy yo1paid 0y ANfIqeur oyl

01 anp sjewuiaiopy] - spesodoud s, uorup
Jo drewnsa 3unsoo 440 :L1/9/11

"SIseq 9582-£(-3580 B U0 Aousfe

o) Aq pa1apIsuos aq [[eys uswied
yons I0J s1sanbai ‘1oAomor fpaspzom

pey ay i se pred aq Aewr cokodus

3} “SIIPAIO SABS] PIWIED JO HOB] € 0) o0
smyeys Aed-uou e ur pooerd s1 sekojdura
oy} JI "PaI0ISI q [[BYS UOHBUILIEXS
[BOTPIT 31} JO SIS oY) 0} Joud
9a4opdwo oy £q pasn aq 0} pammbaz
9ABO[ pawIes AUe ‘sannp poudisse

ot wxoyrad 0} s[qe st ezKofdun a1y

18} SULIFUOD UOHBUIIRXS [EOIPOU 31}
JI "O'V'd ‘$€-109 d1ny Jo suoisiaoxd sy
LA 95URPIOII. UI 3 [[BYS SUOLBUIUEXD
[e2TPaW PIopIo A5uddy UOTJRUIIIEXD
[BI1PSTW PaIApIO-A0UsFe Ue JO S NSaI oy}
pue sannp pausisse wropad 03 ajqeun
aq Aewr saK0[dwa 5y Jey) UOHEUIUNLIISP
s Aousge ay) waomiaq powad ol 19409 0}
SIIPAID SABI[ PaUIeED asn 0) 2a40(dwa ue
axmbar Aewr ANSH( 9 yey sasodod
o) YL - TT UOHISS MBN :L1/9/11

AIqesi( pasuuo)
-QOf pue 2ABaT YIOM JO SINOH — 8]

SINIAIWINOD

'TVSOdOdd NOINN

'TVSOdOdd HLVIS

A IDILIYV

SOOIV PIA[OSdIU)
YIOWRIZY 1ousdooy 61-8107 183X [EISL] 10§ SUOHEIIOFAN

LIOT "IT 13quiddd( :Jo se suonenodoN sururesaegq 3A19[[0)) Jo SMIe)S
0207 ‘0¢ dungp soardxy Jmomda.a8y jusain)
WA)ISAS [QUUO0SIIJ 3)8)§ - NU[) JUIWAIIIOJUT MeT
UOT)BII0SSY JUI[0AIUIY N[oJ



WV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

L300 ¥ '3d

‘uotstaoxd o) £q

paxmbar spowad srom papusyxs pasnipe
3y} JO )[nsal & se saoko[dwe [emoe

uo joedun sanesou/eanisod paxTw ot
PUB 2)EMoo)Ja 0} USPING SANENSIUIWpE
oy 03 anp uoIsiA0Ld S1Y) JO TeAOWISI

oy Bursodouad st aye1g ot ndur Kouage
uodn paseq - (g)S UOBSS :L1/11/Z1

“A10119) orydeidoss

paroeduur 51 01 pauSISse oI ‘IOWISAOD)
oY} AqQ pare[dap st Aous3Iows UL usym
‘oym sashorduwre Joy ‘porrad yrom Inoy
091 J0 (8 UE Uey) JoY)el ‘UONER[NI[ed
aumIaA0 Jo asodind oy 10] yeoamiom
InoY (Ot & 10§ sapraoid gorym ofendue]
10BIIUOD JO uoneumnure oy} sasodord

oIS Ay L - {g)S Wondas L1/11/Z1

(panunuoo) AIIqesi(] peosuuo)
~(Of puUR 3ARST IOM JO SINOH — §

SINAIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

'TVSOdOdd ALV.LS

TIDILAV

SI[ONIY PIA[OSIIU[)
JRURIZY JoUd0dYy 6T-8T0T 183X [€ISL] 10} SUONENOSIN
LT0T 'TT BRQUIBY( :jo se suonenoSaN SurureSieg 9And9[[0)) Jo smye)g

0202 ‘0€ dung samdxy jusmraISy JwaaIn)
UWIIJSAS [UUOSIJ 97€)§ - JU[) JUIWIII0JUY MB|
UONBIIOSS Y JUI[OAIUIY N[O



WV TS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

L340 S '3d

‘Vdd oy
Yy sueyd yons Jo sume) o) SunenoSeu
‘ueld uonusiax Ioye ue[d UonUSILT pUE JUSWIINION]
PUE JUSUIINIOIOL B JIUgNS JOU [[IM ‘Aue pazijenprarpur e juswoydur prnoys
Jt ‘sarousde yorgm 101paid o) Aiqem o) AWNSH 9y} 18Y) ‘SUONEPUSIIIIOoS]
03 onp srewtuLslepy] - sjesodoid s uorun)|  198pnq 61-8107 A SI0WISA0D) a1 uo
JO orewmsa Sunsod gJ0 :LI/11/C1| paseq ‘sesodoad uorun ey IAVARVA|

1oV suonendosddy [erousn 6107

-810¢C 21 Aq paxmbai se uoneusUMoO0p

Sunzoddns sjqeyrea epnour [reys uejd

sy ‘syusunsnipe aem Aue yo Jurum

oY) pUE BLISILID ‘SISSB[D I[qISI YiIm

3UO[e UONUSIET PUL JUSUNINIIGT SSAIPPER

0} $9132Je.)S UO UONBULIOJUT PI[IE)op

spnjout J[is ueid yoeg -seekoduwd

JUSTISOIOFUS ME] JO UONULIAI pue

JIAWNNIOAI 9Y) Suroueyuo Jo ssodind

oY) Y KouaZe yoee 105 padojorsp

ue[d e ySnoxy) pae)sturpe oq

[Ti4 spuny uonesusdmod o[qe[IeAL oy |

"91€S ST} JO SME[ AU} JO JUSSIIOTUS

31} 10 SUHLID JO UOIOI0P pue uonusAald

'sIseq o1y10ads-Aouage oy st Aprqisuodsar Lreunid ssogm

Ue U0 pajpuey ‘A[aAneuIs)e ‘o sorousde| pue Lousde oje)s B Aq sum [y pekojdurs

.8 [[e 10J [esodoid ofem | Jesrparun,, SI2OIIJO JUSUISIIOJUD me] patjijenb

B BIA PI[puRy 3q [[In SuoTienodou ure)al pue JIIoax 0) uonesusdwod

a3em Jr auruop 0) suorssnosip| 10§ spraoxd SuOIEpUSWIOYY] Jafpng

sasodoxd worup) oy :L1/9/11| S.JOWIRAOD) Oy, - ZTUOBIBS L1/LI/I1 SOBEM — $T
SINIIWINOD "TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd HLVIS T IDLLIAV
SOPIIY PIA[osaauf)

YIWIIBY 1ouddody 61-§T0T 183X [€ISIY 10] suonBRoIoN

LTIOT "TT 13quIdd( :jo se suoneno3aN Sururedieg 3ARId[[0)) JO snje)S
0207 ‘o€ sungp saardx7 JuomISy Jua.Lin)

WI)SAS [PUUO0SIdJ 3)B)§ -

U] JTIWIIOJUY ME|

UOIJBIIO0SSY JUI[OAIUIY N[O



WV TSTT ‘8T02/8/T

L1309 34

(syoedun

VOIdAUSWINR1 SSPNTOUT Junoure)
UOLILIO $180A ()] A1 Sunesw g1 05
I0J 000°SELS - 19U ST pIEPUE)S I0TAIOS
Jo sxeak o 9yep o1 U0 10 §1/1/01
SATIORIJ 9 0) IIIAISS JO SIBIK 2JOW

10 0T Y sookordws Jun Fururegieq
10J (% POUOTIUSWIIONE ) O} UONIpPE
1) juounsnfpe Arejes aseq %¢ v (q)

(syoedun v usmamer

SOpN[oUI Junowe) 1.4 L§T [ 103 UOI I
S8 - 81/1/L 94193135 99 01 L1/0€/9 3O

se pakojdus ssakordwe yrun Sururesieq
103 Jusunsnfpe Arefes oseq 9,/ v ()

‘uefd uonusjer pue JuSUNINIOAT

e osodoid j0u s20p ANSH( 9

JU 61-810T AJ 10y aster Aed eanyewis)e
ue jo Jesodoid suom) Jo Sunsos g4o

“J0SAI AvuI YoIyMm

sonsst uoissaxdwos Juninsar ssaxppe

0} J9pI0 Ul papujaul aq [Teys jusumsnlpe
uotssardwod oFem & ‘UOTIEILISSEO

e Jo Aed Sunie)s wnwimmur ay)

Joy yuotmsn(pe Aed e 10y st ueld AINSHO
a1 1 ey sasodoad worup) oy ‘¢

“JOWI ST PIBPUE]S QOIAIDS

Jo s1eak ot s1ep o) UO 10 §1/1/0]
SATIORYJD 99 0] FITAILS JO SIBAA aI0W

10 0T Y saokordus jrun Sunumesieq
107 (%L pauonuswWaIOJE 1) 0} UOHIppe
ur) jusunsnfpe Arefes oseq o,¢ v (q)

81/1/L 3AN09339 29 01 L1/0¢€/9 JO
se padofdwo ssefordwo jiun SurureSreq

103 Juaumsnfpe Arefes oseq o,/ v ()

:sopnjour yorym uepd uonusyax
pue jusunmIdaI & 9sodoid jou soop

AWSHQ 9 I 61-8107 A 10§ aste1
Aed 2jewra)e ue sesodoad uoruny L 7

"81/LT/1 Ueyy Iaje] Ou ygd oy pue
SINA “ITowsaon) oty 03 uefd € Juasard
1S AINSHA 99 ey sasodoid uorun)
oy ‘suefd UONULIOT PUR JUSIIIHLIOST
3} JO JUSIUOD ) SururuIS)ap uy *|

(panunuos) saSem — 67

SINHIWINOD

"TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVILS

HIOLLAV

SOOIV pPaAosaIu()
J2UIIBY 1uad0dy §[-8TOT 183X [EISI] 10] SUONENOSIN

L

10T "T1 _quIda( :jo st suonenodaN Sururedieg 0Anda[jo)) jo smye)s
0207 ‘o€ dung saaydxy Juamaa1dy Juain)
WI)SAS [JUU0SId 9)8)§ - JTU[) JUSWAIIOJUH MB'|
UONRIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY N[0



WV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

£ 30/ 3d

61-810C Ad
JoJ padueyoun UTBWAI JJEYS SUOHNQLIUOD

99A0dws pue s)jausq aduLINSUL
sy yeyy sasodoxd worupny oy :£1/9/11

"610T ‘1 Arenuer

SANOAYPS UWeld YHESH S[quonpa YSIH
a1} 10§ asnods yoes 1oy yuow tod §1°7¢S
pue ue[q eI piepurl§ o) 10y ‘osnods
yoea 10 mpuowr 1od (6§ 03 oSueyd s
ue[q 2ouemsu] gieaf] dnoiry seakordury
are1§ oy wr Sunedronaed ssnods yoes

103 yyuout 13d ¢1¢ Jo swnnuaxd yusLmo
wresgoid ssnodg a1 Jo uonROgIpow

e sasodoxd o1e1S OY T :LT/LT/11

S)Jouag SoueINsu] - /7

SINAIWINOD

TYSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd HLVIS

TIDILAV

SI[PNIY PIA[OSIU)
Yo wWoaI3Y 1ouddody G1-8107 18X [€ISL] 10} suonenoSaN
LTOT TT 13quidd3Q :jo se suonenosoN SurureSieg 2A199[107) jo snyu)§

0207 ‘0€ dung soardxy JmomdISy judaIn))
WA)SAS [UUO0SI2 938} - JIU[) JUIWAIAOJUH ME]
TONRIDOSSY JUI[0AIUIG N[0g



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 1 of 10

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and the PBA to encourage informal discussions of complaints
between management and employees as well as between supervisors and employees. Such
discussions should be held with a view to reaching an understanding that will resolve the matter
in a manner satisfactory to the employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal
grievance procedure prescribed by this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions
As used in this Article:

(A)  “Grievance” shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement.

(B)  “Grievant” shall mean a law enforcement employee or a group of law enforcement
employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one shall be designated
by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance.

(C)  “Days” shall mean business days. “Business days” refers to the ordinary business
hours, ie., 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the
recipient is located. Furthermore, “business days™ do not include any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the PBA pursuant to a list
furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a
suspension of grievance processing as agreed in writing by the parities. “Business days” also do
not include a day(s) on which the offices of DMS or any agency employing bargaining unit
members are closed under an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency
condition or disaster under the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(e).

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation
(A) Ifagrievant or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this Article

and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, the
grievant or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and such election shall

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 2 of 10

be binding on the grievant or the PBA. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will
be the one processed.

(B) A grievant who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or
other initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be
represented by the PBA. When the grievant has elected PBA representation, the grievant and the
PBA Grievance Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting. Written communication
concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to the grievant and the PBA Grievance
Representative, and the decision agreed to by the state and the PBA shall be binding on the
grievant.

(C)  If the grievant is not represented by the PBA, an adjustment of the grievance shall
be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The PBA shall be given reasonable opportunity to
be present at a meeting called for the resolution of the grievance. A grievant using this procedure
in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure established by the Parties to this
Agreement. The PBA shall not be bound by the decision of a grievance or arbitration in which the
grievant was not represented by the PBA.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A)  Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and

handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the grievances.
Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail (including e-mail),
courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic facsimile, the burden shall be on the sending
Party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile number before transmission. Documents shall be
deemed filed upon receipt during regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Documents

received after business hours shall be considered received the next business day.

(B)  There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(C)  The filing or pendency of a grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action complained
of, subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

(D)  After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised unless the
Parties agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues, or upon a party’s

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 3 of 10

showing of good cause for the consideration of such new issue, but in no event later than the filing
of a contract language grievance at Step 3, or the filing of a disciplinary grievance at Step 2. When
an issue is unchanged, but it is determined that an article, section or paragraph of the Agreement
has been cited imprecisely or erroneously by the grievant, the grievant shall have the right to amend
that part of his grievance.

(E)  The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing to Arbitration shall
not establish a precedent binding on either the PBA or the state in other cases.

(F)  If a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbitration hearing is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the regular work hours of the grievant, a representative of the
grievant, or any required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at
grievance meetings, mediation, or arbitration hearings outside of a participant’s regular work hours
shall not be deemed time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of participants attending
such meetings on behalf of the union. All grievance meetings shall be held at times and locations
agreed to by the parties except that, unless agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held within 50
miles of the grievant’s place of work.

(G)  Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

(1) Step 1.

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 15 days following the
date on which the employee knew or should have known of the event giving rise to the grievance,
submit a grievance at Step 1. In filing a grievance at Step 1, the grievant or designated
representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance form as
contained in Appendix B of this Agreement setting forth specifically the complete facts on which
the grievance is based, the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated,
and the relief requested. In discipline cases, it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that the
discipline was without cause and requests the grievant to be made whole.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designee shall
communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and to the PBA Grievance Representative, if
any, within 10 days following receipt of the written grievance. If the Management Representative
fails to respond within the time limit, it shall be deemed a denial.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 4 of 10

2) Step 2.

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the grievant or designated
representative may submit the grievance in writing on a grievance form as contained in Appendix
B of this Agreement, to the Agency Head or designated representative within 10 days following
receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance form must contain the same information as the
grievance filed at Step 1. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at
Step 1, together with the written response and documents in support of the grievance.

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a
decision in writing to the grievant and the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within 15 days
following receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head fails to respond within the time
limit, it shall be deemed a denial.

3) Step 3 — Contract Language Disputes

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay,
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the grievant or designated representative may submit
it in writing on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement, to the Office
Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of the Department of Management Services, 4050
Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-0950 within 15 days following receipt of
the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps
1 and 2, together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. When the
grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance form must contain the same information
as a grievance filed at Step 1 abeve.

(b) The Department of Management Services shall discuss the
grievance with the PBA Grievance Representative, or grievant or his representative if not
represented by the PBA. The DMS shall communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and to
the designated representative within 15 days following receipt of the written grievance.

“) Grievance Mediation

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to
be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 5 of 10

submitted to arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a
grievance, the scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (5)(d) below may be
extended by mutual agreement beyond five months. FEither party may withdraw from the
mediation process with written notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation.

o) Arbitration

(a) If a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base
pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal)
was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the PBA representative may appeal the
grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this
Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language dispute
as described in (3), above, is not resolved at Step 3, the PBA representative may appeal the
grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this
Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial written step,
the PBA declined to represent the grievant because he was not 4 member of the PBA, the grievant
may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The appeal to arbitration shall be filed with the Department
of Management Services on the form contained in Appendix C of this Agreement and shall include
a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1, 2, and 3 (if applicable) together with all written
responses and documents in support of the grievance.

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of at least six
arbitrators selected by the Parties. The Department of Management Services’ Arbitration
Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration hearing with the state and PBA representatives and the
arbitrator listed next on the panel in rotation and shall coordinate the arbitration hearing time, date,

and location.

(©) At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration
hearing, the parties shall file with the arbitrator, and provide to each other, a list of witnesses to be
called at the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, and a brief statement of the material facts or matters
relevant to the grievance about which each witness will testify. A party may file a written request
with the arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the other party, for an exception to the filing time
limits for good cause. If such exception is granted, the other party may request that the hearing be
rescheduled if necessary for the party to respond to the late filed witness information.

(d) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related grievances
for hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 6 of 10

but not more than five months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration Form. If the
arbitrator initially selected is not available to schedule within this period, the Arbitration
Coordinator shall contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who
can schedule within the prescribed period. A party may request of the arbitrator, with notice to
the other party and the Arbitration Coordinator, an extension of time/continuance based on
documented unusual and compelling circumstances. The parties may agree to schedule a hearing
beyond the five-month deadline. The Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule arbitration hearings
at times and locations agreed to by the parties, taking into account the availability of evidence,
location of witnesses and existence of appropriate facilities, as well as other relevant factors;
however, unless agreed otherwise, all hearings shall be held within 50 miles of the grievant(s)’

place of work.

(e) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted
to address only the arbitrability issue. In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the
panel of arbitrators (see (5)(b) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision
within 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose. The hearing on this issue
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five
business days of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of
the parties and the arbitrator. The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and expenses
of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another
arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with the
provisions of (5)(b) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s).

H The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this
Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the PBA, the grievant(s), and the employees in
the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following
provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 22-30 days
from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, shall be
determined by applying a preponderance of the evidence standard, and shall set forth the
arbitrator’s opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 7 of 10

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the
determination of the issues submitted.

4, The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.
5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make
any decisions that are:
a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to,

subtracting from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or
of applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the power,
duties and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities
have been abridged, delegated or modified by the express provisions of this Agreement.

6. The arbitrator’s award may include back pay, to the
Grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:

a. An award of back pay shall not exceed the amount of
pay the grievant would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by the
amount of wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance
benefits during the back pay period, shall not include punitive damages, shall not be retroactive to
a date earlier than 15 days prior to the date the grievance was initially filed.

b. If the Association is granted a continuance to
reschedule an arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be
responsible for back pay for the period between the original hearing date or the end of the five
month period described in (5)(d), above, whichever is later, and the rescheduled date.

9] The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the
parties; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its
own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee and expense
statement to the Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator’s contract.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 8 of 10

(h) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the proceedings.
Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter. If either party orders a
transcript of the proceedings, the party shall pay for the cost of the transcript and provide a
photocopy to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript to the other
party upon written request and payment of copying expenses ($.15 per page).

(1) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which
it was not a Party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A)  Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant, or the PBA, where appropriate, to proceed
to the next step. The state will make a good faith effort to timely communicate decisions at each
step.

(B)  The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any step
of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by written agreement.

(C)  Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 — Exceptions

(A)  Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit
the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee without his consent,
or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, appeal, administrative action
before a government board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by the PBA.

(B)  All grievances will be presented at the—initial stepStep 1 with the following
exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by
submitting a grievance form as setforth-in-Step—tcontained in Appendix B within 15 days

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 9 of 10

following the_date on which the employee knew or should have known of the event actual

knewledge-of the-oceurrence-giving rise to the grievance.

(2) If the grievance arises from an agency action listed in Article 10(F) of this
Agreement, a grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 by submitting a grievance form as contained in
Appendix B within 15 days following the date on which the employee knew or should have known
of the event giving rise to the grievance.

(23)  The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of
employees in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of this
Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against an employee. The
PBA’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding in another forum
on the same issue. The class action grievance form shall identify the specific group (i.e.,
employees’ job classification(s), work unit(s), etc.) adversely impacted by the dispute relating to
the interpretation or application of the Agreement. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or,
where more than one agency is implicated, Step 3 of this procedure,~in-aceordance—with-the
provisions-setforth-herein; by submitting a grievance form as contained in Appendix B, within 15
days following the date on which the grievant knew or should have known elthedmodedseoe

reasonable knowledge-of the-oecurrence-of the event giving rise to the grievance.

(C)  An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position may
only file non-discipline grievances to Step 3, unless the processing of such grievances is further
limited by specific provisions of this Agreement

SECTION 6 - Expedited Arbitration

(A)  The parties recognize that certain grievances may be amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly, at any point in the grievance procedure, the PBA may
request expedited arbitration of a grievance. Requests for expedited arbitration shall be granted in
cases involving arbitrable disciplinary action less than discharge. In all other cases, expedited
arbitration will be used upon agreement of the parties.

(B)  Expedited Arbitration Rules:

(1) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all remaining
steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the grievance is submitted directly to the
expedited arbitrator.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 10 of 10

(2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of permanent
arbitrators.

3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than six hours in duration,
with each party limited to three hours. There shall be no post-hearing briefs, although either party
may submit a written statement of position to the arbitrator during the hearing. The Arbitrator shall
issue a short (no longer than three pages) decision within seven days of the hearing. With the
exception of the foregoing, all provisions of section 3(G)(5) of this procedure shall be applicable.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Law Enforcement Officer Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

The following collective bargaining provisions are opened for discussion purposes.

A comprehensive proposal regarding these provisions will be made at a later date.
These proposals are drawn to the pending 2017-2020 collective bargaining

agreement.

Article 14 — Performance Review

The Florida PBA proposes the revisions attached as Exhibit 1



PERFORMANC REVIEW
November 6, 2017
Version 1

Article 14
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

SECTION 1 - Performance Reviews

(A) Performance reviews of employees shall be conducted in accordance with Rule
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code, Performance Evaluation System_and the terms of each

agency’s performance evaluation policy.

(B) Employees’ performance shall be reviewed by their immediate supervisors or
designated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance review to higher management for

approval.
©

factor in reviewing employees’ performance.

Numerical arrest, citation or violation quotas will not be used as the-primary a

(D) The state will continue to maintain and will make a good faith effort to train
supervisors in performance review techniques.

(E)  Anoverall performance evaluation of below expectations or unacceptable shall be
grievable if it is alleged of the evaluation violates Section 1 or Section 2 of the article.

Otherwise, Performance—performance evaluations are not grievable under Article 6 of this
Agreement; however, a performance evaluation may be contested if it serves, in whole or in part,

as the basis for a reduction in base pay, involuntary transfer over 50 miles by highway,
suspension, demotion, or dismissal.

SECTION 2 — Agency Performance Reviews

The state agrees that each agency’s performance review system for employees shall
adhere to the following standards.

(A)  Performance reviews shall be based on an employee’s actual job performance and
shall not conform to preconceived percentage distributions. When a numerical scoring formula is
to be utilized by any agency, the evaluation form shall contain the formula with blanks for
insertion of the actual scores that will be used in reaching the overall evaluation.

(B)  Whenever practicable, an employee’s performance shall be reviewed by a swomn

law enforcement officer.

SECTION 3 — Recruit Evaluation

Employees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon completion of recruit
school. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to their supervisor.

EXHIBIT
E-1




PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 1 of 6

Article 18
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY

The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in Rule
60L-34 of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage and payment of sick and
annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment, shall apply to all employees. The
state shall not compel an employee to involuntarily use annual leave in circumstances where the
employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave. This provision shall not apply in instances of
qualified family medical leave.

SECTION 1 - Workday

(A)  Agencies shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B)  Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule, the state has
the ability to adjust the employees schedule as long as it occurs within the same work period and
provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to the commencement of the
employee’s adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period, or 24 hours’ notice for a 80-hour work period
or 36 hours’ notice for a 160-hour work period. The state will make a good faith effort to offset
such extra hours in eight-hour increments.

SECTION 2 - Non-Required Work Time

Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state. If records of voluntary time
are kept by the state or its agencies, they shall not be used to adversely affect performance reviews
or promotions.

SECTION 3 — Work Schedule
(A)  Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts
will be posted no less than 14 calendar days in advance and will reflect at least a two workweek

schedule; however, the state will make a good faith effort to reflect a one month schedule.

(B)  Inthe event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section may be

void.

For the State For the PBA

Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson

State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 2 of 6

(C)  The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at
each agency and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are
established.

SECTION 4 - Rest Periods

(A) A supervisor shall not unreasonably deny an employee a 15-minute rest period
during any four contiguous hours of work. It is recognized that staffing and work priorities may
prevent such a rest period during a given workday. Additionally, many positions have a post of
duty assignment that requires coverage for a full shift and does not permit the employee to leave
his post. In those cases, the employee may be able to “rest” while the employee physically remains
in the geographic location of his duty post. The employee is to remain responsive to calls during a
rest period.

(B)  Rest periods are not authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or
early departure from duty, and are not to be used contiguously with a meal break.

(C) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Agency Head or designee shall
be final and binding on all parties.

SECTION 5 - Overtime
(A)  The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours.

(B)  Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be
recognized in accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code;provided however, that

(C)  The PBA agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative
Code that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards
Act as it is applied to public employees, which the state agrees to comply with.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 3 of 6

SECTION 6 — FLSA Compensatory Leave

(A)  If an agency has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as described

below:

(B)  An employee who is filling an included position may waive payment for overtime
and elect to have the overtime hours credited to “FLSA compensatory leave”. Such election will
apply until changed again, and only to workdays starting on the day of the change and in which
hours worked in the work period exceed the contracted hours. Overtime hours that the employee
elects to have credited as “FLSA compensatory leave” will accrue at the rate of one and one-half
hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will only be permitted to accumulate a
maximum of 80 hours of “FLSA compensatory leave” credits, which may be taken in any
increments at the employee’s discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June
30 or December 31 of each year. The employee’s request to utilize FLSA compensatory leave shall
be granted so long as granting the request would not result in “undue disruption.” If the FLSA
compensatory leave is not utilized by the employee by June 30 or December 31 of each year, all
unused “FLSA compensatory leave” credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30
shall be paid for at the employee’s straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Rule 601
34, Florida Administrative Code, as amended. An employee who separates from the Career Service
or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all unused “FLSA compensatory leave” in
accordance with the above.

(C)  The parties agree that all law enforcement recruits shall be treated in the manner
described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave:

(1) Law enforcement recruits undergoing training to attain Law Enforcement
Certification, or agency-specific orientation, will be exempt from the 80-hour cap on the earning
of FLSA compensatory leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 payment
requirements during the time they attend an academy or education institution.

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation from
the academy or educational institution for the purpose of relocating to their new assignment. Such
leave must be authorized by the recruit’s agency. Recruits must use the accrued FLSA

compensatory leave credits before using regular annual leave.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 4 of 6

3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within the
next six-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as presently provided for in Rule 60L-
34, Florida Administrative Code, and Atrticle 18, Section 5(B) of the Agreement.

SECTION 7 — Special Compensatory Leave

(A)  Special Compensatory Leave is defined as leave that is earned as provided in Rule
60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, for hours worked on a holiday, extra hours worked during
an established work week which contains a holiday, or extra hours worked when the employee’s
assigned office, facility, or region is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor or any
other disaster or emergency condition.

(B)  Use of Special Compensatory Leave:

(1) When an employee earns special compensatory leave credits, the employee
shall have 60 calendar days in which to use the earned special compensatory leave time.

(2) If the employee fails to use the earned special compensatory leave during
the 60-day period, the supervisor shall schedule the employee to use the leave.

3) An employee who has a leave balance in excess of 240 hours shall be
required to use a minimum of 120 hours of the employee’s earned special compensatory leave
each calendar year or the amount necessary to bring the employee’s special compensatory leave
balance to 240 hours, whichever is less, prior to using any annual leave credits, unless such annual
leave credits are being substituted for an employee’s unpaid individual medical leave granted in
accordance with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or
parental leave granted in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.

“) An employee who begins employment after July 1, 2013 shall only be
permitted to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave credits,
notwithstanding any additional hours worked on a holiday, during the established work week
containing a holiday, or during the closure of the employee’s assigned office, facility, or region
pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 5 of 6

SECTION 8 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

Each agency shall set up and administer a sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan for
employees if there is sufficient employee participation to render the pool and sick leave transfer
plan administratively feasible. Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full access
to the benefits, of the employing agency’s existing sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan.

SECTION 9 — Disability Leave with Pay

(A)  Anemployee who sustains a job-related disability and is eligible for disability leave
with pay under the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, shall be carried in
full-pay status for up to 40 work hours immediately following the onset of the injury without being
required to use accrued leave.

(B)  If an employee is unable to return to work at the end of the 40 work hour period,
the employee may supplement the Workers® Compensation benefits with accrued leave in an
amount necessary to remain in full-pay status.

(1) An employee who is maliciously or intentionally injured and thereby
sustains a job-connected disability compensable under Chapter 440, F.S., shall be carried in full-
pay status on administrative leave during the duration of the disability rather than being required
to use accrued leave.

(C) After an employee has used a total of 100 hours of accrued sick, annual, or
compensatory leave, or leave without pay, the agency may request permission from the
Department of Management Services to continue the employee in full-pay status for a subsequent
period of not more than 26 weeks from the date requested by the agency. This request is to include
the information described in Rule 601-34.0061(1)(b)2, Florida Administrative Code. The
Department shall approve such requests that, in its judgment, are in the best interest of the state.
Upon approval of the request by the Department, the agency will provide the employee with
administrative leave (Leave Code 0056, Admin - Authorized other) in an amount necessary to
supplement the employee’s Workers’ Compensation benefits so that the employee may be in full-

pay status.

(D)  Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be subject
to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 18
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 6 of 6

SECTION 10 — Alternate Duty

(A)  Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the State
Personnel System as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily unable to perform
his normal work duties, the Agency Head or designee shall give due consideration to any request
by the employee to be temporarily assigned substitute duties within the employee’s medical
restrictions. This shall have no effect on the agency’s ability to make a different assignment based
upon current medical opinion.

(B) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of this
Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Agency Head or designee shall be
final and binding on all parties.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Law Enforcement Officer Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Article 18 — Hours of Work and Overtime
The Florida PBA proposes inclusion of the new Section 11, attached as Exhibit 2.




DISABILITY LEAVE
November 6, 2017
Version 1

*New Section 11 — Compulsory Disability Leave

An agency may require an employee to use earned leave credits to cover the
period between the agency’s determination that the employee may be unable to
perform assigned duties and the results of an agency-ordered medical examination.
The medical examination shall be in accordance with the provisjons of Rule 60-34,
Florida Administrative Code. If the medical examination confirms that the
employee is able to perform the assigned duties, any earned leave required to be
used by the employee prior to the results of the medical examination shall be
restored. If the employee is placed in a non-pay status due to a lack of earned
leave credits, the employee may be paid as if he had worked; however, requests for

such payment shall be considered by the agency on a case-by-case basis.

E2




PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - General Pay Provisions

Pay, including increases to base rate of pay and salary additives, shall be in accordance
with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 — Recruitment and Retention

The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for compensation to recruit and retain
qualified law enforcement officers employed full time by a state agency and whose primary
responsibility is the prevention and detection of crime or the enforcement of the laws of the state.
The available compensation funds will be administered through a plan developed for each agency
with the purpose of enhancing the recruitment and retention of law enforcement employees. Each
plan will include detailed information on strategies to address recruitment and retention along with
eligible classes, criteria and the timing of any wage adjustments. The plan shall include verifiable
supporting documentation as required by the 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act.

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave
Career Service employees who have permanent status in their current position may be

given the option of receiving up to 24 hours of unused annual leave each December, in the form
of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance with, section 1 10.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017

Page 2 of 2

each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 6 — Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Law Enforcement Officer Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Article 25 - Wages

This proposal is drafted in consideration of Governor Scott’s Fiscal Year 2018-
2019 Recommended General Appropriations Act and specifically that section
denominated as Section 8(2) of Employee Compensation and Benefits, Special Pay

issues.

The Florida PBA agrees that the State’s law enforcement agencies should
implement an individualized Recruitment and Retention Plan after negotiation of
the terms of such plans with the PBA.

1. In determining the content of R&R plans, the Florida PBA proposes a
more aggressive timeline than that suggested by Governor Scott and
DMS. It is the PBA’s position agency draft recruitment and retention
plans should be presented to the Office of the Governor, DMS and the

Association, no later than January 17, 2018.

2. The PBA proposes a alternate pay raise for FY 2018-2019 which
includes the following components for agencies that do not propose an
approved R&R plan which includes:

The raise shall provide a base salary pay adjustment for bargaining
unit members of a minimum of seven percent (7%) for members
employed as of June 30, 2018 to be effective July 1, 2018.

The raise provide for a base salary pay adjustment of a minimum of
three percent (3%) for members with ten or more years of service,
such increase to be effective October 1, 201 8, or on the date the years

of service standard is met.

3. If the agency plan or intent is to provide for an adjustment in the
minimum starting salary of a classification, it shall also provide a wage
adjustment for current bargaining unit members in order to address
compression issues which may result from the increase in the starting
salary. Both DMS and PBA recognize salary compression is a major
issue which needs to be fully addressed in the development of a R&R

plan.



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

forcement Officer Bargaining Unit
L ke November 6, 2017

Article 25 - Wages

4. The PBA and DMS agree to set aside the time necessary to complete
negotiations in a fair and reasonable fashion. Once negotiations of an
agency recruitment and retention plan is complete the Florida Legislature
shall be provided a copy of the plan for its consideration.




PBA/Law Enforcement Unit
State Proposal — Article 27
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program

The employee share of premiums for the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 except as follow:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019.

SECTION 2 — Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits
(A)  Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in section 112.19, Florida Statutes.
(B)  Education benefits will be as provided in section 112.19, Florida Statutes.

(C)  State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee’s
surviving spouse and children will be as provided in section 110.123, Florida Statutes.

(D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall
not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Law Enforcement Officer Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Articie 27 — Insurance
The Florida PBA proposes: Health insurance benefits and employee contributions

shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.



Police Benevolent Association - CBU 06 Wage Proposals
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Union/issue

Estimated Cost

Comments

Article 25 - For agencies that do not propose a
Recruitment and Retention Plan, propose a base
salary pay adjustment for bargaining unit members
of 7% for members employed as of June 30, 2018
to be effective July 1, 2018.

$5.0 million

It is not currently possible to determine which agencies will not
propose a Recruitment and Retention Plan, therefore the
propsed increase is calcuated for all unit positions. Downloaded
all unit positions, transferred from PeopleFirst into LAS/PBS as
of 12/21/17. Calcuated a 7% increase for all positions (1,287
FTE). Amount includes retirement/FICA impacts.

Article 25 - For agencies that do not propose a
Recruitment and Retention Plan, propose a base
salary pay adjustment for bargaining unit members
of 3% for members with 10 or more years of service,
such increase to be effective October 1, 2018, or on
the date the years of service standard is met.

$734,000

Itis not currently possible to determine which agencies will not
propose a Recruitment and Retention Plan, therefore the
propsed increase is calcuated for all unit positions. From the
download above, after the 7% was applied, determined the
positions that will meet at least 10 years of service as of 6/30/19.
For those positions, calcuated a 3% increase. Applied 75% for a
10/1 effective date. Amount includes retirement/FICA impacts.
504 FTE met the 10 year criterion. Note that if a position met the
10 year threshold on April 1, 2019, their increase is included for
the full 9 month period.

Page 1 of 1




PBA - Security
Services Unit



WV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

0T 40T 3d

‘(saneuosaidal pareusisap Jo peay
Aouage '3'9) aoueAswI3 oy aA[osa1Isnfpe
01 AjuIoyIne oy} YIIm juswadeuew

JO [9AS] © 1& pa[puey ST 30ULAJLIF

o) Jet) samsus 7 da)g e [eSSIUSIP 10
uonowap ‘vorsuadsns ‘Aemysdng Aq so[wu
0§ 1940 Jo 1aysuen Arejunjoaur ‘Aed aseq
Ul HOHONPal € U0 Paseq ST Jey) 90UBASLIS

€ JO uonenI sy, - (7)(g)S Uondsg

¢

"pezin A[oIer s1 )1 se ‘aInpeoord soueasus

oy wogy dojg [RIQ 9Y) JO UONBUILI[D
ot Bursodoud st ayelg oy ndur KouoSe
uodn paseq - (T)(A)E UOBISS :L1/LT/6

‘uoneIapIsuod Jopun Jesodord
S,2JE}§ Y} Sunye) St uotu() oY, 1L1/LT/6

"20uBASLIS

a1 03 51 SUIAIS JuaAs oy Sumol[oy skep

ST WA | doig ur giIoJ 198 Se ULIOJ 90UBASLIZ
e Surpruqns £q ‘ajerrdordde se ¢ 10 7 doig e
PIEOIUL 99 (£ S[OWIY UL PAGUIOSSP SB) UONOWSP
JO ‘uorsuadsns ‘[eSSTUISIP B UO Paseq SSOURALIS
ye sasodoxd a1mig oy, - (TN )S Uonoag

"30UBASLIS o1} 0} IS

Sura1d Juaao oy Jo momy sakordus o gorym
o 21ep oy} JuLMO[[0] SARp SSAUISNq ¢ UIYIIM

[ deig 18 o[y 0) souessuIs e Suraey sokojdws ue
onnbai [[im [esodoid ey -aunpaooid ssueasnd
o) woxy dog [eIQ S JO TOTRUIII[S A1)
sasodoxd ayerg oL - (T)(H)E WONIBS :L1/LT/6

2INP3001J OUBASLIL) - 9

SINTININOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVS0OdOdd ALVLS

YRR\

SI[ONIY PIAJOSAIU[)
JUIWIITY 1Iudd0dy ¢1-810T 183X [EISL] 10§ SUOIIRI)OTIN
LT0T "0€ I9qURACN :jJo se suonenosaN SurureSieg 2A1d9[[0)) JO SNJE)S
0202 ‘0 duny sodxy JuamrISY Jud.LIn))
WIAYSAS [PUUOS.IJ J)E)S - JIU[) SIAIIG AJLINDIG
TOIIEIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY N[O BPLIOL]




WV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

0T 07 "84

"UOISIOap Sulpulq pue euly

B IOpUSI PUE 9OUBAILIZ 91} IOPISUOD O}
Jojeniqre ay) 0§ sAep ssauisng g [EUOHIPPE
ue opIa0d [[IM ()¢ O) UOISIOSP © oNsSI

0} 10)eN1QIE UE 0} PApIoIFe sABp ssoursng
Jo Tequunu a1y ssessour o} (esodoxd

s@1els oYL - (T)(D)E Womdas :L1/0€/11

"O0UBAJLIS UOI)OB SSE[D o) JO

1d12021 3UIMO[[0] SABP G| UTYIIM UOISIOp
B 9JeOIUNUNIO) pue ‘ssa00id aoueasud
a1 areurpI009 ‘Aousfe pajesrdur Aue pue
UOTUY) 9} HIA 20URASLIT O} SSNOSIP PINom
SSOTAIOG JUSUIOZRURIA] JO Jusuneda(]

oy ], "osuodsar spim-osudioius jusisisuoo

B 2INSUS 0} 89[0ua3e snoea 0 A[ojeredas
UB) IoYIeI $30IAI0G JUSWITRUBIA

Jo wsunaedag o) 03 pajussard

AJ[enIur I S90UBAQLIS YONS [[e JBYy) SAINSUD
€ da1g je Aouage suo uey sxow Suneoyduwr
90UBASLIZ UOL)OR SSE[ © JO UOTIENIUT oY)

10 Tesodoxd sz1e1g oy, - (E)(E)S Uondas

“I91R[ ST JOAQYIIYM

‘8JoLIq JO UOISSTWIGNS oY) I0 SULIBSY

Jo FuIsoro oy} Jo a1ep Ay woly ‘shep ssaursng
T Yua1Ind SY) UeY) IS ‘SABD $SIUISNq ()¢ UBy)
‘Tesodoxd ss1eg a1y Surmaraal I9)E] OU TOISIOIP B INSSI [[eYs JojenIgle Ue Jey)
Apussaxd st uorun oy, <L 1/0g/11|sesodoxd srers oy, - (T(D)E BOMIES :L1/0€/11

"¢ do1g 18 pojeniur aq Aousge
auo uey arowr Funeorjdu saouLALLIg uoOE

ssefo Jer)) sesodoxd sye1g o] - (E)NF)S uonIag

(ponunuod) 2mMpa001J SOUBASLIL) - §

SINTIWINOD

'TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALV.LS

TIOLLAV

SNV PIAJOSIIUN
WRWIZY 13u3d0dy 6]-§T0T 183X [BISL] 10J SUONEBNOTIN
LT0T "0¢ 13qumdA0)N :jo se suonenodoN Surmredieg 3aRad[[0)) Jo snyelg
0207 ‘0¢ dung saamdxy JuawadISy ymaIn)
WI)SAS [PUUOSIIJ 3)8)§ - JU[} SIAIIS AILINJAG
UOUBIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY IN[OJ PO




WV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

0T J0 €84

"peay Louage o1 JO UOL)SIISIP

9 Te passTISIp aq ABW pue peay Lousde
ay) Jo axnseayd oy 1B saA1as uonisod
JUSLIMD I5Y JO ST Wl smye)s Jusueurad
paurelje Jou sey oy sakodwd ue jetp
$9181S sapels epLIof “(7)L1Z' 011 uonoas
Yer) saziseydwia 1B Oy ], oY IO Uy
isureSe soSeyo o) Sunuwm ur pue Aj[elo
Iomsue 0) uorjoe oY) Sume) [BISIJO 40
Koud3e oy 210J0q 1eadde o) Ayumuoddo ue
ynm sakordws s Surpraoxd jnoyim spew

B JO [eSSILUSIP 9] SUIA[OAUT SosB0 AUl

SI UOISIO9p ot “sakojduwo Areuoneqoid|.

Ul Jery} SpUSiuoo UOFU() JY | - 7 BONI3S

‘Anp 1oy

10da1 0) SNUNUOD [[IM POJONPIP ST 9ABS]
woys woly seafojdwg “peronpap aq Aeur
9ARI[ TenuUE ‘aAEI] Aoyesuaduros eroads
USIDTINS dALY Jou $30p sakojduwo oy

J1 ‘soseo yons uf ‘uorsuadsns e 10] AR
[enuiry Jo saea] A1oyesuaduro)) eroadg
3unmnsqns ur UoRaIOSIP [0S sey Aouade

oy Anuasaid - (Z)(JT OB :L1/L7/6

*0a401dws Areuoneqoid e jo

JessTwsIp oy 03 J011d uopiem sjeridordde
oU} Yiim |, SuLresy urres[d swieuy,,

JO TLIOY SWOS JO UOTSN[OUT ) SJUBM UOII[)
ot “Areoyoadg “saakojdmie Areuoneqord
Jo aundiostp a1 0} pajeror oFenSue|

#au sesodoxd uorun) oy - 7 Uonoeg

‘uotsuadsns oty Juraios

ea£o[duid a1} Jo naty ur $S[ IO SINOY

96 JO JUNOUIZ 3} UL 2ARY] [ENUUY 1O SABY]
Kroyesuadwio)) Tervadg asn 0) UOLAIDSIP

o) aaey] [jeys worsuadsns Areurjdiosip

B §9A19001 Oy 29Kodwe ue jey

ap1aoxd o] uoros sty) puswie o) sasodoid

uorun) Ay, - (Z)(@)T UONdSS :11/LT/6

onb smels L 1/0¢/11

adreyosi(] pue aurdisi(] - £

SINTIIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

'TVSOdOdd ALVLS

ATOLLAYV

SOOIV PIA[osaIuf)
JUIWRUIZY 1ouddody 61-8T0T 18X [BISL 0] SHORLOSIN
LT0T "0€ IqUIDACN :jo se suonenodaN sSurmredieg 9ARII[0)) JO SNYu)S
0207 ‘0€ dung saxdxy JudmraaiSy jJuaaIn)
WIJSAS [PUUOSIJ €IS - J[) SIIAIIS A)JANdIG
UONRII0SSY JUI0AIUIY N[0J CPLIOL]




WY TS:TT ‘810Z/8/T

0T 40 ¥ "84

S)eutuLIzlepy] - sjesodoxd
Suotun) Jo ajewnyse 3unsoo gdo L1/L1/11

‘uorstaoxd

oty Aq paxmbar spouad yrom popusyxs
paisulpe oy Jo Jnsar e se soakopdua
[emoe o jordunt aaneSauseanisod paxmu
SY1 PUE )eOdLS O) USPINg SATIENSTUNIpE
o) 03 anNp SHUSWABY Y J 2o

Jo)o o) wioyy uoistaoid STy} JO [BAOUIDT
sy} Swrsodoud st o1e1g A1 ndur AousFe
uodn paseq - (3)TWOBSS :L1/L7/6

"SINO-1ed FULIOJIUOW STHONOD[e SUDjIom ‘b
1o semnp 1ojonnsur JurIopag ‘¢
‘peofosen

$,1901JJ0 Isyjoue 0} pausisse Ajueiodwa] ‘7
ISpeOTased dAISSIOXd 0} paudissy |

:a1e A9} JT SUITISA0 JO Juswied o
Surproae yo asodmd a1y 10§ poxsy sinoy
J1oy) 9ARY JOU [eys SIS0 Uoneqoig
[BUOTIDRLIO)) 1BY) 2INSUD 0) UOHIIS MAU

e sesodoid uotun) oy, - () Uono0S AN

‘paugisse

08 9Ty }3aM3[I0oMm InoY O & 0} 193fqns
9 0) ‘IOUISAOL) S} WOLJ JOPI() SANNOIXH
UB Ul POqLIISap se ‘eate Aoua3iowo

ue 0} paugIsse aIe oym saskofdwe

10} a8engue| Jo uorsnjour vy sasodoid

uomun) Y], - {D)T UON93S :L1/LT/6

onb smels £ [/0¢/11

SQUWIIDAQ IO JO SINOH - €7

SINAWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd HLVIS

CERIRR: A4

SNV PIA[OSIIN[)
JUIUIIZY Juddody 6T-8T0T 183 A [€ISI] 10) suoyeyodan
LT0T "0t 19qudAON :jo se suonerodaN Suturedreg 3A1I3[[0)) JO SIYEIS
0207 ‘0€ dunp saxdxy Juamaady yuaiin)
UI)SAS [PUUO0SIDJ 2)B)S - JIU[) SIINAIIG AJLINIAG
UONBIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY IdN[0d ePLIOL]




NV TS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

0T Jo S "84

‘HJauaq [eUONIPPE STy

I0J AYI[IqRI] TBOST S2)B)S U3 1| O] SOAIIS
deo oA®S] AT, "pasjIoM SMOY [BUOHIPPE 10]
‘ourn Aue Je SIN0Y (g JO [ENIOOE [UNUITXEW
© 0} dn ‘sjparo aaee] Arotesusdwoo

JIe[ngal Jo [enIooe o) 30 sapraoid
‘paxmbai 10U Y3noty ‘ae)g o) I9ASMOY]
10V splepue)s I0qe I, o) Iapun
SWNISAO I0J 9QISI]S Jou saako[dws 1duroxe
aIe syueunar] pue sueyde) :/1/0¢/11

"porrad Aed a3 10§ SINOY PAIOBIIUOD

1) JO 830X UT PAyJom SInoy [[e Jof Aed Jo
o1eI 0sq JISY) JTey suo-pue-ow) je pred aq
aaed| Arojesusdwioos rendai jo fenidoe ay
JOJ WAWIXRUW! (7 SU) POYOLAI QALY OLm
SJURUSINSIT pue sureide)) [BUONOSIIO)) 1By}
sesodoxd uorup) oy, - CUORSS :L1/0€/TT

"9[npayos Aepiif ysnomy

Kepuopy “wrd ¢ 0] Wwre § [ewrIou Ay}
OpISING YUOW I3d SINO0Y 9 JO WNWIKeu
€ 310Mm 0) paxmnbor aq Aew projeseo
Ie[n3aI B ALIEd oYM (SISDHJO [OIUOD
Aunuruos Surpn[oxe) s19ogyo uoneqord
[EUOTIORIIO)) 1R} S3JeIS OIYM ‘UOT)ORS ST}
oY) WOy papn[ox? oq (OF0Y) sisterdadg
uoneqold [Buond2LI0) pue (5£08)
SIOOIJ () JOTUAS UOTRQOI] [BUOIIIALIO))

et sasodoxd wotun) oy - () uonoog

onb smelg L [/0¢/11

(penunuoo)

SWIISAQ/IOM JO SINOH - €7

SINHIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

TIDILAV

SOV PIAjesaIU)
WY 1udody 6I-81(0T 18X [€ISL] 10] suoneresaN

L

T0T "0€ TPqUdDAON :jo s suonenosa) SurureSieg 3ANII[[0)) JO SMIBIS
0207 ‘0€ duny saardxf JmamI8Y Jua.LIn))
WR)SAS [PUHOSId 9)¥)S - JIU() SIIAIIS APLINIAY
UOI)BIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY o J BPLIOL{




WV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

JWWITY 1ouadody 1-81(7 18I X [€ISLY 10] SUOHEIOSIN
LT0T °0€ 12QUIdAON :Jo se suonenogaN Surarediegq 3AII[0)) JO SNYE)S
0707 ‘0€ dunp saardxy Iy JudLIn))
WR)SAS [PUUO0SI 3)8)§ - JIU[] SINAIIG AJANIAG
UONEI0SSY JUI[OAIUIY IN[0J EPLIOL]

0T 409 84

S)BUTLIS}SPU] - sennp

yons Juruuoyiad Usym 94 JO SADIPPE

Aed € 9A13001 [[eYS 1901JJ0 USWSULJUOD
10 JOJONNSUL UR Sk sannp paudisse ‘sonnp yons Surunopied usym
seakordua yun SurureSreq qre yo esodoid| o4c Jo aanippe Led v aA19001 [[eYS JSOIJO
S,UOruN 9t} Jo Sewms? Funsod g40 JUSTIAULUOD JO JOJONLISUI R SB Sa1np
paudisse seakopdws jum Sururesieq 1y ¢

NE'SE - 810T °T 12qo100

9AN93YE3 (0 00S TS BUODIPPE Uk Aq
parsnfpe Aed Jo aye1 aseq J101) dARY [[BYS '810T ‘1 19G019(0) 2A1109J]0
SALIOS SB[ WONLRqOId [BUOII001IOD ST} UL 00°00$7$ Teuonippe ue Aq pajsnlpe
soakordws yun Sururegreq [re jey resodord|Led Jo 2yer aseq II91) SARY [[BYS SILISS SSB[O
S,UOTU() 31} JO 9yemss Junsod gJ0 uoneqoid [euonsar1os oY) ur ssekopduo
jun Sururedieq [y - (D) ¢ GOBoaS

WF LS - 8T0T ‘1
19q0300) 9A103fJ2 Aed JO 9yl 9seq I} UL 8107 ‘T 19q0100) 2an09330 Aed Jo
%T [EUOTIPPE UR SAT200I Q0IAISS JO SIBIA| )81 958Qq oY) UI 97 [BUOHIPPE UR AIS091
¢ s soakopdue o[qrya e 1ey) Tesodord| 201A19s Jo s1eaL ¢ YHIM saaLopdura 9[qISIe
§,uoTuf) 3y Jo srewnss 3unsod gJOf  [re yeys sesodoxd ygd oy - (g) ¢ Uonssg

NE'LTS
- 810T 1 Amnf aanooge Aed jo oju1 aseq ‘10T ‘1 L[ 2a1009)10
TIoU) UI 9, ¢ JO asealoul Aed oannedwoo Aed JO 2181 95BQ 1ISY) UT 94¢ JO SSBAIOUL
© 9A10021 yun Sururedieq oy ut seako[dwe| Aed sanneduwos € aA19991 Jrun Surmregieq
A1qr31[s [1e 1ey) Jesodoid s,uo) oy ur saakofdus o]qiSife 1k T ey

oy Jo rewnse Sunsod 4o :L1/Lg/6|sesodord wad oyr - (V) 7 uonosss :L1/9T/6 SOTEM - 6T
SINHIWINOD "TVSOdOdd NOIN TVS0OdOdd ALVLS TIDLLYV
SIPPIIY PIA[OSIIU[)




WV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

0T 40 £ 84

H6S€S - yruour Jod

00001 $ JO Junowe oy} Ul JATULOUI LIE[es B
SATE21 [[BYS (310I0)00P 10 I2)SEW) S9915ap
Paje[er-0onsnl [BUNULID PASURAPE ()M
soako[dws yun SumureSieq [je jey) fesodod
S,UOTU() 3Y} JO Syewysa Sunsod gJo

SNBUIULINSPU - %,() ] JO WNWITUII € 9q [[BYS
saako[duwis y1un SurureSieq Jo sjuounsnfpe
Aed euopowoud [fe jey) resodord

uorup) ay; Jo sjewnss Sunsos gJ0

“Iuout
Iad (0" Q0T $ JO JUNOWIE OY) UT JATIUSOUIL
AJe[es © 0A19001 [[RYS (9)BI0}00P 10 I2)SBUI)
$00I13ap poje[eI-ooNsN( [BUNULID PIoURApPER
s saakorduws jun SurureSieq v 9

pue 9401 JO wInuITUI
© oq [[eys saako[dus Jun SurureSieq
To0§ sjuounsnipe Aed jenonoword [y ¢

(panunuoo) safep - ¢z

SINAWINOD

TVSO0dOdd NOINN

TVS0dOdd ILVIS

TIDILAV

SI[ON)IY PIA[OSaIU[)
YRWIIBY 1uIdody] 6T-810T 18dX [€ISI] 10] suonenodaN

L

10T "0¢ 12qUIAON :Jo st suonenosaN Sururesieq 9ANIIM[0)) JO SNIB)S
0207 ‘0¢ dunp soxdxy juewdaasy yuaaan))
WIJSAS [PUUOSIIJ d)®)S - JU[) SIINAIS AJINIIG
UOHBIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY N[0 BPLIOL]




WV TS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

0T J0 8 "8d

(s10alqns pauonuomwaioge
oy} uo suotsiaoid JoenU00 JULLIND
oy 03 Ayrepd apraoid o) axe suorsiaoxd 983y ] )

“P3JOWSP ST 39A0fdius o) Yorym oyl

sse[o oy ur uonisod v uipry sours sekoduws o)
Aq paA1021 sasealoul [euonowoxd [[2 JO Junowe
sy} uey} a10ur £q pasnpal aq jou [[im Aed Jo

ajes aseq s seko[dws oy ‘pejowap st sako[duro
ue usym jerp sasodoid ayv)g 2g T - (D) § uondeg

"opew st yuawurodde oy yorgm

0} sse[2 oy 10§ Led JO 9181 9SBQ NI SY}
18 2 [[IM UoTssIunuo)) Suruiel ] pue splepuelg
Q00SN [RUNWLILY) 1} AQ pansst Suturen Jmroax
oIseq I0J uONS[dwoD JO SYBOIJIRISY JUALIND

e Surpyoy suosied 10§ juswjuodde uodn Aed

ot yey sasodoid arerg oy, - (€)(V) 9 GOHDS

“SSE[O
oy 103 Aed JO 91l 9SBQ TUNTUIUTUX ) MO[3q
%01 se pauryap 2q Aed souren jey sasodoid

J1eiS sy - (THV) G UOH3BS L 1/L1/11

(ponunuoo) saem - ¢z

SINIIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVS0dOdd ALVLS

CYRIAR.AS

SNV paAfosaau))
JIIMIZY Jouddody G1-8107 1€ X [ISI] 10] suone1jodaN
LT0T "0€ BQURAON :Jo se suonenodaN SupureSieg 2A13[j0)) jo smjelg
0207 ‘0€ dunp saadxy JuameaIdy Jua.LIn)
WA)SAS [2UUO0SIDJ 2)B)S - JTU[) SIIAIIS A)INIIS
UOPRIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY II[0J EPLIOL]




NV TS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

0T 3406 8d

“IoJsuer)
Jo uopowoid ‘uswainel uodn aSpeq
& Jurure)a: seakojdme Surpiedar uorssnosip

JoUINg daBY [[14 D] PUE UOKU[) YT

"uoneIapIsuod ropun [esodoxd
S21e1g 2y Bunye) st UOTUN) SYL L1/0¢/11

"a8peq o
70 1500 a1 Aud pue jusumaedsp oy yim Supues
poo3 ur axe Aoy J1 s93peq 1ty Suruie)as
suonisod ISYI0 0] PaLIJsues) 1o pajowrold
oIe Oy SIDOLJJO Uoneqold [BUONOaLIOD

PUE SISOTJO [BUONIALIOD 0] patefer ofenSue|

Zun{s sasodoid are1g oy, - (D) ¢ UoNoag

a8peq pansst 1oy}

Ure}al 0} pazLIoyIne 3q [[eys ‘AI[IqesIp [edrpaut
Iopun JustiaInoL SUIPNIOUT ‘00JATIS SNOMUNUOD
Jo s1eak 7 10 ¢ Jo o3k yuswainsl seudordde
oy} Sunpoesl uodn welsAg JUSWLIISY

BPLIOY] 3y} WOl SUCHIPUOD S[qRIOuOY

Jopun jusunredop oY) WOLJ 151 OYM SISO
uorjeqoId [FUOHIS1I00 PUR SISOLJO [EUONISIIO))
1ey) sasodoid ayeig oy Y, - () ¢ Uonoas

‘sunojIun |7y, JO UOHRUIUIIS SY) UI POj[Tsal
2A®Y S9TURYD ULIOJTUN JUSOAT SE ‘SULIOJIUn 1),
Surousigyar oFen3ue] 10enU00 JUSLIND 3Y) SYLYS
03 sasodoid o1erg oYL, - TUONIAS L 1/0¢/11

eIU3ISU] pue ULIOJIU() - 97

SINAININOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVLS

HTOLLAV

SO[ONIY paAjosaauf)
JRWRIZY 1uadody 6I-810T 183X [€Is1] 10f suonenoaN

L

T0T "0¢ 1PqUIdAON :Jo St suopenosoN surnredieg IARII[[0)) JO SNIL)S
0207 ‘0€ dung saardxy U1y Jua.Lin))
WIYSAS [PUUO0SIdJ 3)B)S - JIU[) SINAIRS AJLINIIS
UOIRIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY IN0J BpLIOL]




NV TS:TT ‘8T0Z/8/1 0T 40 0T “8d

'610T ‘T Atenue( 9A1n09]J9 ‘Ue[d Y[esH
s[quonpa( YSry 9y 103 asnods yoea 10y Yuow
10d 1'TES PUE UBJ YI[ESH PIEPURIS oY) 10
asnods yoes 10J Yiuow 1od (6§ 03 95ULYD [[IM
'soakordwe Aq pred| uepq souemnsu] presy dnoin ssekojdwg a1elg

swnnuaid 0} asearour ou Yy sxmonns| ot ur Sunedronred ssnods yoes 10§ yuow d
$)JoULq JUSLIND 3y JO UONRNUNU00 ay)|  ¢[$ Jo swnrwaid juauno :wresdoig ssnodg oy

sosodoxd ygJ oy], - TUonoss :£1/97/6| 30 uonesyrpowt e sasodord sye1g oyl :L1/LT/11 s)Ijousy soueInsuy - /7
SINTININOD "TVS0dOdd NOINN TVS0dOdd ALVLS TIDILAV
SI[INIY PIAJOS3IU[)

JUIWARISY H2uddedy ¢I-81(0T 182X [€ISI] 10] suonenosaN
LT0T "0€ TPqUBAON :jo se suonenoSaN SurareSieg 9Ands[jo)) Jo snye)g
0207 ‘0€ sunyp soardx7y JUdwWIAIY JUILIN))
WIAISAS [QUUOSIdJ 3)¥)§ - JU() SINAIIG AJLINIOG
UOIRIDOSSY JUI[0AUIY [0 vPLIOL]




PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 11

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and PBA to encourage informal discussions between supervisors
and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view to reaching
an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee and the
state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions
As used in this Article:

(A)  “Grievance” shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement.

(B)  “Grievant” shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same
grievance. In the case of a group of employees one employee shall be designated by the group to
act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance.

(C)  “Days” shall mean business days. “Business days” refers to the ordinary business
hours, i.e., 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the
recipient is located. Furthermore, “business days” do not include any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the PBA pursuant to a list
furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a
suspension of grievance processing as agreed in writing by the parties. “Business days” also do
not include a day(s) on which the offices of DMS or any agency employing bargaining unit
members are closed under an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency
condition or disaster under the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(e).

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) Ifagrievant or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this Article
and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, the
grievant or the PBA shall indicate at the time the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 2 of 11

is to be used and such decision shall be binding on the grievant or the PBA. In the case of any
duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) A grievant who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or
other initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be
represented by the PBA. When the grievant has elected PBA representation, the grievant and the
PBA Staff Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting. Written communication
concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to the grievant and the PBA Staff
Representative, and the decision agreed to by the state and the PBA shall be binding on the
grievant.

(C)  If the grievant is not represented by the PBA, an adjustment of the grievance shall
be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The PBA shall be given reasonable opportunity to
be present at a meeting called for the resolution of the grievance. A grievant using this procedure
in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure established by the Parties to this
Agreement. The PBA shall not be bound by the decision of a grievance or arbitration in which the
grievant was not represented by the PBA.

SECTION 3 — Procedures

(A)  Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and
handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances.
Grievances may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery.

(B)  After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised.

(C)  There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(D) If a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbitration hearing is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the regular work hours of a grievant, a representative of the grievant,
or any required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at grievance
meetings, mediation, or arbitration hearings outside of a participant’s regular work hours shall not
be deemed time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of any participants attending such
meetings on behalf of the PBA.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 3 of 11

(E)  Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

ay 3 nerievanceat-Step neh-w o An employee having
a grievance may, within 15 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance,
submit a grievance at Step 1. In filing a grievance at Step 1, the grievant or the designated grievance
representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance form as

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 4 of 11

contained in Appendix B, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is
based, the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief
requested. All written documents to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representative shall
be submitted with the grievance form; however, if additional written documentation is obtained
after the grievance is filed, such documentation may be presented at the Step 1 meeting.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designated
representative shall meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to
the grievant and the grievant’s representative, if any, within 15 days following the date the
grievance is received at Step 1.

(¢)  ‘Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the grievant, or the PBA where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as long
as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides.

32) Step2

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the grievant or the
grievant’s representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or designated representative
within 10 days after receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance shall include a copy of the
grievance form submitted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step 1 response, together with all written
documents in support of the grievance. When

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the
grievant and/or the grievant’s representative to discuss the grievance. If the grievance is initiated
at Step 2, the parties shall meet to discuss the grievance. The Agency Head or designated
representative shall communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant’s
representative, if any, within 15 days following receipt of the written grievance.

©) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the grievant, or the PBA where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 5 of 11

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as long
as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides.

(43) Step 3 — Contract Language Disputes

(a) If a grievance concerming the interpretation or application of this
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay,
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the designated PBA representative, or the grievant
or his representative, if not represented by the PBA, may appeal the grievance, in writing, to the
Department of Management Services within 15 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. The
grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all
written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The Department of Management
Services shall discuss the grievance with the PBA representative, or the grievant or representative
if not represented by the PBA. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance
form must contain the same information as the grievance filed at Step 1 above.

(b) The Department of Management Services shall communicate a
decision in writing to the grievant and his representative within 15 days following receipt of the
written grievance.

© Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the grievant, or the PBA where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as long
as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides.

(54) Grievance Mediation

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to
be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been
submitted to arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a
grievance, the scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (6)(d) below may be

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 6 of 11

extended by mutual agreement beyond five months. Either party may withdraw from the mediation
process with written notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation.

(65) Arbitration

(a) If a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base
pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal)
was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the President of the PBA or a designated member
of his staff may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration Form as contained
in Appendix C within 10 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language dispute
as described in (4) above is not resolved at Step 3, the President of the PBA or a designated member
of his staff may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration Form as contained
in Appendix C of this Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at
the initial step, the PBA refused to represent the grievant because he was not a dues-paying
member of the PBA, the grievant may appeal the grievance to arbitration.

(b) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related grievances
for hearing before the same arbitrator.

() The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of at least six
arbitrators, selected by the state and the PBA to serve in rotation for any case or cases submitted.
The Department of Management Services’ Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration
hearing with the state and the PBA representatives and the arbitrator listed next on the panel in
rotation, and shall coordinate the arbitration hearing time, date, and location.

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible but not
more than five months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration Form. If the arbitrator
initially selected is not available to schedule within this period, the Arbitration Coordinator shall
contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who can schedule within
the prescribed period. A party may request of the arbitrator, with notice to the other party and the
Arbitration Coordinator, an extension of time/continuance based on documented unusual and
compelling circumstances. The Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule arbitration hearings at times
and locations agreed to by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence,
location of witnesses, existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors. If agreement
cannot be reached, the arbitration hearing shall be held in the City of Tallahassee.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 7 of 11

(e) At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration
hearing, the parties shall file with the arbitrator, and provide to each other, a list of witnesses to be
called at the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, and a brief statement of the material facts or matters
relevant to the grievance about which each witness will testify. A party may file a written request
with the arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the other party, for an exception to the filing time
limits for good cause. If such exception is granted, the other party may request that the hearing be
rescheduled if necessary for the party to respond to the late filed witness information.

(D Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted
to address only the arbitrability issue. In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the
panel of arbitrators (see (6)(c) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision
within 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose. The hearing on this issue
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five
business days of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of
the parties and the arbitrator. The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and expenses
of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another
arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with the
provisions of (6)(c) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s).

(2) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this
Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the PBA, the grievant(s), and the employees in
the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following
provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 22-30 days
from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, shall be
determined by applying a preponderance of the evidence standard, and shall set forth the
arbitrator’s opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted.

3 The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issue, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not
essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 8§ of 11
4. The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.
5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make
any decisions:
a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to,

subtracting from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or
of applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law; or

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers,
duties, and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties, and responsibilities
have been abridged, delegated, or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement; or

C. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of
an Agency Head as otherwise granted by law or the Rules of the State Personnel System unless
such authority is modified by this Agreement; or

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or
policy unless such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the Rules of the State Personnel
System, or this Agreement,

6. The arbitrator’s award may include back pay to the
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards.

a. An award for back pay shall not exceed the amount
of pay the grievant would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by the
amount of wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance
benefits during the back pay period, shall not include punitive damages, and shall not be retroactive
to a date earlier than 15 days prior to the date the grievance was initially filed.

b. If the PBA is granted a continuance to reschedule an
arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be responsible for back
pay for the period between the original hearing date or the end of the five month period described
in (6)(d), above, and the rescheduled date.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 9 of 11

(h) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by
both parties; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses
of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee statement to
the Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator’s contract.

(i) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the proceedings.
Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter. If either party orders a
transcript of the proceedings, the party shall pay for the cost of the transcript and provide a
photocopy to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript to the other
party upon written request and payment of copying expenses ($.15 per page).

G) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which
it was not a party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A)  Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall be
deemed a waiver of the grievance.

(B)  Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, or the PBA where appropriate, to proceed
to the next step. A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the PBA by the written, agreed-
to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing a grievance to the next step.

(C)  Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 — Exceptions

(A)  Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit
the PBA or an employee to process a grievance: (1) on behalf of any employee without his consent,
or (2) when the subject of such (employee’s) grievance is, at the same time, the subject of an
administrative action, an appeal before a governmental board or agency, or a court proceeding.

(B)  All grievances will be presented at the-Oral-Step-er-Step 1, with the following
exceptions:

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 10 of 11

N If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, by
submitting a grievance form as set—feﬁh—m—Step—-l—contalned in Appendix B within 15 days
following the eceurrence-ofthe-event giving rise to the grievance.

2) If the grievance arises from an agency action listed in Article 7(1)}(B) of this
Agreement, a grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 by submitting a grievance form as contained in
Appendix B within 15 days following the event giving rise to the grievance.

(23) The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of
employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of this
Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against any employee. The
PBA’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding in another forum
on the same issue. The class action grievance form shall identify the specific group (i.e.,
employees’ job classification(s), work unit(s), institution(s), etc.) adversely impacted by the
dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement. Such grievance shall be
initiated at Step 2_or, where more than one agency is implicated, Step 3 of this procedure efthis
procedure;-in-aceordance-with-the-provisions-set-forth-herein;by submitting a grievance form as
contained in Appendix B, within 15 days effollowing the ececurrence-ofthe-event giving rise to
the grievance.

(C)  An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position and
therefore may be disciplined without a showing of cause may only file non-discipline grievances
unless the processing of such grievances is further limited by specific provisions of this
Agreement.

SECTION 6 — Expedited Arbitration

(A)  The parties recognize that certain grievances may be amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly, at any point in the grievance procedure, the PBA may
request expedited arbitration of a grievance. Requests for expedited arbitration shall be granted in
cases involving arbitrable disciplinary action less than discharge. In all other cases, expedited
arbitration will be used upon agreement of the parties.

(B)  Expedited Arbitration Rules:

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 11 of 11

(D) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all remaining
steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the grievance is submitted directly to the
expedited arbitrator.

(2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of permanent
arbitrators.

(3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than six hours in duration,
with each party limited to three hours. There shall be no post-hearing briefs, although either party
may submit a written statement of position to the arbitrator during the hearing. The Arbitrator shall
issue a short (no longer than threc pages) decision within seven days of the hearing. With the
exception of the foregoing, all provisions of section 3(E)(6) of this procedure shall be applicable.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 7
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 1 of 6

Article 7
DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

SECTION 1 - Discipline of Permanent Status Employees

(A)  An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may be
disciplined only for cause as provided in section 110.227, Florida Statutes. Reductions in base
pay, demotions, involuntary transfers of more than 50 miles by highway, suspensions, and
dismissals may be effected by the state at any time against any employee. Demotion will not be
used as a form of disciplinary action for employees in the classes of Correctional Officer,
Correctional Probation Officer, Correctional Probation Officer-Institution, or Institutional Security
Specialist L.

(1) Such actions against employees with permanent status in their current
position for disciplinary reasons may be grieved at Step 2 and processed through the Arbitration
Step, in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6 of this Agreement, if the employee
alleges that the action was not for just cause. However, any reduction in base pay required by the
Rules of the State Personnel System shall not be grievable

(2) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status in
their current position up to Step 3; the decision at that level shall be final and binding.

(B)  Asan altermative to the grievance procedure, an employee with permanent status in
his current position may file an appeal of a reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer
of over 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal with the Public Employees Relations
Commission (PERC) within 21 calendar days after the date of receipt of notice of such action from
the agency, by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, under the provisions
of section 110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes.

(C)  Where a disciplinary action may be appealed to PERC and is also grievable under
this Agreement, the employee shall indicate at the time the grievance is reduced to writing which
procedure is to be used and such decision shall be binding on the employee. In the case of any
duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 7
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 2 of 6

(D)  For disciplinary suspensions, the following shall apply:

(1) If the agency issues a disciplinary suspension to an employee and the
employee files an appeal to PERC in the required 21 calendar days from the date the employee
receives the letter, or files a collective bargaining grievance within the time limits set forth in
Article 6 of this Agreement, the agency shall have the option to stay the suspension for up to 90
calendar days pending a Recommended or Final Order by PERC, or a decision/award from an
arbitrator. If the agency stays the suspension, and PERC has not issued a Recommended or Final
Order, or an arbitrator has not rendered a decision/award by the end of the period for which the
suspension was stayed, the agency may proceed with the disciplinary suspension.

2) The agency may have special compensatory leave equal to the length of a
disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee’s leave balance in lieu of the employee serving
the suspension. The agency has sole discretion in making such determination. If the employee
does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, annual leave may be deducted. If there is not
sufficient special compensatory or annual leave, the remainder of the period will be leave without
pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted wiil continue to report for duty. The empioyee’s
personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the employee serves the
suspension or has leave deducted.

SECTION 2 — Discipline of Probationary Employees

Pursuant to Section 110.217(2), Florida Statutes, an employee who has not attained
permanent status in his current position serves at the pleasure of the agency head in a probationary
status and may be dismissed at the discretion of the agency head or designee. Pursuant to Section
110.227(1), Florida Statutes, an agency may discipline or dismiss a probationary employee without
a showing of cause.

SECTION 3 - Counseling

An agency may issue Memoranda of Record, Memoranda of Counseling, or Supervisory
Counseling Memoranda which are documentation of minor work deficiencies or conduct concerns
that are maintained by a supervisor in a working file. Such documents are not discipline, are not
grievable, and shall not become part of the employee’s official personnel file; however, such

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 7
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 3 of 6

documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee’s
discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance deficiencies or conduct

concerns.
SECTION 4 — Interrogation during Internal Investigations

In the course of any internal investigation, the interrogation methods employed will be
consistent with sections 112.532 and section 112.533, Florida Statutes.

(A)  Definitions

For the purpose of this section the following definitions of terms as used in section 112.532,
Florida Statutes, shall apply:

(1) “Interrogation” refers to a disciplinary investigation meeting with respect to
an incident or complaint between a member of management or supervision, including an
investigator, and an employee covered by this Agreement in which the information to be obtained
at the investigation meeting will be the basis for the decision as to whether to suspend or dismiss
the employee. It does not include counseling sessions, or investigations, which may result in lesser
forms of disciplinary action or meetings at which the employee is solely being advised of intended
disciplinary action, and offered an opportunity to explain why he should not be disciplined.

2) “Complainants” refers to the complaining or charging party relative to an
incident, complaint, or reason.

(B)  Procedures

Whenever an employee covered by this Agreement is under investigation and subject to
interrogation by members of his agency for any reason, which could lead to disciplinary action,
suspension, demotion, or dismissal, such interrogation shall be conducted under the following

conditions:

(1) The interrogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, preferably at a
time when the employee is on duty, unless the seriousness of the investigation is of such a degree
that immediate action is required.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 7
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 4 of 6

(2) The interrogation shall take place either at the office of the command of the
investigating officer or correctional unit in which the incident allegedly occurred, as designated by
the investigating officer or agency.

3) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the rank, name, and
command of the officer in charge of the investigation, the interrogating officer, and all persons
present during the interrogation. All questions directed to the officer under interrogation shall be
asked by and through one interrogator at any one time.

4) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the nature of the
investigation prior to any interrogation, and he shall be informed of the name of all complainants.

(5) Interrogating sessions shall be for reasonable periods and shall be timed to
allow for such personal necessities and rest periods as are reasonably necessary for both the
employee and the representative.

(6) The employee under interrogation shall not be subjected to offensive
language or be threatened with transfer, dismissal, or disciplinary action. No promise or reward
shall be made as an inducement to answer any questions.

@) The formal interrogation of an employee, including all recess periods, shall
be recorded, and there shall be no unrecorded questions or statements. Upon the request of the
interrogated officer, a copy of any such recording of the interrogation session must be made
available to the interrogated officer no later than 72 hours, excluding holidays and weekends,

following said interrogation.

(8) If the employee under interrogation is under arrest, or is likely to be placed
under arrest as a result of the interrogation, he shall be completely informed of all his rights prior
to the commencement of the interrogation.

9) At the request of any employee under investigation, he shall have the right
to be represented by counsel or any other representative of his choice, who shall be present at all
times during such interrogation whenever the interrogation relates to the officer’s continued fitness
for correctional service.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 7
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 5 of 6

(10)  Where the agency determines that a complaint is unsupported by the facts
or is otherwise without merit, or determines that the facts are insufficient to charge or otherwise
discipline the employee under investigation, such conclusion will be so noted as part of the
investigative record. Written documents relative to the investigation are subject to the provisions
of Article 12, Personnel Records.

(11)  Where the employee is the subject of the investigation, the employee shall
be provided the opportunity to review all written statements made by the complainant and
witnesses immediately prior to the beginning of the investigation interview.

(©)  Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his response during an investigation of
a complaint or allegation. If an employee is offered an opportunity to submit to a polygraph test,
the employee’s refusal will not be referred to in any final action taken by the agency.

(D)  Alleged violations of the investigative rights provided for in this section by an
employee or the PBA shall be investigated by the agency. The agency shall provide the employee
and the PBA with an explanation concerning the alleged violation and corrective action taken, if

any.

(E)  The state will make a good faith effort to complete all internal investigations within
60 calendar days from the date the investigation is assigned to the investigator. Except in the case
of a criminal investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing of any investigation that
exceeds 120 calendar days. The employee under investigation shall be advised of the results of
the investigation at its conclusion.

(F)  The provisions of this section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to
Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure; the decision at that step shall be final and binding.

(G)  In cases where the agency determines that the employee’s absence from the work
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave in
accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. In cases where an employee has been
reassigned by the Department of Corrections pending the outcome of an investigation and the
charges or allegations against the employee are not sustained, the reassigned employee shall be
offered the option to return to the original work location and, if requested, the previously held shift

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 7
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 6 of 6

and days off as soon as they become available. As an exception, the Department may retain the
employee in the reassigned work location if it determines that information has been produced in
the course of its investigation of the charges that evidences a substantial likelihood of interference
with the operations of the work unit if the employee is returned to the original work location.

SECTION 5 - Employee Copy

Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary entries placed in his official
personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto, and a copy of the employee’s response
shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file.

SECTION 6 — Notice

Notice of reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by
highway, suspension, or dismissal affecting an employee who has satisfactorily completed at least
a one-year probationary period in his current position shall be in accordance with section
110.227(5), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 7 — Representation

Where PBA representation is requested by an employee during an investigation by the
agency Inspector General’s Office, or during a predetermination conference, a PBA steward will
be allowed a reasonable amount of accrued leave, other than sick leave, to attend such meetings,
subject to prior approval by the steward’s immediate supervisor. Such leave will be approved if
the steward can be allowed leave without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations of
the unit to which the steward is regularly assigned. Where an employee is represented by a PBA
Representative in a predetermination conference, the PBA Representative shall be notified of the
disposition of the predetermination conference.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Security Services Bargaining Unit
September 27, 2017

The following collective bargaining provisions are opened for discussion purposes.

A comprehensive proposal regarding these provisions will be made at a Iater date.
These proposals are drawn to the pending 2017-2020 collective bargaining

agreement.

Article 7 — Discipline and Discharge

The Florida PBA proposes:
1) Section 1(D)(2) relating to the use of special compensatory leave
amended to provide that an employee who receives a disciplinary
suspension shall have the discretion to use special compensatory or
annual leave in the amount of 96 hours or less in lieu of the employee

serving the suspension;

2) Provide a probaﬁonary employee with the opportunity for a name-
clearing hearing before the appropriate warden or circuit

administrator.



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 1 of 6

Article 23
HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME

SECTION 1 - Hours of Work and Overtime

(A)  The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours unless the
employee is on an agency-established extended work period. Except for emergency circumstances,
the normal work day is eight hours or 12 hours; the normal workday for Department of
Corrections’ employees assigned to public or Department of Transportation work squads is ten
hours. The parties agree that the issue of the hours in a normal work day may be a subject of
negotiation at any time during the term of this agreement.

(B)  Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will
make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the
workday and consecutive days in the workweek.

(C)  Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with the
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D) Management retains the right to approve time off for its employees. However, the
state will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to approve an employee’s specific request
for time off. Failure to approve such requests shall not be grievable under the provisions of Article

6 of this Agreement.

(E)  The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of
favoritism. In any case where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned
on the basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the grievance procedure under
Article 6 herein, to Step 3 of the procedure.

(F)  Absent a compelling need, an employee who is regularly scheduled to work 12 hour
shifts shall not be required to work an extended workday of more than 16 continuous hours. Upon
working an extended workday, the employee shall be given a minimum of eight hours between
shifts before returning for his next shift (whether scheduled or unscheduled).

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 2 of 6

SECTION 2 — Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules

(A)  When regular work schedules are changed, employees’ normal work schedules,
showing each employee’s shift, workdays, and hours, will be posted no less than 14 calendar days
in advance, and will reflect at least a two workweek schedule; however, the state will make a good
faith effort to reflect a one month schedule. In the event an employee’s shift, workdays or hours
are changed while the employee is on approved leave, the agency will make a good faith effort to
notify the employee of the change at his home. With prior written notification of at least three
workdays to the employee’s immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or
shifts on a temporary basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or
shifts, the employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved.

(B)  For shifts, and shift changes the following shall apply:

(1)  In the Department of Children and Families where practical, shifts, shift
changes, and regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency,
seniority, and employee preference. The state and the PBA understand that there may be times
when the needs of the agency will not permit such scheduling; however, when an employee’s shift
and/or regular days off are changed, the agency will make a good faith effort to keep the employee
on the new shift or regular days off for a minimum of 12 months unless otherwise requested by

the employee.

) For the Department of Corrections, shifts, shift changes, and regular days
off shall be scheduled primarily to meet the needs of the agency, with due regard for employee
seniority, work history, and preference. Management is responsible for the assignment to and from
administrative shift positions. The Department of Corrections, whenever practical, will try to offset
an officer’s additional work hours in conjunction with his regular days off.

(C)  When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee’s regular
shift assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a
minimum of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the
new shift assignment.

(D)  Where practical, vacation and holiday leave shall be scheduled at least 60 days in
advance of such leave. Time off for vacations and holidays, when the holiday is a regularly

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 3 of 6

scheduled workday for the employee, will be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the
agency, seniority, and employee preference. In implementing this provision, nothing shall preclude
an agency from making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as
determined by the agency, or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during holidays. For the
Department of Corrections, annual leave requests and approvals for correctional officers shall be
in accordance with procedure 602.030.

(E)  Correctional probation officers (excluding community control officers) who carry
aregular caseload may be required to work a maximum of 16 hours per month outside the normal
8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday schedule. The 16 hours may be broken down into no less
than two-hour or more than eight-hour segments. Officers may schedule their field time in the
morning, evening, Saturday or Sunday, or in any combination thereof. Officers may also volunteer
to schedule more than 16 hours of field work in a month. Officers must receive prior approval
from their supervisor before implementing their work schedule.

(F) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 3. The decision of the Step 3 Management
Representative shall be final and binding on all parties.

SECTION 3 - Rest Periods

(A)  No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during
each four hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle
of the work shift. However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty assignment
that requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which would not permit the employee to actually
leave his post. In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can “rest” while the employee
physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post.

(B)  An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be
authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or early departure from duty.

SECTION 4 - Court Appearances

If a correctional officer or institutional security specialist is subpoenaed to appear as a
witness in a job-related court case, not during the employee’s regularly assigned shift, the
correctional officer or institutional security specialist shall be granted a minimum of two hours

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 4 of 6

pay at his straight-time hourly rate. In all other respects, such appearances shall be governed by
the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 5 - Non-Required Work Time

Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state.

SECTION 6 — Special Compensatory Leave

(A)  Eaming of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave
credits may be earned only in the following instances:

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(2)  For work performed in the employee’s assigned office, facility, or region
which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor or any other disaster or emergency
condition in accordance with Rule 60L-34.0071, F.A.C.

(B)  General Provisions for Using Special Compensatory Leave Credits in Accordance
with Rule 601L-34.0044, F.A.C.

(D) Employee Leave Requests. An employee shall be required to use available
special compensatory leave credits prior to the agency approving the following leave types:

(a) Regular compensatory leave credits.

(b) Annual leave credits, unless such annual leave credits are being
substituted for an employee’s unpaid individual medical leave granted in accordance with the
federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or parental leave granted
in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.

2) Compelled Use of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. An employee may
be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit balances.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 5of 6

(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Credits Earned Prior to November 1, 2014 During the
November 1, 2014 through October 31, 2015 “Pay As You Go” Pilot.

Pursuant to the provisions of the January 15, 2014-through June 30, 2015 collective
bargaining agreement’s Fiscal Year 2014-15 Reopener Agreement [Appendix E, Article 23,
Section 6(B)], special compensatory leave credits earned on or after November 1, 2014 through
April 30, 2015, and on or after May 1, 2015 through October 31, 2015, that remain unused at the
end of each extension period (October 27, 2015 and April 28, 2016, respectively) shall be paid.

(D)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After November 1, 2015.

(1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(A)(1), on or after November 1, 2015, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31
that immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs
earlier, shall be paid at the employee’s current regular hourly rate of pay.

2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection
(A)(2), on or after November 1, 2015, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end
of the work period in which the leave is credited shall be paid at the employee’s current regular
hourly rate of pay.

3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after November 1, 2015, to be
used within the time limits specified in subsections (D)(1) and (D)(2). However, if scheduling
such leave within such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing
requirements needed to ensure public safety, the special compensatory leave remaining at the end
of each time limit shall be paid at the employee’s current regular hourly rate of pay.

(E)  Pay Provision for Special Compensatory Leave.

(1) Upon separation from the Career Service, an employee shall be paid only
for the following unused special compensatory leave credits:

(a) Special compensatory leave credits earned prior to July 1, 2012

(Leave Type 0055);

For the State For the PBA

Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chiet Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit

State Proposal — Status Quo - Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19

September 27, 2017

Page 6 of 6

(b) Special compensatory leave credits eammed from July 1, 2012
through October 31, 2014 that were restored to the Pre 7/2012 leave balance (Leave Type 0055);
and

(©) Special compensatory leave credits earned after November 1, 2015
that have not yet been paid pursuant to Section 6(D)(3) of this Article.

(2) Such credits shall be paid at the employee’s current regular rate of pay.

SECTION 7 — Compulsory Disability Leave

An agency may require an employee to use earned leave credits to cover the period between
the agency’s determination that the employee may be unable to perform assigned duties and the
results of an agency-ordered medical examination. The medical examination shall be in accordance
with the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. If the medical examination
confirms that the employee is able to perform assigned duties, any earned leave required to be used
by the employee prior to the results of the medical examination shall be restored. If the employee
is placed in non-pay status due to a lack of earned leave credits, the employee may be paid as if he
had worked; however, requests for such payment shall be considered by the agency on a case-by-
case basis.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Security Services Bargaining Unit
September 27, 2017

Article 23 — Hours of Work and Overtime
L= —2ours of Work and Overtime

The Florida PBA proposes:

1) Article 23, Section 1 (C) be amended to include language similar to
language found in Article 18, Section 5(B) of the law enforcement
agreements (See attached language). (Such language provides that

" ‘when “an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available,
employees who are assigned to the €mergency area ... shall be subject to

a 40 hour workweek while so assigned.”);

2) Correctional probation officer classifications assigned to excessive
~ caseloads, temporarily assigned to another officer’s caseload,
performing instructor duties or working electronic monitoring call-
outs shall not have their hours flexed for thi purpose* of avoiding

Payment of overtime. e

3) Amend Section 2(E) to exclude correctional probation senior officer <—

and specialist.



B ER R R A A AR Py o Y XS IV T VIVTT T}

SECTION 4 - Rest Periods

(A) A supervisor shall not unreasonably deny an employee a 15-minute rest period
during any four contiguous hours of work. It is recognized that staffing and work priorities may
prevent such a rest period during a given workday. Additionally, many positions have a post of
duty assignment that requires coverage for a full shift and does not permit the employee to leave
his post. In those cases, the employee may be able to “rest” while the employee physically remains
in the geographic location of his duty post. The employee is to remain responsive to calls during a

rest period.
(B)  Rest periods are not authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or
early departure from duty, and are not to be used contiguously with a mea] break.
. (C) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of
this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Agency Head or designee shall be final

and binding on all parties.

SECTIORN 5 — Overtime

(A)  The work period for each full-time employee shall be 40, 80 or 160 hours, as

determined by the agency.

(B)  Work beyond the employee’s regular work period shall be recognized in
accotdance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provided, however, that when an
emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available, employees who are assigned to
the emergency area described in the Governor’s Executive Order shall be subject to a 40 hour
workweek while so assigned. The state and the PBA will cooperate to secure funds for the payment
of overtime to employees in the situation described herein. The state shall make a reasonable effort

to equalize distribution of overtime opportunities.

(C)  The PBA agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative
Code that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards
Act as it is applied to public employees, which the state agrees to comply with.

SECTION 6 — FLSA Compensatory Leave

(A)  If the DHSMV has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as described

below:

(B)  Anemployee who is filling an included position may waive payment for overtime
and elect to have the overtime hours credited to “FLSA compensatory leave.” Such election will
apply until changed again, and only to workdays starting on the day of the change and in which
hours worked in the work period exceed the contracted hours. Overtime hours that the employee
elects to have credited as “FLSA compensatory leave” will accrue at the rate of one and one-half
hours for each hour of overtime worked. An emmployee will only be permitted to ac®umulate a
maximum of 80 hours of “FLSA compensatory leave” credits, which may be taken in any

35



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Security Services Bargaining Unit
November 30, 2017

AMENDMENT TO FLORIDA PBA REOPENER PROPOSALS (9/27/17)
SECURITY SERVICES UNIT

Article 23 - Hours of Work and Overtime

The Florida PBA proposes:

Article 23, Section 5 be amended to provide: Correctional captains and
lieutemants shall receive premium pay at the rate of time-and-one half (1%
their base rate of pay) for all hours worked in excess of 240 hours of regular

compensatory time.



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017

Page 1 of 4

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - General Pay Provisions

Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act
and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 — Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance
with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 4 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 5 - Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations
Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion, each agency is
authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities, or other
staffing issues.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017

Page 2 of 4

SECTION 6 — Other Pay Provisions — Department of Corrections

The following provisions shall apply to all appointments of Department of Corrections’
employees to positions allocated to classifications or broadband levels listed in Appendix A of the
Agreement, regardless of whether the appointee is a newly-hired employee or currently employed
in another class series or occupational level in the State Personnel System. The pay grades and
rates of pay shall be determined in accordance with the Schedule of Salary Ranges of the Career
Service Pay Plan. An employee receiving an original, promotion, reassignment, transfer, or
demotion appointment shall have a base rate of pay equal to an amount within the pay range,
subject to the following:

(A) Initial Appointment

The following shall apply to all employees who are appointed to a position with
probationary status:

(1) Persons appointed to a position prior to being certified by the Criminal
Justice Standards and Training Commission will be employed at a biweekly base rate of pay at the
established trainee rate 10% below the minimum base rate of pay for the class erbroadbandlevel

to which the appointment is made.

2 Upon being certified by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training
Commission, the employee shall be placed at the minimum of the appropriate pay grade for the
class or broadband level to which appointed, effective the date of certification. Appointments
above the minimum may be approved by the Agency Head or designee.

3) Persons holding a current Certificate of Completion for basic recruit
training issued by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission at the time of

appointment will be placed have-their-biweekly baserate-of pay-established at the minimum base

rate of pay efthe—pay-grade for the class erbreadbandlevel to which the appointment is made.

4) The probationary period shall be 12 months for any employee appointed to
a position with probationary status.

(5) Time spent as a trainee prior to receiving a Certification of Completion shall
not be counted toward completion of the probationary period.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017

Page 3 of 4

(B)  Pay upon Promotion Appointment

When promoted the employee shall receive a minimum of five percent (5%) above the
employee’s base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband level, contingent upon funds being
available, or to the minimum of the higher pay grade, whichever is greater at the time of promotion.
As an exception, when the employee is demoted and subsequently promoted back to the former
classification or broadband level, or to a classification assigned to the same broadband level in the
Security Services Unit, within the succeeding 12 months, the employee shall receive the same rate
of pay upon promotion as was received immediately prior to demotion. The Agency Head may, at
his discretion, grant the employee up to an additional five percent (5%) at the time of promotion.
In no case shall the employee be paid below the minimum for the class or broadband level.

(C)  Pay upon Demotion Appointment

When an emplovee is demoted, the employee’s base rate of pay will not be reduced by
more than the amount of all promotional increases received by the emplovee since filling a position

in the class into which the employee is demoted. When-demeoted-the-employee’s-biweekly-baserate

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017

Page 4 of 4

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019
Security Services Bargaining Unit
September 27, 2017

Article 25 — Wages
The Florida PBA proposes:

1) that all eligible employees in the bargaining unit shall receive a

competitive pay increase of three percent (3%) in their base rate of
pay effective July 1, 2018;

2) officers with five (5) years of service shall receive an additional two
percent (2%) in their base rate of pay effective October 1, 2018;

3) all bargaining unit employees in the correctional probation class

series shall have their base rate of pay adjusted by an additional
$2500 effective October 1, 2018;

2

4) all bargaining unit employees assigned duties as an instructor or

confinement officer shall receive a pay additive of five percent (5%)
“when performing such duties;

5) all promotional pay adjustments for bargaining unit employees shall
be a minimum of ten percent (10%);

6) all bargaining unit employees with advanced criminal justice-related

degrees (master or doctorate) shall receive a salary incentive in the -
amount of $100 per month.



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal Article 26
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 30, 2017

Page 1 of 2

Article 26
UNIFORM AND INSIGNIA

SECTION 1 - Uniform and Insignia for Correctional Officers and Institutional Security
Specialists

Correctional officers and institutional security specialists, where applicable, shall receive
a standard issue of uniforms and uniform accessories. The state shall provide uniforms for its
female correctional officers and institutional security specialists in the appropriate sizes, designed
and cut for females.

SECTION 2 — Uniform Maintenance Allowance for Correctional Officers and Institutional
Security Specialists

The state will provide unit correctional officers and institutional security specialists who
are furnished and required to wear a uniform, a maintenance allowance in the amount of $250.00
annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by
the agency without cost to the employee; in addition, such correctional officers and institutional
security specialists shall receive a shoe allowance in the amount of $75.00 annually.

SECTION 3 — Badges

(A)  Correctional officers and correctional probation officers shall be issued badges
according to the following specifications:

(1) Badges issued to correctional officers below the rank of lieutenant shall be
silver metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers’
uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures.

(2) Badges issued to correctional officers at the rank of licutenant and above
shall be gold metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers’
uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures.

3) Badges issued to correctional probation officers shall be police size. These
badges shall be carried in badge holders and in accordance with department procedure.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal Article 26
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 30, 2017

Page 2 of 2

(B)  Correctional officers are only authorized to wear issued badges with the
correctional officer class “A” or “€B” uniform, and only while performing official duties, or while
in uniform and traveling to or returning from their official duty station.

(C)  The use of an issued badge as a credential for personal purposes is prohibited.

(D)  Issued badges are considered state property and, except for retirement under
specific conditions or death in the line of duty, are to be returned upon an employee’s termination
of employment with the department or removal from a position in the Security Services Unit. Only
badges, which are issued by the department, shall be used to conduct officially designated duties.
Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the department for any issued badge which is lost.

(B)  Correctional officers and correctional probation officers who retire from the
department under honorable conditions from the Florida Retirement System_upon reaching the
appropriate retirement age of 55 or 25 years of continuous service, including retirement under
medical disability, shall be authorized to retain their issued badge.

(F)  Thebadge of a correctional officer or a correctional probation officer who is killed
in the line of duty shall be presented to the employee’s next of kin.

SECTION 4 — Class “A” Unifqrms

Employees shall not be required to wear Class “A” uniforms while on hospital duty.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Security Services Unit
State Proposal Article 27
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

The employee share of premiums for the State Emplovees Group Health Insurance Plan
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Security Services Bargaining Unit
September 27, 2017

JArticle 27 — Insurance

The Florida PBA proposes:
contributions shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.

Health insurance benefits and employee



Police Benevolent Association - CBU 08 Wage Proposals
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Union/issue

Estimated Cost

Comments

All eligible employees in the bargaining unit receive
a competitive pay increase of 3% in their base rate
of pay effective July 1, 2018

$27.3M

Utilized positions downloaded from the PeopleFirst system for
CBU 08 as of October 12, 2017. Calculated a 3% increase for
19,471 FTE. Amount includes retirement impacts.

All eligible employees with 5 years of service
receive an additional 2% in their base rate of pay
effective October 1, 2018

$7.4M

Utilized positions downloaded from the PeopleFirst system for
CBU 08 as of October 12, 2017. Calculated the number of
years between October 1, 2018 and the Continuous Service
Date in PeopleFirst (this is the date the employee has been
continuously employed in a regular position without a break in
service). Calculated a 2% increase for 9,412 FTE using the
salary rate after the 3% above was applied. Prorated for 9
Months. Amount includes retirement impacts.

All bargaining unit employees in the correctional
probation class series shall have their base rate of
pay adjusted by an additional $2500.00 effective
October 1, 2018

$5.3M

Utilized positions downloaded from the PeopleFirst system for
CBU 08 as of October 12, 2017. Calculated a $2,500 increase
for 2,185 FTE in the following class codes: 8036, 8037, 8039,
8040, 8041, 8045, and 8046. Prorated for 9 months. Amount
includes retirement impacts.

All bargaining unit employees assigned duties as an
instructor or confinement officer shall receive a pay
additive of 5% when performing such duties

Indeterminate

The Department of Corrections provided the number of
positions assigned to confinement and instructor duties, but
need current salary and retirement code in order to calcuated
an increase.

All promotional pay adjustments for bargaining unit
employees shall be a minimum of 10%

Indeterminate

Need additional detail regarding how often the promotions
occur, the current base rate of the position being promoted
from, and the retirement code.

All bargaining unit employees with advanced
criminal justice-related degrees (master or
doctorate) shall receive a salary incentive in the
amount of $100.00 per month

$359k

The Department of Corrections indicateed that 243 staff meet
this criteria. At $1,200 annually, the cost would total $291,600.
After adding special risk retirement of 23.27%, the amount at
left was calculated.

Do not have information regarding eligible staff in other
agencies.

Page 1 of 1



PBA - Special Agent
Unit



WV 0S:TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

L30T 34

‘(eAnEIULsaIdar pajeusisop Jo peay
AouaBe *5'0) sourasLI3 oyy 2Aj0saI/Isnipe
0} ALI0YINE 91 (PIm JuswsFeuem

JO [2A3] B 18 PO[pURY ST 30UBAJLIT

3} Jeyy sainsus g dojg 1e TessnusIp 10
‘uonjowap ‘uorsuadsns ‘Kemydny Aq sopu
0§ 1240 Jo 103suex Arejunjoaur ‘Aed aseq
U7 UONONPal € U0 Paseq SI Jey) 90UBAILIS

© JO uonentw oY 1. - (Z)()S Uonoag

pazinn

ATorex st 31 se ‘oimpasoid aoueAsns3

a1 woyy da)§ [BIQ) 9Y) JO UOTIUTUI[D
oy Sursodoud st oje)§ Y “indur Lousge
uodn pased - (T)(D)E UOB3S :L1/9/11

‘[esodoxd sa1e1G o)) SuImaiaag
Appussard st uorun oy, :£1/9/11

"20UBAJLIS 9} 0] 2SLI SUIAIS JUDAD

oy} SUIMO[[0F SABp G UNpIA aInpasord
90UBASLIE oY} Jo [ doig uT 0]

19§ Se ULI0] aoueASUS B SuImruqgns Aq
‘ayerrdoxdde se ¢ 1o 7 dayg 1€ pejeniur oq
(L S1o1IY Ul paqLIOSap SE) [BSSTWSIP 10
‘nonowop ‘uorsuadsns ‘KemySiy Aq sapmu
0€ 1240 JO 15Jsuer; Lrejunjoaur ‘Aed oseq
UI UOTOMPAI B UO PAse( SaUBASIIS JeT)

sesodoid aye1g oy 1 - (THG)S uonoag

"90UBASLIF 91y} 0 951X SUIAIS 1UoAS

oY1 Jo mouy eako[dius ) YITyM U0 ojep
o) JuIMO[[0] SARD SSSUISTI] G UMM

[ do3§ 12 o[y 01 9oueALLIS € Suraey
sa4opdws ue annber [jim [esodoid

oYL -empaodoid asurASLIS o) woy

da1g 1e10 9y Jo woneurwis oy sesodord
aelg YL - (THD)E UoNds8s :£1/9/11

QINP320IJ SOUBASLIL) - §

SINTNINOD

'TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALVIS

ATOLLAV

SI[OILIY PIA[osaIuf)

JUAIITY 19uadody 1-§T0T 183X [€ISL 10} SUOIIETIOSIN
LYOT LT RqURR( :Jo st suonenosaN Sururediegq aAnIdfo)) jo snjels

0207 ‘0€ 2unp saxdx7 JuanIAISY Jua.LIn))
UWIYSAS [PUUO0SId A)E)S - () JuIdY [erads
UONBII0SSY JUI[0AIUIY 0T



WV 0S'TT ‘8T0Z/8/1

L3084

"UOISIOSp SuIpulq pue jeuly

B IOPUSI PUB S0UBASLIS B1) JOPISUOD

0} JojeniqIe oY) 10J SAep ssauIsng g
Jeuonippe ue apraoid [[im ¢ 0} UOISIIap
© ONsSST 0} J0JENIQIR UR 0) PopIolje

SAep SSOUISNQ JO JOQUINY T} 9SLIOUL

0} Tesodoid s.1g oy ] - (9)(D)§ UonIag

[esodoid aye1g pasIAdy (L1/11/C]

"90UBASLIZ UOOE SSE[O A JO 1d19031
BUIMO[OJ SAEP G| UTILM UOISIORP

B SJROTUNIWIOD pue ‘sso001d aoueAaLId
2} 91eUIPIO0D ‘AousFe pajeorduur

Aue pue UOTU() oY} HIM 2OUBASLIT

O} SSNISIP PIHOM SIDTAIOG JUOUISSEURA
Jo yuounreds(q sy “esuodsar apim
9SLIdISUS JUR)SISUOD B 2INSUS 0} sa1ouade
snotieA 0) Ajajeredas uey) Joyjer
SOOTAING JuswaFeur]y Jo Jueunteda(]
2y} 01 pajuesard Ajjeniur o1e seouBAaLI3
[ons [[e jey) sainsua ¢ dojg je Aouade
ouo uey) srouwt Funeordurr 2ouBAILIS
uonode SSE[O © JO UOHBNIUI 21} 10
[esodoid s,21015 o - (EN(H)S wonodzs

"SUOISIASL LI/TT/CT
Surpnpour ‘[esodoid s,e1e1g oY) SuImarAdI

Apuosaxd st uotun) oYL L 1/11/Z1

R
ST IDADUOIYA ‘SJOLIQ JO UOISSIWIGNS STf)
10 Surresy sy 3o Suisod sy Jo arep oy
WOl ‘SABP SSAUISNQ 77 JUDLIND 31} UBY)
Iafer ‘sAep ssoursng (¢ UBY) Iaje[ Ou
UOISIOOP B 9NSST [[eys 10jeNIqIR UE JRT)
sesodoid ayeig oy, - (9)(D)g uonsag

[esodoid 911§ POSIASY (L 1/11/Z1

"¢ dayg ye pojeniuw
aq [1eys AsuaSe suo uey) ajow soyesr[dun
Je1]) SOOUBASLIZ UOTIO. SSE[D 1B}

sasodoid s121§ 9y T, - {E) Q)G Uono9S

(penunuoo) 2IMpad0IJ SOUBASLIL) - §

SINANWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

'TVSOdOdd ALVLS

T IDLLAV

SI[ONIY PaAjosdaup)

JIUWRITY 1OUdd0odYy 61-8107 18X [EISLY 10] suoner}osaN
LIOTTT 1QUIdS( :jo se suoyenosaN Sururedieg 9And9[[0) JO SMIB)S
0202 ‘o€ dung saardxy Jusma0aSy JuaLm))

WI)SAS PUU0SIdJ eI - Ju() JuIdY [eradg
WONBIIOSSY JUI[OAIUIY NI[OJ




WV 0S:TT ‘8T0Z/8/1 £30 €34

'SISeq 98B0-Ag-05B9 B 10 Aousde
oY) Aq PaI3PISUOD 3q [[eys JustAed
yons 10j s)sanbai ‘resomoy payiom

pey oy 31 se pred aq Aewr safojdurs

31} ‘S)IPAIO SABS] PALIED JO NOB[ B 0) NP
smyels Ked-uou e ur peoe[d st aakojdws
AP JI °PSI0ISAI 9q [[BYS UOIJBUIIEXS
[eOIpaw JY} JO S)[Nsax 23 0} Jorxd
eaKo[dwo oy Aq pasn aq 0} paunbaz
9ABQ[ pauIes Aue ‘sopnp pougisse

oy) wroyaad 03 a[qe st sekordws o)

121} SULJUOD UOLBUILIEXD [EOTPALL Y}
JI "OV'd “p€-109 Sy Jo suorsiaoid ot
1At 20UBPIODOR UI 3 [[BYS SUOT)RUIIRXD
[EOIPaUI PAISPIO AOUISY "UOTBUNIEXD
[edIpaur parspIo-Asusde Uk Jo s)nsaI oyl
930 ‘Aed jo sjex aseq s,saKorduio oy)|  pue sopnp paugisse uuojad o) sjqeun
‘SHPaIo oAea] sey sakofduwe ot 1oyioym| aq Kewr 90£01dwa 31} 1eY) UORRUINLIDISP
‘sa3e) 11 sinoy Auew moy ‘smodo|  sAousae o u2amiaq porad a1} 10400

ST} uago moy 1otpaid o3 Anpiqeut oyy|  0) YIPaId dawS] pauIes 2sn 0) doKordura

03 onp 2jeuIULLISPY] - S[esodoid s .uotun| ue ammnber Lew g1 oy 18 sesodoxd

Jo sreumss 3unsods gJ0 :L1/9/11 uorun) oY, - 9 UOTI5S MON :£1/9/11 QUILLIAQ) PUB Y2aMMIOA “ABPYIOM — €T
SINIIWINOD TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALVLS CPRIARIAY

SOILIY PIAJOSAIU[)
MR WRIZY 19uddody 6I-8T(0T 183X [BISL 0] SUOTIRLIOSIN]
LTOT 1T 13qUidd3( :Jo se suonenodaN Surures.ieq 3Andaf[o)) Jo snjejs
0707 ‘0¢ duny saardx7 JmaurdISy juaLin))
WI)SAS [JUU0SI] 3J¥)§ - () JUITY [eads
UOIBIIOSSY JUI[0AIUWIY N[O




NV 0S'TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

L3I0 8d

"A10)1119) orydexgosd

‘uotstaoxd o Aq pajoedun sy o) pausSisse a1e ‘Joursaon)

paxmbar spouad y10m papusixe parsnipe oy £q pare[oop st Aouaiowo ue usym

a1y Jo )nsa1 e se saakordwo [emyoe ‘o soAorduis 107 ‘poried 3jrom oy

uo joedwr aanedou/eanisod poxmu ot 091 I0 (8 Ue UeY} ISYJEI ‘UOTIR[NO[RD

PUE 21EMIOSTJS 0) USPING SANEIISTUILIPE oum1940 o ssodmd o) 10] joamsprom

a1} 0} anp uoIsIA0Id ST} JO [RAOWIST moy O © 10J sepraoid yorgm o3enSuey
sy Sursodod st ojeyg oY) “ndur Aouase 10e1UOD JO uolTeUIUN[S 21} sesodoxd (panunuoo)
uodn paseg] - ()T GOBO3S :L1/11/C1 o1e}S A, - ()T UOHOSS :L1/11/71|dWIISAQ PUR N9omMOM AepyIOpm — €7

SINHWIOD "TVSOdOdd NOINN TVSOdOdd ALV1S TIOILAV
SPILIY PIA[osdIUf)

JUOWIIZY 1ouddody 61-8T(T 183X [EISL] 10) SUONENOSIN
LTOT “TT 1_/QUIDNR( :Jo se suonenodoN sururesreq 3Andafo)) Jo snyejg

0207 ‘0€ dung saardxy JusmIdRISy Jua.LIn)
W)SAS [dUUO0SIIJ 3)e)S - Ju() JUITY [eadg
TONRIIOSSY JUI[0AIUAY N0 J




WV 0S:TT ‘8T02/8/T

L3034

‘uejd uonuaal

PUE JUSWIIIOAI © JTUIgNS JOU [ImM ‘Aue

J1 ‘sarousge yomym 1otpaxd 0y Ayjiqeur oy
0} anp djeuruLlepy] - sjesodoad s uorun
JO yeumss Sunsod 440 :L1/11/Z1

"paUIULIR)SP aq o], - wesdord

LVMS TTAd sy 01 pausisse seakordmo
103 aamppe Aed o ¢ 1oy [esodoid suorun
30 Srumss 3unsoo gdoO :L1/9/11

“Vdd 9y ynam suefd yous Jo suLa)

oy Sunenosau Jeyye ueyd uonuslaI pue
JUSUINITIRL PAZI[BNPIAIPUT Ue Juoursfdun
PINOYS TAA SY) T8y} ‘SUCEPUSUIIOID]
198pnq 61-8107 A SJOUWIOAOL) 3y} UO
paseq ‘sasodoxd worun) o1 :£1/11/21

weidord Ly MS F1ad
oy 0) paudisse sa9K0[durd JOJ SATHPpPE

Ked o,¢ v sasodord wotun) syJ i/ 1/9/11

‘siseq oy1dads-Louage

Ue UO pa[pury ‘A[SATIRUI)[E ‘IO SOI0UdTeR
d1e)s 1e 1o [esodoid oFem Jesioarun,,

B BIA Pa[puey a4 [[Im suonenogou

93eM J1 SUIWLIAIOP O] SUOTISSNOSIP
sesodoxd worun) sy :£1/9/11

10y suoneudoiddy [ereuan 6107
-810¢C aY1 £4q pannbai se uonEUSWNIOP
Funroddns s[qeyoa spnjout [jeys uefd
sy, 'siusunsnfpe a8em Aue Jo Surumn
o) PUE BLIDJLIO ‘SasSB[O SqISI[S Yim
SUO[E UONUSIAI PUE JUSUIILIOST $SOIPPE
0} $0139Je1S U0 UONBWLIOJUI PI[IBIAP
apnpour [[is uepd yoeg ‘seoko[duwd
JUSWIDIOJUS ME] JO UONUL)AT pue
JuswyIINaI oY Suroueyue Jo asodind
o) Pm AdusFe yyoses 10] padofoasp
ued e y3nony pazsjsturupe aq

14 spuny vonesuadwos ofqefieae oy
"9)B1S O} JO SME[ A} JO JUSIOIOJUS

91} JO SWILID JO UOLOOP pue UoNUsAdId
o st Aipiqisuodsar Arewrrrd ssoym

pue AouaBe els v £q o) [y peAodurs
SI3TJJO JUSWOIOJUS ME] PSIJIjenb
Urejal pue JnIod1 0) uonesusduros

JoJ opraoid suonepuswuodsy] yedpng
8 JOUIOAOD) SY - TUONSS :LT/LT/1T

sagem — 67

SINTFIWINOD

'TVSOdOdd NOINN

'TVSOdOdd ALVILS

T TOLLAV

SI[IIV PIA[0SAIU[)
JUIWIIBY 1udd0dy §1-8§T0T 183X [€ISL] 10 sUOEN0SIN

L

10T "IT BQUIdR( :jJo st suonenodaN Surursdieg aAndd[o) Jo snje)s
0202 ‘0€ dung saadxy Juonradady jua.aan)
TWI)SAS [UUOSI] 3)¥)§ - Ju[) Juasy [eads
UOTJRIIOSSY JUI[0AIUIY I[oJ



IV OS'TT ‘8T0Z/8/T

L3409 84

(s1oedun

VOL1/USWSIIST SIPN[OUT JUNOWE)
UOLIAIID 1834 ()] oY1 Sunesur 1.1 §T1
10J 0QO“FTTS - 19U ST PIEPUE)S IOIAIDS
Jo s1eak o) s1ep o) O 10 §T/1/0]
SAT)O91J2 9 0] DIAILSS JO SIBAA 2JIOW

10 O Y seakojdws Jtun Sururedreq
10J (%L PRUONUSWISIONE ) 0} UOHIPPE
ur) jusunsnipe Arefes aseq o¢ v (q)

(syoedwr v AuswaIx

SOpN[OUT Junowe) g 14 67¢ J0J UOT[ur
9°1$ - 81/1/L 2A129JJ3 29 03 L [/0¢/9 JO
se pakoydws saakordwo jmun FurureSreq
Ioy yuounsnipe Aefes aseq o5, v ()

‘ueld UONUR)SI puE JUSUNINIOAI

© 0s0doid jou sa0p g 9

JL 61-810T Ad 10§ aster Aed saneuis)e
ue Jo [esodoxd s,uomun) o Sunsos 40

“}NSar At yorgm

$9nssT uoIssa1dwos Sunnsar ssaIppe

0} IopIO UI papnjoul oq f[eys jusunsnfpe
uorssardwos a3em e ‘moreoIyIsse]d

© Jo Aed Sunueys wnwurw oy

Joy yuoumsnipe Aed e 10 st ue(d ST
a1 31 yer sssodoxd worup) aqy ‘¢

‘JoUI SI pIBpUR)S SOTAIOS

Jo s1eak a1p) S1ep o)) U0 IO §1/1/01
SATIORJJD 9q 0] IIAIAS JO SIBA 210U
10 01 yia saokordwo Jiun Sumuredieq
10J (%, POUOLUAWIOIOJE 3T} 0} UOHIPPE
ur) jusunsafpe Arefes oseq o4,¢ v ()

81/1/L 2AIORYYS 3q 03 £ 1/0€/9 JO
se padojduss saskordws jrun Suturedieq

oy yjuoumsnlpe Arefes oseq 9,/ v (@)

:sopuyour yomm uerd
UONUa)al pue JUSUNINISAI € asodoxd jou

SOOP AT AW J1 61-810T A 10F aste1
Aed syewiayfe ue sesodoxd uomup) sy 7

"81/L1/1 ueyy J3je] ou Y J o) pue
SINQ ‘rouroaon) o) 03 ue[d e jussasd
Isnw R 2yl yeys sesodoad worun) oy
‘ueld UONU)AI PUR JUBUNINIAT S, T(L]
U} JO JUBIUOD AN} FuTUIISIep U *|

(panunuod) sadem — ¢z

SINHIWINOD

TVSOdOdd NOINN

'TVSOdOdd ALVLS

ATOLLAV

SI[PLTY pPIA[osdau)
JIOWRIZY 19uadody 6T-8T0T 183 X [BISL] 10§ STONROSIN

L

TOT "IT 12qUII( :jo St suoneno3aN Suraredeg 3AIIN[0)) JO SNJE)S
0707 ‘0¢ dunyp saardxy Juomd218y jua.LIn))
WA)SAS [PUUOSIdJ 3)E)S - Ju[) JUIBY [Eadg
UONEIIOSSY JUS[0AIUWIY N[O



NV 0STT ‘810%/8/1

£40 £ 3d

61-810C Ad
oy paZueydun urews [[eys suOnnNqLIuoD

9040[dwd pue s1goUSq SoUBINSUI
yiresy yew sasodoxd wotun) ayy /£ 1/9/11

'610T ‘1 Arenuef

SAOYS ‘URld WI[ESH 2[quonpa( Yy
a1y 103 asnods yoes JoJ yruow 1od §1°7¢
Pue ue[J PRSH pIepurl§ o1 10y ‘osnods
yaes 107 yruowr 13d (6§ 01 98ueyo [m
ue|q soueInsu] yesy dnoir) seakordury
9es ayy wr Sunedronred asnods (oes
Joy uowr 1ad ¢ 1§ Jo smntwald JusLng
wrer801d 9snodg st Jo UOTEIIpow

e sosodoxd @IS oYL :L1/L1/11

S}JouSg SouBInSY] - /7

SINHININOD

'TVSOdOdd NOINN

TVSOdOdd ALV1S

T IDLLAV

SOOIV PAA[OSAIU()
YoW23Y 12uddody 61-8T0T T8I X [€ISI] 10} SUONEBIIOTIN
LTOTTT 1_2quidd3(q :jo st suonenodoN Surmedreg aandsfo)) Jo snye)g

0207 ‘o€ duny saardxy Juowrd.18y Jua.Lin))
WA)SAS [PUU0SId 3J8)S - Ju() Juddy [enadg
UOTRII0SSY JUI[OAIUIY N[O ]



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 1 0f 10

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and the Association to encourage informal discussions of
complaints between management and employees as well as between supervisors and employees.
Such discussions should be held with view to reaching an understanding that will resolve the matter
in a manner satisfactory to the employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal
grievance procedure prescribed by this Article.

SECTION 1 — Definitions
As used in this Article:

(A)  “Grievance” shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement.

(B)  “Grievant” shall mean a Special Agent, Special Agent Trainee, or a group of such
employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one shall be designated
by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance.

(C)  “Days” shall mean business days. “Business days” refers to the ordinary business
hours, i.e., 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the
recipient is located. Furthermore, “business days” do not include any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the Associate pursuant to a list
furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a
suspension of grievance processing as agreed in writing by the parties. “Business days” also do
not include a day(s) on which the offices of DMS or any agency employing bargaining unit
members are closed under an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency
condition or disaster under the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(e).

SECTION 2 — Election of Remedy and Representation

A) Ifa grievaint or the Association has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission,
the grievant or the Association shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and such

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 2 of 10

election shall be binding on the grievant or the Association. In the case of any duplicate filing, the
action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) A grievant who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or
other initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be
represented by the Association. When the grievant has elected Association representation, both the
grievant and the Association Grievance Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting.
Further, any written communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both
the grievant and the Association Grievance Representative, and any decision agreed to by the state
and the Association shall be binding on the grievant.

(C)  If the grievant is not represented by the Association, any adjustment of the
grievance shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Association shall be given
reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of such grievance. A
grievant using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure
established by the parties to the Agreement. The Association shall not be bound by the decision of
any grievance or arbitration in which the grievant was not represented by the Association.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A)  Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and
handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the grievances.
Grievances may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery.

(B)  There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(C)  Except for suspensions, the filing or pendency of any grievance under the
provisions of this Article shall in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the
state to take the action complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.
The employee shall notice the Agency Head or designated representative, in writing, of his
intention to grieve, or appeal a suspension to the Public Employees Relations Commission, within
ten days of the receipt of the final notice from the agency. Suspensions shall not be imposed until
the final disposition of a grievance or appeal, if any, except where such suspension is made pending
the outcome of a criminal investigation. The employee’s failure to notify the agency of his
intention to grieve or appeal shall permit the agency to proceed with the suspension.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 3 of 10

(D)  After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised unless the
parties agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues, or upon a party’s
showing of good cause for the consideration of such new issue, but in no event later than the filing
of a grievance at Step 3. When an issue is unchanged, but it is determined that an article, section,
or paragraph of the Agreement has been cited imprecisely or erroneously by the grievant, the
grievant shall have the right to amend that part of his grievance.

(E)  The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing to Arbitration shall
not establish a precedent binding on either the Association or the state in other cases.

(F)  If a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbitration hearing is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the regular work hours of the grievant, a representative of the
grievant, or any required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at
grievance meetings, mediation, or arbitration hearings outside of a participant’s regular work hours
shall not be deemed time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of participants attending
such meetings on behalf of the union.

(G)  Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

21) Step1
(a)
this-seetion-he-An employee having a grievance may, within 15 days following the occurrence of
For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 4 of 10

the event glvmg nse to the grievance, ﬁle a written gnevance at Step 1—pfewded—sueh—m=ttteﬁ

gﬂevanee In ﬁhng a grievance at Step 1, the grlevant or de31g11ated representatlve shall submit
to the Step 1 Management Representatlve a grievance form as contained in Appendix B of this
Agreement, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, the
specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designee shall
communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and to the Association Grievance
Representative, if any, within 10 days following receipt of the written grievance.

(32) Step2

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the grievant or designated
representative may submit the grievance in writing, on a grievance form as contained in Appendix
B of this Agreement, to the Agency Head or designated representative within 10 days following
receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form
submitted at Step 1, together with the written response and documents in support of the grievance.
When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the grievance form must contain the same
information as a grievance filed at Step 1. The Agency Head or designated representative may
meet with the employee, and/or with an Association Grievance Representative, at the employee’s
option, to discuss the grievance.

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a
decision in writing to the grievant and to the Association Grievance Representative within 15 days
following receipt of the written grievance.

(43) Step 3 — Contract Language Disputes

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay,
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the grievant or designated representative may submit
it in writing on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement, to the DMS
within 15 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include a copy of
the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all written responses and documents
in support of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 5 of 10

form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at Step 1.

(b) The DMS shall discuss the grievance with the Association
Grievance Representative, or grievant or his representative if not represented by the Association.
The DMS shall communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and to the designated
representative within 15 days following receipt of the written grievance.

(34) Grievance Mediation

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to
be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been
submitted to arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a
grievance, the scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (6)(e) below may be
extended by mutual agreement beyond five months. FEither party may withdraw from the
mediation process with written notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation.

(65) Step 4 — Arbitration

(a) If a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base
pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal)
was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the Association representative may appeal the
grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this
Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language dispute
as described in (4) above, is not resolved at Step 3, the Association representative may appeal the
grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this
Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial written step,
the Association refused to represent the grievant because he was not a dues-paying member of the
Association, the grievant may appeal the grievance to arbitration.

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of at least six
permanent-arbitrators, selected by the state and the Association to serve in rotation for any case or
cases submitted. The DMS’ Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration hearing with the
state and the Association representatives and the arbitrator listed next on the panel in rotation, and
shall coordinate the arbitration hearing time, date, and location.

(c) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related grievances
for hearing before the same arbitrator.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 6 of 10

(d) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted
to address only the arbitrability issue. In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the
panel of arbitrators (see (6)(b) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision
within 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose. The hearing on this issue
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five
business days of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of
the parties and the arbitrator. The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and expenses
of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another
arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with the
provisions of (6)(b) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s).

(e) Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible but not
more than five months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration Form. If the arbitrator
initially selected is not available to schedule within this period, the Arbitration Coordinator shall
contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who can schedule within
the prescribed period. A party may request of the arbitrator, with notice to the other party and the
Arbitration Coordinator, an extension of time/continuance based on documented unusual and
compelling circumstances. The parties may agree to schedule a hearing beyond the five-month
deadline. The Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule arbitration hearings at times and locations
agreed to by the parties. Under normal circumstances hearings will be held in Tallahassee;
however, selection of the site shall take into account the availability of evidence, location of
witnesses and existence of appropriate facilities.

® At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration
hearing, the parties shall file with the arbitrator, and provide to each other, a list of witnesses to be
called at the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, and a brief statement of the material facts or matters
relevant to the grievance about which each witness will testify. A party may file a written request
with the arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the other party, for an exception to the filing time
limits for good cause. If such exception is granted, the other party may request that the hearing be
rescheduled if necessary for the party to respond to the late filed witness information.

(2) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this
Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the Association, the grievant(s), and the
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 7 of 10

the following provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 22-30 days
from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, shall be
determined by applying a preponderance of the evidence standard, and shall set forth the
arbitrator’s opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the
determination of the issues submitted.

4. The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make
any decisions:

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to,
subtracting from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or
of applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers,
duties and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities
have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement.

6. The arbitrator’s award may include back pay to the
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:

a. An award of back pay shall not exceed the amount of
pay the grievant would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by the
amount of wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance
benefits during the back pay period, shall not include punitive damages, shall not be retroactive to
a date earlier than 15 days prior to the date the grievance was initially filed.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page § of 10

b. If the Association is granted a continuance to
reschedule an arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be
responsible for back pay for the period between the original hearing date or the end of the five
month period described in (6)(e), above, whichever is later, and the rescheduled date.

(h) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the
parties; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its
own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee and expense
statement to the Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator’s contract.

@) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the proceedings.
Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter. If either party orders a
transcript of the proceedings, the party shall pay for the cost of the transcript and provide a
photocopy to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript to the other
party upon written request and payment of copying expenses ($.15 per page).

() The Association will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to
which it was not a party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A)  Failure to initiate a grievance within the time limits in Section 3 above shall be
deemed a waiver of the grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to submit a grievance to
the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at

that step.

(B)  Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant, or the Association where appropriate, to
proceed to the next step. A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Association by the
written, agreed-to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing the grievance to the next

step.

(C)  The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any step
of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by mutual agreement.

(D)  Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 9 of 10

question.
SECTION 5 — Exceptions

(A)  Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit
the Association or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee without his
consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, an appeal, an
administrative action before a government board or agency, or a court proceeding, brought by an
employee or group of employees, or by the Association.

(B)  All grievances will be presented at the-initial-step-Step 1 with the following
exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by

submitting a grievance form as set—feﬁh—m—Step—-l—contamed in Appendlx B within 15 days
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.

(2) If the grievance arises from an agency action listed in Article 7(2)(D) of this
Agreement, a grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 by submitting a grievance form as contained in
Appendix B within 15 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.

(23) The Association shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on
behalf of employees, in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or
application of this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against
an employee. The Association’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from
proceeding in another forum on the same issue. The class action grievance form shall identify the
specific group (i.e., employees’ job classification(s), work unit(s), etc.) adversely impacted by the
dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement. Such grievance shall be
initiated at Step 2_or, where more than one agency is implicated, Step 3 of this procedure ofthis
procedure—in-accordance-with-the-provisionsset-forth-hereinby submitting a grievance form as
contained in Appendix B, within 15 days following efthe occurrence of the event giving rise to
the grievance.

(€)  An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position may
only file non-discipline grievances to Step 3, unless the processing of such grievances is further
limited by specific provisions of this Agreement.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 6
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 10 0f 10

SECTION 6 — Expedited Arbitration

(A)  The parties recognize that certain grievances may be amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly, at any point in the grievance procedure, the Association
may request expedited arbitration of a grievance. Requests for expedited arbitration shall be
granted in cases involving arbitrable disciplinary action less than discharge. In all other cases,
expedited arbitration will be used upon agreement of the parties.

(B)  Expedited Arbitration Rules:

(1) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all remaining
steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the grievance is submitted directly to the
expedited arbitrator.

2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of permanent
arbitrators.

3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than six hours in duration,
with each party limited to three hours. There shall be no post-hearing briefs, although either party
may submit a written statement of position to the arbitrator during the hearing. The Arbitrator shall
issue a short (no longer than three pages) decision within seven days of the hearing. With the
exception of the foregoing, all provisions of section 3(G)(6) of this procedure shall be applicable.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 1 of 3

Article 23
WORKDAY, WORKWEEK AND OVERTIME

SECTION 1 - Overtime
(A)  The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours.

(B)  Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be
recognized in accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Codesprevided; however-that

>
an a¥a =
7 A e

2
B+e;—€mP

b

40-heur-werloveelk—while-se-assigned. The state and the Association will cooperate to secure funds

for the payment of overtime to unit employees in the situation described herein.

(C)  The Association agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees.

(D)  If the agency has a plan approved in advance by the DMS, FLSA compensatory
leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as described below:

An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved
extended period if mutually agreed to by the employee and supervisor, waive payment for overtime
and have the overtime hours credited to FLSA compensatory leave. If such approved election is
made, the overtime hours will be credited as FLSA compensatory leave credits at the rate of one
and one-half hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will only be permitted to
accumulate a maximum of 80 hours of FLSA compensatory leave credits which may be taken in
any increments if agreed to by the employee and the supervisor. If mutual agreement is not reached,
the supervisor may, with a minimum of five workdays notice, require the employee to use such
leave credits at any time in increments of full work days. However, all unused FLSA compensatory
leave credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the
employee’s straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code. An employee who separates from the Career Service or moves to another
state agency shall be paid for all unused FLSA compensatory leave in accordance with the above.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 2 of 3

SECTION 2 - Workday

(A)  The agency shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B)  Where employees are required to work extra hours during an approved extended
work period, the state will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight hour
increments, provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period.

SECTION 4 - Rest Periods

(A) A supervisor shall not unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period
during any four contiguous hours of work. It is recognized that staffing and work priorities may
prevent such a rest period during a given workday. Additionally, many positions have a post of
duty assignment that requires coverage for a full shift and does not permit the employee to leave
his post. In those cases, the employee may be able to “rest” while the employee physically remains
in the geographic location of his duty post. The employee is to remain responsive to calls during a
rest period.

(B)  Rest periods are not authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or
early departure from duty, and are not to be used contiguously with a meal break.

(C) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Agency Head or designee shall
be final and binding on all parties.

SECTION 4 — Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full access to the benefits, of the
employing agency’s existing sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan.

SECTION $§ — Special Compensatory Leave

(A)  Special Compensatory Leave is defined as leave that is earned as a result of hours
worked on a holiday, extra hours worked during an established work week which contains a
holiday, or extra hours worked when a facility is closed under emergency conditions as provided
in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 23
Fiscal Year 2018-19
December 11, 2017

Page 3 of 3

(B)  Use of Special Compensatory Leave:

(1) When an employee eamns special compensatory leave credits, the employee
shall have 60 calendar days in which to use the earned special compensatory leave time.

(2) If the employee fails to use the earned special compensatory leave during
the 60 day period, the supervisor shall schedule the employee to use the leave.

3) An employee who has a leave balance in excess of 240 hours shall be
required to use a minimum of 120 hours of the employee’s earned special compensatory leave
each calendar year or the amount necessary to bring the employee’s special compensatory leave
balance to 240 hours, whichever is less, prior to using any annual leave credits, unless such annual
leave credits are being substituted for an employee’s unpaid individual medical leave granted in
accordance with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), or family medical leave or
parental leave granted in accordance with section 110.221, F.S., the FMLA, or both.

4) An employee who begins employment after July 1, 2013 shall only be
permitted to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave credits,
notwithstanding any additional hours worked on a holiday, during the established work week
containing a holiday, or during the closure of a facility during emergency conditions.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Special Agent Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

The following collective bargaining provisions are opened for discussion purposes.
A comprehensive proposal regarding these provisions will be made at a later date.
These proposals are drawn to the pending 2017-2020 collective bargaining

agreement.
Article 23 — Hours of Work and Overtime
The Florida PBA proposes inclusion of the new Section 6, attached as Exhibit 2.



DISABILITY LEAVE
November 6, 2017
Version 1

*New Section 6 for Special Agent

An agency may require an employee to use earned leave credits to cover the
period between the agency’s determination that the employee may be unable to
perform assigned duties and the results of an agency-ordered medical examination.
The medical examination shall be in accordance with the provisions of Rule 60-34,
Florida Administrative Code. If the medical examination confirms that the
employee is able to perform the assigned duties, any earned leave required to be
used by the employee prior to the results of the medical examination shall be
restored. If the employee is placed in a non-pay status due to a lack of earned
leave credits, the employee may be paid as if he had worked; however, requests for

such payment shall be considered by the agency on a case-by-case basis.

EXHIBIT
E-2




PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017
Page 1 of 2

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - General Pay Provisions

Pay, including increases to the base rate of pay and salary additives, shall be in accordance
with the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act and other provisions of state law.

SECTION 2 — Recruitment and Retention

The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for compensation to recruit and retain
qualified law_enforcement officers employed full time by a state agency and whose primary
responsibility is the prevention and detection of crime or the enforcement of the laws of the state.
The available compensation funds will be administered through a plan developed for each agency
with the purpose of enhancing the recruitment and retention of law enforcement employees. Each
plan will include detailed information on strategies to address recruitment and retention along with
eligible classes, criteria and the timing of any wage adjustments. The plan shall include verifiable
supporting documentation as required by the 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act.

SECTION 3 — Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Career Service employees who have permanent status in their current position may be
given the option of receiving up to 24 hours of unused annual leave each December, in the form
of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 — Performance Pay

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal Article 25
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 17, 2017
Page 2 of 2

each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,

Florida Administrative Code.
SECTION 6 - Discretionary Competitive Pay Adjustments

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head’s discretion,
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities,
or other staffing issues.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Special Agent Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Article 25 — Wages

» The Florida PBA proposes: Pending discussion and determination of
whether or not the wage negotiations will be handled via a “universal” proposal or,

alternatively, handled on an agency-specific basis.

e The Florida PBA proposes: Employees assigned to Agency SWAT program receive a
five percent (5%) pay additive for assignment to the position.

This proposal is drafted in consideration of Governor Scott’s Fiscal Year 2018-
2019 Recommended General Appropriations Act and specifically that section
denominated as Section 8(2) of Employee Compensation and Benefits, Special Pay

issues.

The Florida PBA agrees that the State’s law enforcement agencies should
implement an individualized Recruitment and Retention Plan after negotiation of

the terms of such plans with the PBA.

1. In determining the content of R&R plans, the Florida PBA proposes a
more aggressive timeline than that suggested by Governor Scott and
DMS. It is the PBA’s position agency draft recruitment and retention
plans should be presented to the Office of the Governor, DMS and the

Association, no later than January 17, 2018.

2. The PBA proposes a alternate pay raise for FY 2018-2019 which
includes the following components for agencies that do not propose an

approved R&R plan which includes:

The raise shall provide a base salary pay adjustment for bargaining
unit members of a minimum of seven percent (7%) for members
employed as of June 30, 2018 to be effective July 1, 2018.

The raise provide for a base salary pay adjustment of a minimum of
three percent (3%) for members with ten or more years of service,
such increase to be effective October 1, 2018, or on the date the years

of service standard is met.



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Special Agent Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

3. If the agency plan or intent is to provide for an adjustment in the
minimum starting salary of a classification, it shall also provide a wage
adjustment for current bargaining unit members in order to address
compression issues which may result from the increase in the starting
salary. Both DMS and PBA recognize salary compression is a major
issue which needs to be fully addressed in the development of a R&R

plan.

4. The PBA and DMS agree to set aside the time necessary to complete
negotiations in a fair and reasonable fashion. Once negotiations of an
agency recruitment and retention plan is complete the Florida Legislature
shall be provided a copy of the plan for its consideration.



PBA/Special Agent Unit
State Proposal — Article 27
Fiscal Year 2018-19
November 13, 2017

Page 1 of 1

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 — State Employees Group Insurance Program

The employee share of premiums for the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 except as follows:

The Spouse Program providing for premiums of $15 per month for each spouse
participating in the State Employees Group Health Insurance Plan will change to $90 per month
for each spouse for the Standard Health Plan and $32.15 per month for each spouse for the High
Deductible Health Plan, effective January 1, 2019.

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits
(A)  Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in section 112.19, Florida Statutes.
(B)  Education benefits will be as provided in section 112.19, Florida Statutes.

(C)  State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee’s
surviving spouse and children will be as provided in section 110.123, Florida Statutes.

(D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall
not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

For the State For the PBA
Mike Mattimore Gene “Hal” Johnson
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator

Date Date



Florida PBA Reopener Proposals
Contract Year 2018-2019

Special Agent Bargaining Unit
November 6, 2017

Article 27 — Insurance
The Florida PBA proposes: Health insurance benefits and employee contributions
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.




Police Benevolent Association - CBU 10 Wage Proposals

Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Union/lssue

Estimated Cost

Comments

Article 25 - For agencies that do not propose a
Recruitment and Retention Plan, propose a base
salary pay adjustment for bargaining unit members
of 7% for members employed as of June 30, 2018
to be effective July 1, 2018.

$1.6 million

Itis not currently possible to determine which agencies will
not propose a Recruitment and Retention Plan, therefore the
propsed increase is calcuated for all unit positions.
Downloaded all unit positions, transferred from PeopleFirst
into LAS/PBS as of 12/21/17. Calcuated a 7% increase for
all positions (329 FTE). Amount includes retirement/FICA
impacts.

Article 25 - For agencies that do not propose a
Recruitment and Retention Plan, propose a base
salary pay adjustment for bargaining unit members
of 3% for members with 10 or more years of service,
such increase to be effective October 1, 2018, or on
the date the years of service standard is met.

$224,000

Itis not currently possible to determine which agencies will
not propose a Recruitment and Retention Plan, therefore the
propsed increase is calcuated for all unit positions. From the
download above, after the 7% was applied, determined the
positions that will meet at least 10 years of service as of
6/30/19. For those positions, calcuated a 3% increase.
Applied 75% for a 10/1 effective date. Amount includes
retirement/FICA impacts. 118 FTE met the 10 year criterion.
Note that if a position met the 10 year threshold on April 1,
2018, their increase is included for the full 9 month period.

Page 1 of 1




